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NOTICE
SHORT NOTICE FOR THE 16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the 16™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company will
be held on Monday, 30" September, 2024 at 03:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements (including the Cash Flow Statement
and Statement of Change in Equity) of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2024 together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Independent Auditors as also the Comments of
Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To take note of the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company appointed by Comptroller
and Auditor General of India and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Statutory Auditor for the financial year 2024-25 and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT members be and hereby take note of the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the financial year 2024-25, by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and authorize
the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration including out-of-pocket expenses based on a recommendation
of the Audit Committee.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider appointment of Smt. Ambika Jain. IRAS as Director (Finance) of the Company as an
additional charge in addition to her own as PFA/Metro Railway Kolkata and if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification(s), the following Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED, that pursuant to Section 152(2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded
to the appointment of Smt. Ambika Jain. IRAS as Director (Finance) of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to her own as PFA/Metro Railway/Kolkata with effect from the date of assumption
of charge till completion of the Project or until further order, whichever is earlier.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts,
deeds and things and to sign all such documents as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto
to give effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Mohua Datta Gupta
30th September, 2024 Company Secretary

Notes:

1. General Circular No. 09/2023 dated 25.09.2023 MCA has extended the time period for holding of
AGM/ EGM or passing of Ordinary / Special Resolution through ”Video Conferencing” till 30th
September 2024. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA
Circulars, the 16th AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, generally a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself. The proxy need not be a
member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM.

KMRC
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3. The statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the item of special
business is annexed and forms part of the notice.

4. The meeting is being held by shorter notice.
5. Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

6. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
item of special business set out in the Notice convening the 16" Annual General Meeting to be
held on 30" September, 2024

SPECIAL BUSINESS ITEM
Item No. 3

Government of India, Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) vide Order No. 2021/E(O)I1/40/4 dated 05.02.2024
conveyed appointment of Smt Ambika Jain. IRAS as Director (Finance) of the Company as an additional
charge in addition to her own as PFA/Metro Railway/Kolkata with effect from 02.02.2024 and till the
completion of the Project or until further order, whichever is earlier.

Smt Ambika Jain assumed charge from 02.02.2024.

The ordinary resolution set out under item no. 3 of the Notice is intended for the purpose. Smt Ambika
Jain may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the resolution. No other Director, Key Managerial
Personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested financially or otherwise in the Resolution.

Copy of the aforesaid letter of Ministry of Railways (Railway Board) is available for inspection of Members
at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours upto the date of the meeting and will also
be available at the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Sd/-
Place: Kolkata Mohua Datta Gupta
30th September, 2024 Company Secretary
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present its 16™ Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2024, Report of the Statutory Auditors and Comments of the Comptroller
and Auditor-General of India.

Financial highlights

During the year under report, the Company continued to be engaged in implementing the ‘East West Metro Corridor’
Project - a rail based mass rapid transit system connecting Salt Lake Sector V in the east to Howrah Maidan in the
west covering a distance of 16.55 kilometres - out of which 5.74 kilometres is elevated portion and 10.81 kilometres
underground corridor.

Profit/(Loss) after Tax as per ‘Statement of Profit and Loss’ forming part of the financial statements for the year ended
31st March,2024 amounting to (Rs.1,00,920/-) has been adjusted against ‘Reserves & Surplus’ under the head ‘Other
Equity’ in the Balance Sheet on that date.

The Company had no subsidiary, associate or joint venture company during the year under report.
Status of the Project

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. (‘KMRCL’') was formed in July’2008 as a joint venture company of Government
of India and Government of West Bengal with equal (50:50) equity participation for execution of EAST WEST METRO
Corridor in Kolkata. Later, as stated in earlier Reports, Government of India had decided on 23rd August, 2012 that
the ‘East West Metro Project’ be transferred to Ministry of Railways (hereafter ‘MoR’) and executed as a Central
Sector Project. As per the decision, MoR will hold 74% equity of the Company and Ministry of Urban Development
balance 26%. All shares held in the Company by Government of West Bengal (‘GoWB’) were thereafter transferred
to MoR. Ministry of Urban Development has since been renamed as Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (hereafter
‘MoHUA).

Hon’ble Minister for Railways had announced (in August 2015) that the Project will be executed as per realigned route
proposed by GoWB and all costs in this regard will be borne by Government of India.

Government of India also decided that the Company as the Project Implementation Unit would continue to function
till the completion of execution of the aforesaid Project. However, Government of India will hold all the shares of the
Company and after completion of the Project would run the same along with North South Corridor under a unified
control. As mandated the revenue services is undertaken by Metro Railway, Kolkata who will be in charge of operation
& maintenance of the system.

The unique features of this corridor are:
o 1st transportation tunnel under any mighty river in India

® Corridor connects major terminals Howrah &Sealdah having a combined footfall of 22 lakhs passengers, North
- South metro line with upcoming Joka Esplanade Metro Line at Esplanade Metro Station& Interchanging
facilities at Saltlake Sector-V with proposed Garia — Bimanbandar metro project.

® Howrah Metro Station is the deepest metro station in India
() Deepest Metro Ventilation cum Egress shaft of India at Strand Road
® Institution of Civil Engineers, UK/ICE had recognized this project among 200 global projects which had significant

impacts in making people lives better.

It was elucidated in earlier reports that the Project had faced numerous land acquisition, rehabilitation related
hindrances and realignment issues. All the issues are now resolved although challenges in execution still persist which
are detailed in this Report.

The Project has been planned to be completed in phases. The details of commissioning of the sections in different
phases are as under:

KMRC
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Phase Sub Phase Section Length Date of commissioning
Phase-I A Saltlake Sector-V to Salt Lake Stadium 5.30 Km 14.02.2020

IB Salt Lake Stadium to Phoolbagan 1.67 Km 05.10.2020

IC Phoolbagan to Sealdah 2.33 Km 14.07.2022
Phase-lI IIA Howrah Maidan to Esplanade 4.80 Km 15.03.2024

II'B Esplanade to Sealdah 2.45 Km Planned in March’2025

Out of 16.55 KM of the corridor, 14.10 Km from Salt Lake Sector-V to Sealdah [ 9.30 Km] & Howrah Maidan to
Esplanade [4.80 Km] has already been opened for the public. Balance 2.45 Km of Underground Section between
Esplanade &Sealdah has been planned for completion in the month of March’2025.

Main Reasons for delay in construction:
The main reasons for delay in completion of the project are due to following:

(i) The realignment of the route due to problem of land availability, traffic block and better connectivity was
proposed by Government of West Bengal in 2012 and finally settled in Aug’2015. Pending finalization of
realignment issues the part of the Project remained suspended ( Underground section between Howrah Maidan
to Esplanade).

(i)  NOC from Ministry of Defence [Clearance in Mar’2017] for Esplanade

(iii) NOC from Archaeological Survey of India [Clearance in Jun’2017] for Mahakaran

(iv) Impact of Pandemic of Covid 19

(v) Three major construction eventualities occurred on 31.08.2019, 11.05.2022 & 14.10.2022 in Bowbazar area.

(a) Tunnel inundation in WB tunnel between Sealdah - Esplanade section at Bowbazar area on 31.08.2019 -
Severe ingress of water mixed with soil inside the Tunnel Boring Machine when the TBM was passing below
dense built-up locality at Bowbazar [West Bound- TBM1] which resulted considerable surface settlement
and endangered some buildings in the influence zone of the tunnel.

(b) Water ingress with soil in Retrieval shaft area at Bowbazar on 11.05.2022 during construction of Base slab
of cast in situ RCC box.

(c) Water ingress with soil in Cross Passage work ( CP-2) at Bowbazar on 14.10.2022
Cost & Time over-run

The Project cost has increased due to additional expenditure involved in implementation of the Project due to re-
alignment of the route, increase in footprint area of three major stations i.e. Howrah, Esplanade &Sealdah, price
escalation due to additional time, change in market dynamics in the Metro sector and due to delay in execution and
fluctuation of Indian currency in international market, etc. The Company submitted a revised Project cost amounting
to Rs. 8996.96 crore to MoR in year 2015-16. After review by a committee appointed by Prime Minister’s Office, the
same is pruned down to Rs. 8574.98 crore (against sanctioned cost of Rs. 4874.58 crore) which has been approved
vide Railway Board’s order dated 22-10-2020. The sanctioned Revised Cost Estimate had following basis:-

(i) The price level for revised cost estimate was December, 2017.

(ii) The Price Variation paid upto December, 2017 was in-built in the RCE and projected PVC upto December, 2020
was captured.

(iii) The project completion was taken as June, 2021.

Due to the reasons mentioned above, there is time over run of about four years with respect to what was projected
in sanctioned revised cost estimate. The proposed revised cost estimate (RCE-2) has increased due to time over run
due to price variation, increase in Taxes, Difference in cost of State and Central wages, variation, change in scope of
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work, prolongation of Project Management Consultancy (PMC) & fluctuation of Indian currency in international market
etc. The Company has submitted a proposed Revised Cost Estimate [RCE-2] amounting to Rs. 10,442.41 Crores to
MoR& the said proposed Revised Cost Estimate [RCE-2] is under consideration of MoHUA and MoR.

Major achievements during 2023-2024 and after March, 2024
Achievement during 2023-2024:

The Phase-lIA of 4.80 Km length from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade was inspected by Commissioner of Railway Safety
on 05.02.2024 & 06.02.2024 and Authorisation for opening was received on 12.02.2024. The section between Howrah
Maidan to Esplanade (4.80Km) has been commissioned since 15.03.2024 after inauguration of the section by Hon’ble
Prime Minister of India on 06.03.2024.

The connection of the corridor for the twin cities of Howrah & Kolkata Station was a major landmark in the financial
year 2023-2024. Thesetwocities have beenconnected through tunnel undertheriverHooghly through train
communication.ltisanengineeringmarvelasforthefirsttimeinourcountry,Metro train is plyingundermighty river Hooghly since
15.03.2024.

@® Underground Corridor civil works [ Howrah Maidan to Esplanade]:

B The tunnelling part of underground corridor comprises of twin tunnels being implemented by ‘Tunnel
Boring’ method using precast concrete segmental tunnel liners. There are 4 underground stations in Phase-
Il has been executed by ‘cut & cover’ method using diaphragm walls as retaining system. Civil work of all
four underground stations [ Howrah Maidan, Howrah, Mahakaran& Esplanade] has been completed except
two openings at East end of Esplanade station has been kept for the logistics supports for the execution
of works in Esplanade &Sealdah section.

B The summary of tunnelling activity in Phase-Il are:

Contract Stretch Tunnel Tunneling length | Tunneling completed %
Package (Metre) (Metre) Completion
UG/2 Esplanade to East Bound 4892 4892 100
Sealdah West Bound 4892 4886 99.87*
UG/1 | Howrah Maidan | East Bound 7,600 7600 100
to Esplanade West Bound 7600 7600 100

*Only 38m length is balance in which retrieval shaft to connect West Bound Circular tunnel at BowBazar Area
where water ingress had happened in TBM in Aug’2019. 32 m length of Cast In Situ Box Tunnel has been completed
and balance 6m opening will be closed in West Bound Tunnel after completion of Track Work and other system
works in West Bound Tunnel.

B All four UG Stations are commissioned. System works, Entry structure & architectural finishing works in all
4 UG Stations in Phase-lIA are completed except two openings in Esplanade station which are being used
as access for balance work of retrofitting of damaged Tunnel , track and system works in the Tunnels between
Esplanade and Sealdah, which is targeted to be completed by February 2025.

B The intermediate emergency evacuation-cum-ventilation shaft at Strand Road (In between Howrah and
Mahakaran station) along with the adit connections including system works has been completed &
commissioned.

@® Track work

Entire Head Hardened Rails for ballast-less track for Phase-I & Phase-Il have been procured from abroad. The
work of track linking from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade in East Bound & West Bound Tunnel has been completed
& commissioned [Phase-1IA]. Track works from Esplanade to Sealdah is also completed for interchanging of rakes
from Central Park Depot to Howrah Maidan & vice versa. Part of the Track work in west Bound Tunnel between
Sealdah and Bowbazar for approx 2.00 Km is also completed. Balance length of 0.45 Km is still left for execution
in West Bound Tunnel from Sealdah to Esplanade.

O
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Rolling Stock

The tender for supply, manufacturing and testing of 14 rakes. each of 6 car formation, was awarded to BEML
Ltd. in 2015-16 at a total cost of INR 899.91 crore. Thus, cost per car without taxes works out to be INR 9.38
crore. All the 14 rakes have been delivered. The additional 3 rakesi.e. 15,16 and 17 have been ordered to BEML
Ltd. Additional 03 rakes will arrive in Kolkata between 30.09.2024 and 31.12.2024.

Power Supply

Power supply work for entire corridor is entrusted with Siemens Ltd. Power supply work has been completed
between Howrah Maidan to Esplanade Section including all four underground stations and also between Sealdah
to Sector -V section, which includes 2 underground & 6 elevated stations. The power supply work is held up in
tunnel section between Esplanade and Sealdah due to no access available at present.

Escalators and elevators

All lifts & escalators in Phase-Il. have already been commissioned and certified by Lift Inspector. All Lifts and
escalators in Phase-Il have been commissioned and certified by Lift Inspector.

Tunnel Ventilation System(‘TVS’)

TVS shall provide a means to control smoke flow and ensure safe evacuation of passengers in case of fire as well
as maintain an acceptable environment in the tunnel and station track way during congestion. The work of TVS
for entire corridor has been awarded to M/s.UMPESL.

TVS works are completed in Ph-1 & Ph-Il and commercial operation already started except Mode Testing between
Esplanade East to Sealdah West.

Signalling, Telecom and Automatic Fare Collection(AFC) works

The installation of Communication Based Train Control(CBTC) system is being done by M/s.. HSTS for the whole
East-West Metro corridor. AFC work has been awarded to M/s. Indra Sistemas SA, Spain. The Phase | part of
the work for Sector-V to Sealdah (except West Bound PF of Sealdah) had already been completed and opened
for passenger operations earlier on 14" July’2022. Signalling& Telecom works of four stations of Phase 2A, i.e.
Howrah Maidan, Howrah Metro, Mahakaran and Esplnade have been completed and revenue services started
on 15.3.2024. The work in the section between Esplanade &Sealdah is in progress and S&T installation likely to
be completed by January’2025.

The AFC work for all stations under East-West Metro Project has been completed and commissioned for revenue
operations.

E&M works in Underground section.

The E&M Work of Ph-I is commissioned. E&M work for Ph-Il from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade has been
commissioned, however, some minor defects & deficiencies rectification works are in progress. The work of
tunnelling from Esplanade to Sealdah including egress shaft work is in progress and all electrical works are being
synchronized with the civil engineering works.

Environmental Control System(‘ECS’) work

The work of ECS system for Phase-Il underground stations from Howrah Maidan to Esplanade has been
commissioned and in operation. However, some minor defects & deficiencies rectification works are being done
for betterment.

Platform Screen Doors(PSDs) Platform Screen Gates (PSGs)

PSD work for 6 underground stations and PSG(half-height platform screen gates) work for 6 elevated stations
has been awarded to M/s. CRRC.

Half Height PSG has been commissioned in all the 6(six) elevated stations in Feb’2020.

Full Height PSD system has been installed & commissioned in all the 6(six) undergroundstations. However,
integration of PSDs with signalling is pending at Sealdah (WestPlatform) .
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Rehabilitation efforts of the Company

The demolished buildings shall be reconstructed and the repairable buildings shall be structurally repaired and
structural health thereof will be verified by experts. As the outstay of the shifted residents in these two categories
of buildings is considerable, furnished residential flats have been arranged for them by the company at present**.

**The contract has been awarded on ‘Design and Build” basis and lump sum cost. Therefore, there should not be any
impact on the Company due to this incident as this is within contractual obligation. ITD ITD Cem JV has gone for
arbitration in connection with Bow Bazar Tunnel water ingress incident. The AT award has been given in favour of
ITD-ITD Cem JV. However, the company has challenged the said award under section 34 of Arbitration & Conciliation
Act’1996 in Hon’ble high Court.

EFFECTS OF BOWBAZAR INCIDENTS AT A GLANCE

Category Particulars 1*Incident | 2™ Incident | 3™ Incident | Total
31.08.2019 | 11.05.2022 | 14.10.2022

People People evacuated from Buildings 710 154 192 1056
People shifted to Hotel 693 154 192 1039
People re-instated after repair 406 144 192 742
People rehabilitated at alternative
accommodation.(Flats) 298 10 0 308
Compensation made to families (One time) 202 0 27 229
No. of Flats (Rented) provided after the incident 71 32 1 104
No. of Flats ( Rented ) provided as on date 70 4 0 74

Buildings | Affected Buildings 72 9 12 93
Buildings Demolished 23 2 0 25
Buildings repaired 39 7 12 58
Buildings under observations 10 0 0 10

Shops Shops affected 81 21 30 132
Shop owners compensated ( one time ) 77 16 28 121
Shops repaired & rehabilitated 0 19 30 49
Alternative Shops / rented shops provided 32 2 0 34

Timeline for completing the balance section from Esplande toSealdah (Phase-II B):-

Due to three water ingress incidents in west bound tunnel at Bowbazar area,resulted in major changes in construction
works sequences in testing saturated soil condition having technical challenges which was not emphasized earlier.
These are:

A. 1%Incident dated 31.08.2019:
a) Shaft for retrieving TBM had to be constructed at incident location in West Bound Tunnel

b) Retrofitting of distressed tunnel liner by Steel Liner and Peripheral grouting in West Bound Tunnel
[ Spot-1]

B. 2™ Incident dated 11.05.2022:

a) Construction of base slab & cast insitu tunnel

b) Closure of Opening at Retrieval shaft, Bowbazar
C. 3" Incident dated 14.10.2022:

a) Closure of Cross Passage no. -2 in West Bound

O)
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b) Retrofitting of distressed tunnel liner by Steel Liner and Peripheral grouting in East Bound [spot-3]& West
Bound Tunnel [Spot-4] at Cross passage -2 locations

D. Other construction work:

a) Egress Shaft has been introduced for NBC Compliance, in lieu of Cross Passage [CP-1, 2 and 3] due to similar
geology & Retrofitting in East Bound tunnel at Egress shaft location [Spot-2]

b) Omission of Intermediate Ventilation Shaft at Subodh Mallick Square
c¢) Relocation of Cross passage [CP-5B].

d) Shifting of Drainage Arrangement from CP-3 location to Egress Shaft
e) Reconstruction of demolished building

Overcoming Constraints for the balance critical work having technical challenging works between Sealdah and
Esplanade :

Completing Critical works in Sealdah — Esplanade [2.45 Km] has an impact on Commissioning of Phase-IIB For executing
the balance critical works having technical challenges, the company has engaged Foreign Expert for providing technical
guidance to complete the balance critical works between Sealdah and Esplanade tunnel section for the following
critical works, majority of which has been completed after March’2023. The present statuses of critical works are as
follows:

1. Construction of One cross passages CP 5B connecting east bound and west bound tunnels has been completed.

2. Construction of Egress Arrangement at Bowbazar Retrieval Shaft location is under progress by eliminating three
Cross passages (CP1, CP2 & CP3).

3. Construction of IV shaft at Subodh Mallick Square with individual connections of ventilation adits to both the
tunnels has been eliminated by operating the both fans [ Supply & Exhaust fans] at Sealdah& Esplanade.

4. Completion of the box tunnel of 38 mtrs. length inside the retrieval shaft and closure of the retrieval shaft.32m
of box tunnel is completed .

5. Retrofitting of Tunnel Section at Retrieval shaft at Bowbazar (Spot 1) in West Bound Tunnel has been completed.
6. Closure of cross passage (CP2) has been completed.

7. Retrofiiting of Tunnel Section near CP-2 location in East Bound Tunnel (Spot 3) and West Bound Tunnel (Spot
4) is in progress.

8. Retrofitting of Tunnel Section in East Bound Tunnel adjacent to Egress Shaft (Spot 2) shall be taken up after
completion of retrofitting works of CP-2 locations in East Bound.

Resettlement and Rehabilitation

The Company has a well-defined resettlement and rehabilitation policy for the welfare of Project affected persons
whose number was estimated at 677 along the original alignment. However, this figure has significantly reduced as
there will be no requirement of rehabilitation at new Mahakaran and Esplanade station areas on revised alignment.
Presently there is no bottleneck related to rehabilitation issues in this Project.

Major rehabilitation of the Project affected persons have been done in following locations:
® Shree Market complex (comprising 129 shops) in Howrah Maidan area
® Shifting 7 nos. commercial shops in front of erstwhile Bangabasi theatre in Howrah Maidan area

® Shifting 30 nos. temporary shops at Phoolbagan out of which 18 have been permanently shifted back to erstwhile
location

® Rehabilitation of 63 nos. KMC sweepers’ quarters at Swabhumi by permanent rehabilitation flats

® Rehabilitating 80 families in Duttabad settlement by permanent rehabilitation flats.
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Environmental issues

A project of the size of ‘East-West Metro’ passing through the most densely populated areas of Kolkata is having huge
environmental challenges. The Company factored this challenge in its planning since inception of the Project.

Both the original Project as well as revised proposal was cleared from environmental criteria by West Bengal Pollution
Control Board as well as Environment Department of GoWB. The Company is strictly implementing the Environmental
Management Plan as indicated in the EIA study report.

The stations are being executed complying norms of Indian Green Building Council as far as practicable. The Depot
is designed as green depot with silver rating of LEED.

The ‘East-West Metro’ Project values preservation of the environment and minimising adverse impact on the greenery.
About 1,335 trees have been removed for execution of the Project. All these trees have been identified with the
representative of the local municipality which owned these trees and 6,900 trees have been planted in replacement
at a total cost of Rs. 45.61 lakh.

International recognition

Considering significant impacts in making people’s life better, the’East-West Metro’ Project has been selected as one
of the best 200 projects worldwide by Institution of Civil Engineering, UK (a renowned global engineering forum).This
is considered to be a remarkable feat.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings & outgo

The Company has initiated various energy conservation measures at the design stage to ensure optimal use and also
selecting appropriate technology for various systems. However, the detailed measures are as under :

A) Conservation of Energy -
(i) the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.
® LED-type lighting has been envisaged in the stations and in train coaches.

® Provision of Platform Screen Doors in underground stations, which would reduce air conditioning requirement
substantially and thereby reduce consumption of non-traction energy.

® Rolling stock planned to be procured for the Project envisages regenerative braking- so that power is
generated at the time of braking, which would be consumed by other powering trains running in the system.

(ii) Elevated station architecture kept in such a way to use natural lights in day time to the extent possible. Use of
polycarbonate sheets on elevated stations has been given a fillip to reduce carbon footprint.

(iii) High COP- type air-conditioning units have been envisaged for underground stations along with energy management
system so as to optimize use of chillers, cooling towers, pumps, etc.

(iv) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy.

Large banks of solar cells shall be provided at the Maintenance Depot to generate energy for internal consumption.
Depot layout has been kept in such a way so as to use natural lights to the extent possible.

(v) The capital investment on energy conservation equipment.
This will be quantified at an appropriate stage of the Project

(B) Technology absorption -

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The mandate of the Company is to implement the Project. Efforts shall be made in procurement stage to explore
the possibility of technology absorption.

(i) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

The benefits derived shall be detailed at appropriate stage in future.
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Improved Opportunities for Economic Development —

This project will provide easy access to existing commercial and institutional areas, as well as encouraging similar
development above the stations and along the corridor through management of growth in the form of Transit
Oriented Development. The Project is an effort to mitigate ever growing transportation demand in Kolkata and
its surrounding and it will substantially reduce traffic congestion and environmental pollution in Kolkata. This
line shall also have interchange facilities with upcoming Joka Esplanade Metro Line at Esplanade as per revised
alignment. Interchange facilities will be also be provided at Sealdah and Howrah Stations with Eastern Railway
as well as major bus terminal at Esplanade. The completion of the new East West Line will promote regional
economic growth and improve urban environment by mitigating traffic congestion and air pollution.

Benefits of East West Metro Project:

Kolkata East West Metro Project itself is a modern, safe, eco-friendly mass transportation system which will
eradicate the vehicular pollution, traffic congestion and road accidents in the city of Kolkata and surrounding
urban areas to a great extent. It will boost up the mass transport scenario of the region providing a fast river
communication for the twin cities of Howrah and Kolkata. It is estimated that about 7,5 lakhs people will use
this system daily in year 2035. Proper Environmental Impact Assessment [EIA] was done for the project at the
inception stage and compliance against the statutory environmental norms has been religiously implemented.

Major environmental and social impacts would occur during project implementation (e.g. involuntary resettlement,
poverty reduction, impacts on the natural environment).

Congestion Mitigation — Taking the existing trips to the city core (Mahakaran and Central) from the major
transport hubs (Sealdah and Howrah) and residential area (Salt Lake City and future Rajarhat New Town).

Safety and Security — Provision of platform screen doors and state of the art signaling system for the passengers.

Improved Air Quality and reducing sound pollutions — reducing bus trips and catering to increased trip demand
as well as providing a better transport system for people to switch over from cars and taxis.

Improved Quality of Life — adding to the quality of life through pleasant and seamless journey experience with
near 100% time efficiency, reducing stress, air pollution and noise and traffic nuisance. Even the depot for train
stabling and maintenance will be design and built following the principles of eco-friendly and sustainable design.

Financial outlay

The revised budgeted allocation of MoR for the Company for 2023-24 was Rs. 600.00 crore. During the year
under report, MoR released Rs. 300.00 crore towards Subordinate Debt and Rs.200.00 crore towards Pass through
Assistance.

Share Capital
The authorised share capital of the Company for the time being is Rs. 3758.62 crore.

As on 31st March, 2024, the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital remained at Rs. 3758.62 crores. Equity holding
of the Ministry of Railways (including shares transferred by the Government of West Bengal) in the Company
was Rs. 2781.37 crore (74%) while that ofthe Ministryof Housing and Urban Affairs was Rs. 977.24 crores (26%).

Deposits

During the year under report, the Company did not invite deposits from public under Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Particulars of loans, investments and guarantee during the year under review
The Company has not
a) given any loan to any person or other body corporate

b) given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any other body corporate or person;
and
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c) acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate, as
prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Subsidiary, Associate and Joint Venture Company
The Company had no subsidiary, associate or joint venture company during the year under report.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company constituted by the Board comprised of the following Directors during

2023-24:

1. Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke (Non-executive) : Chairman
2. ShriJaideep (Non-executive) : Member
3.  Shri Dhananjaya Singh (Non-executive) : Member

During financial year ended 31.03.2024, the Committee met 4 (four) times —on 03.07.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023
and 21.03.2024.

Internal Auditors

Ghosh Basu & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been appointed Internal Auditors of the Company for
2023-24. The Audit Committee has reviewed functioning of the Internal Auditors and their periodic reports.

Statutory Auditors

Comptroller and Auditor General of India have appointed Raj Kumar Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Kolkata — 700001 as Statutory Auditor of the Company under Section 139 read with Section 129 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for the financial year 2023-24.

Auditors’ Report

Report of the Independent (Statutory) Auditors viz. Raj Kumar Kothari & Co. on financial statements of the
Company for year ended 31* March, 2024 is annexed.

Raj Kumar Kothari & Co. have audited in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Their responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. They are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to their audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and they have fulfilled their other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. They believe that the audit
evidence they have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for their opinion. And based on the
financial statements audited by them no qualified remarks have been observed. The notes on financial statements
referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self explanatory and do not call for any further comments. There are no
specifications, reservations, adverse remarks on disclosure by the statutory auditors in their report. They have
not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company during the year under review.

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OFTHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ONTHE ACCOUNTS OF KOLKATA METRO RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on the financial statements for the year ended 31* March,
2024 under section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 are also annexed.

CAG has highlighted certain significant matters as stated therein for a better understanding of the financial statements
and the related audit report. Explanations thereto are given as under:

!Against loan ID-P263 (% 7.19 crore)and loan ID-P295 (¥ 2.40 crore) at an exchangerate of 0.5509 INR for Japanese Yen
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1)

2)

3)

Comments on Financial Position

BALANCE SHEET

Assets-Non-Current Assets

(b) Capital Work-in-Progress-Note No.5 & 6

Pre-operative Expenditure (Pending Allocation) - Note No. 6
X 47.44 crore

Borrowing Cost-Note 6.1

Non-Current Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings-Note 14- % 5,011.20 crore

TheBorrowing Cost did not include ¥ 9.59 crorel being interest accrued on loan taken from Japan
International Co-operation Agency for the period from 20 October 2023 to 31 March 2024.

This had resulted in understatement of Non-current Assets-'Pre-operative Expenditure (Pending allocation)’
by ¥ 9.59 crore as well as understatement of Non Current Liabilities-Borrowings by the same amount.

The East-West Metro Corridor project is financed through JICA loan for which Ministry of Finance holds the
sovereign guarantee for repayment. All disclosure in KMRCL Account is purely notional and the figures are taken
from CAAA (MoF) ledger. For loan tranche ID — 263 & 295, interest is calculated biannually, once on 20th, April
and another on 20th, October of every year. Therefore, interest paid upto 20-10-2023 has been accounted in
FY 2023-24. In 2022-23, interest upto 20-10-2022 was accounted and therefore, interest for the twelve months
intervening period w.e.f 21-10-2022 to 20-10-2023 has been accounted for in the FY 2023-24 and this is a
continuous process. And, therefore no short provisioning of interest in F.Y 2023-24.

Statutory Auditor also agrees to the Management Views that there is no understatement of borrowing cost
under pre-operative expenditure as well as borrowing (non-current).

Assets-Non-Current Assets
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress -NoteNo.5 & 6
Other Financial Assets (Note No. 7) ¥ 253.70 crore

The Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) included11.41 crore being reimbursement of State Goods and Service
Tax (SGST) to two? contractors/consultants.

Asper the Accounting Policy No 3.7 of the Company' reimbursement of SGST' is show nunder Non-Current
Assetsas 'SGST receivable' with acor responding reduction from CWIP. Therefore, the SGST receivable amounting
to ¥ 11.41 crore should have been reduced from CWIP.

This had resulted in over statement of CWIP by 11.41 crore and understatement of Other Financial Assets
-SGST receivable from GoWB by the same amount.

% 7.24 crores SGST was reimbursed to M/s Transtonnelstroy Afcons JV in FY 2022-23 and ¥ 4.17 crores SGST
was reimbursed to General Consultant for invoices of earlier years and this reimbursement was made in FY 2019-
20. C&AG while auditing the party wise ledgers for 2023-24 has noted these transactions and has mentioned
that the transactions should be adjusted against ‘Receivables from State Govt.’ rather than CWIP’. Statutory
Auditor also agrees to the C&AG comments on these transaction. EManagement assures that the ledgers will
be re-adjusted in F.Y 2024-25.

This re-classification will however not impact the financials in any way, as the non-current asset is neither over
or understated.

Assets - Non-Current Assets

Capital Work in progress

Pre-operative expenditure (Pending allocation)-Note 6
Other Administrative expense-Note 21.2 3 123.50 crore

The above includes an amount of 31.43 core being deposit made by the Company under the direction of
High Court of Kolkata for challenging an arbitration award.

2UG-1contractorviz M/sTranstonnelstroy Afcons JV and the General Consultant of the projects
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The same should have been classified as 'Advance other than Capital Advance' instead of disclosing the
same as'Pre-Operative expenditure'. This has resulted in overstatement of'Pre-operative expenditure (pending
allocation)' and the understatement of 'Other Assets' (Non-current) to an extent of ¥ 31.43 crore.

A Cash Deposit of Rs.31,43,35,114/- was to be put in by way of a Demand Draft in f/o ‘The Registrar, Original
side, High Court, Calcutta’ regarding an appeal made by KMRCL at Kolkata High Court (case no. AP/749/2023)
against the arbitration award favouring of ITD _ITD Cem JV.This was as per Hon’ble Justice order the award-
debtor will secure the awarded amount of Rs.62,86,70,229/-, 50% by way of Cash and 50% by way of a Bank
Guarantee.The transaction as above, is not an advance payable against any arbitral decree, it was deposited to
comply the court order pending decision of the appeal.

And, that’s why, it has been accounted for as ‘Pre-Operative Expenditure (pending allocation)’ and according
to the management and the Statutory Auditor, there is no overstatement of Pre-operative expenses.

Assets-Non-CurrentAssets
Capital Work in Progress -Note-5
Power Supply- X 347.49 crore

The above includes an amount of ¥ 14.75 crore being energy bills raised by the Company against Metro Railway
for electricity charges incurred for commercial operation of the project done by Metro Railway, Kolkata. This
amount should have been shown as 'receivable from Metro Railway'instead of disclosing the same as CWIP.

This has resulted in understatement of 'receivable from Metro Railway, Kolkata' by ¥ 14.75 crore and over
statement of CWIP by the same amount.

KMRCL is paying the Traction Energy Charges for the portion where commercial operation has been commenced
and demand has been placed for reimbursement from Metro Railway.Upto March’24, the outstanding claim is
¥ 37.53 crores.In KMRCL’s book of accounts, ¥ 22.78 crores is under ‘Receivables from Metro Railway’ and earlier
transactions amounting to ¥ 14.75 crores are showing under the ledger of ‘Power Supply’.

However, as suggested, ¥ 14.75 crores will be shifted from the ledger ‘Power Supply’ to ‘Receivables from Metro
Railway’ for consolidation.

Assets-Current Assets Financial Assets
Bank Balance Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents-Note-10
I 219.77crore

The above includes fixed deposits of ¥ 31.43 crore held against a bank guarantee. As per Division-Il of Schedule-
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 clause 6(C)(b)of the 'General instructions for preparations of financial statements
of a company', 'balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings,
guarantees, other commitments shall be disclosed separately'.

However, the company had not separately disclosed the fixed deposits of ¥ 31.43croreheldagainsta bankguarantee.

In compliance to High court, Kolkata’s order, Rs.62.87 crore has already been booked in the annual account in
the form of a Bank Guarantee of Rs.31.43 crores, with an FD of the same amount as security and an amount of
¥ 31.43 crores paid to The Registrar, High Court, Calcutta by way of a DD.The cash outgo for the Fixed Deposit
as collateral to BG and the Demand Draft has been properly accounted for. Therefore, there is no deviation in
generating the cash flow statement and the Balance Sheet. However, C&AG observed that the incidence of the
BG should have been mentioned as contingent liability in ‘notes to accounts’ . Statutory Auditor also agrees to
the C&AG view although this will not affect the main account.

As observed, it will be rectified while preparing the financial statement for the year ending 31* March, 2025,
and the incidence of BG will be mentioned in ‘notes to the accounts’ as ‘Contingent Liability’ till finalisation of
the pending court case.

Commentson Accounting Policy
Notes to financial statements Accounting policies (Note 2.1)

A reference is invited to Note 2.1 'Accounting Policies' wherein it has inter-alia been stated that' a policy has
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been adopted by the management of the organisation in accordance to the guidance of Ministry of Railways to
transfer the assets from Capital-work-in-progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the project and not phase
wise completion;

However, the Ministry of Railways communication (2018) stated that after completion of execution of the project,
Metro Railway, Kolkata would run the East West

Metro Corridor along with the North-South Corridor under a unified control'. The Ministry of Railways
communication did not specify any accounting treatment or any accounting instruction to transfer the assets
from Capital-Work-in-Progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the project.

Accordingly, the Note 2.1 is not in conformitywith the guidance of the Ministry of Railways.

Railway Board’s letter ref. n0.2011/Proj/c/21/1 Pt.| dated 04.01.2018 states that O&M of the E-W Metro corridor
will be the responsibility of the Metro Railway.Management is mentioning that the book transfer of the asset
will be made after completion of the entire project.

The contention of the Management is due to —

A. Though commercial operations have already been started from Salt Lake Sector V to Sealdah and Esplanade
to Howrah Maidan, most of the major contracts awarded are for the entire stretch and cannot be segregated.

B. Many of the assets created (primarily Rolling Stocks, Electrical and S&T assets are meant for the entire
projects and these are interrelated works. Valuation of the same is possible only after completion and
commissioning of the entire project.

Hence, without completion of the entire project and commencement of commercial operation of the entire
stretch, the assets, duly valued, cannot be transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment from CWIP and consequently
depreciation also cannot be charged.Management is mentioning the Railway Board’s letter in notes to accounts
regarding transfer of assets considering the intrinsic sprit of the letter.

However, C&AG observed that since explicitly not mentioned, this letter should not be referred to while submitting
the financial statements. Statutory Auditor also agrees to C&AG view.

As observed, the reference to the Railway Board’s letter will not be mentioned while preparing the financial
statement for the year ending 31° March,2025.

Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

The Company did not disclose a contingent liability in respect of award of arbitration amounting ¥ 62.87 crore
which was challenged in the Calcutta High Court by the Company.

Rs. 62.87 crore has already been expended by the company in the form of a Bank Guarantee of Rs. 31.43 crores,
with an FD of the same amount as security and an amount of Rs. 31.43 crores been paid to The Registrar, High
Court, Calcutta by way of a DD.

Hence, disclosure of the definite amount, which has already been spent and accounted for in the current financial
statement, as contingent liability does not arise.

Secretarial Audit Report

In compliance of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board appointed D. Raut & Associates, Company Secretaries to undertake such audit
for the financial year 2023-24.

Copy of the Report given by them dated 24" September, 2024 is also annexed.
Board of Directors
The strength of the Board for the time being is 10 (ten) Directors out of a maximum 15 (fifteen).

The Board records its sincere appreciation of the valuable services rendered by ShriH. N. Jaiswal andShri
Angshuman Sarkar during their association with the Company as Directors.
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In compliance of Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Company is required to have at least two
“independent director” as defined by Section 2(47) of the Act on the Board for the time being. The Company
had noindependent director in the Board of Directors of the Company during the year under review. Request
has been made to the Railway Board, Ministry of Railways for appointment of independent director.

Smt Ambika Jain, IRAS has been appointed as Director (Finance) of the Company as an additional charge in
addition to herown asPFA/Metro Railway Kolkata with effect from the date of assumption of charge i.e.
02.02.2024till completion of the Project or until further order, whichever is earlier vide Railway Board’s Order
No. 2021/E(O)II/40/4 dated 31.01.2024.

In compliance of Section 152(2) of the Act, resolutions for confirming appointments of Smt Ambika Jain will be
proposed at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued a Notification dated 5th June, 2015. In terms of
the same, the provisions of Section 152(6) and 152(7) of the Act shall not apply to Government companies in
which the entire paid-up share capital is held inter alia by the Central Government. In view of the same, no
Director of the Company is required to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Number of meetings of the Board

During the financial year ended 31.03.2024, the Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (six) times on 08.05.2023,
03.07.2023, 08.08.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023 and 21.03.2024.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In compliance of Section 134(3)(c) and Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors states that in relation
to the annual accounts for the financial year 2023 -24:

1) the applicable accounting standards had been followed in the preparation thereof and there are no material
departures;

2) such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial statements were selected and applied
consistently and judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent had been made so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of financial year and of the income and
expenditure during that period;

3) proper and sufficient care had been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

4) the accounts had been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

5) proper and adequate systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

6) All applicable Secretarial Standards were complied with.
Extract of the Annual Return

Extract of the Annual Return in the prescribed form as provided under Section 92(3) of the Act is annexed
(Annexure-l).

Contracts or arrangements with related parties

The Company is a Central Public Sector Enterprise under administrative control of Ministry of Railways. Pursuant
to Paragraphs 25 & 26 of ‘Ind AS 24/, entities over which the same government has control or joint control of,
or significant influence, then the reporting entity and other entities shall be regarded as related parties. The
Company has availed the exemption available for government-related entities and have made limited disclosures
in the financial statements.
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The entities with which the Company had significant transactions during the year include (but not limited to)
Ministry of Railways and BEML.

(Rs./crore)

Nature of transaction For the year ended

31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023

Government entities
Funds received from Ministry of Railways 300.00 300.00
Funds received from Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs - -
Other entities

(a) for shifting of utilities & capital works
Kolkata Municipal Corporation 0.005 0.02
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd. - -
(b) for others

BEML Ltd. 8.01 102.97
Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd. 0.09 0.08
Total: 308.105 403.07

Details of transactions with ‘key managerial personnel’ during the year are given in Note 33 of the financial
statements.

Accordingly, the requirement for disclosure of related party transactions in terms of clause (h) of Section 134(3)
of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in ‘Form AOC-2’ is not applicable.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

The Board of Directors confirms that there are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year i.e. 31st March, 2024 (to
which the financial statements relate) and the date of this Report.

Employees

The Company during financial year 2023-24 had no employee whether regular, on deputation or contractual
who was in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Development and implementation of a risk management policy

The Company is currently implementing the ‘East West Metro Corridor’ Project. Government of India has decided
that the Company as the Project Implementation Unit would continue to function till the completion of execution
of Project. After completion of the Project, Government of India would run the same along with North South
Corridor under a unified control.

Ministry of Railways has advised that after completion of the ‘East West Metro Corridor’, 0&M thereof would
be done by Metro Railway, Kolkata.

Having regard to the above, formulating a risk management policy specific to operations of rail-based mass rapid
transport system will be considered at an appropriate time in future. To cover financial risks, adequate internal
control measures have been put in place [including internal audit done by an external firm of chartered accountants,
in addition to regular audit by the Independent Auditor as well as supplementary audit by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (CAG)].

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is in the project implementation stage. Based upon the profit for the financial year 2023-24 the
Company is not required to make contribution under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) regarding Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR).
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In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act read with applicable rules made thereunder the
Company has a duly constituted CSR Committee comprising of the following Directors:

(1) Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke, Nominee Director
(2) ShriJaideep, Nominee Director and

(3) Shri Sanjeet, Nominee Director

Memorandum of Understanding

In respect of Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) for the year 2023-24, since the Company is executing a
single project of construction and does not generate any revenue, the Department of Public Enterprises has
directed that the Ministry of Railways may continue with an internal MoU mechanism with the Company till it
is not operational and will subsequently get covered by the new MoU guidelines.

Report on Corporate Governance

The Company believes in adopting the best corporate governance practices. As required by the “Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises” issued by Department of Public Enterprises,
Government of India, a report on Corporate Governance is annexed as Annexure-ll. The same forms a part of
this Report.

Report on Management Discussion and Analysis

Management Discussion and Analysis Report, as stipulated forms part of the Annual Report and is also annexed
as Annexure-lll.

Significant and material orders passed by Regulators or Courts

There is no significant or material order passed by any regulator or court or tribunal impacting the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations.

Safety and wellbeing of women

The Company has in place an anti-sexual harassment policy. An ‘Internal Complaints Committee’ under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has also been set up. All
employees (including contractual) are covered under this policy. Details of complaints are as under:

i.  Number of complaints filed during the financial year — Nil

ii.  Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year — Nil

iii. Number of complaints pending as on the end of the financial year — Nil
Acknowledgements

The Board wishes to place on record the co-operation and untiring support received in execution of the Project
from the Government of India through Ministry of Railways (including Zonal Railways), Ministry of Housing and
Urban Affairs, Ministry Finance, and the Government of West Bengal.

The Board also records its appreciation for the cooperation and support received from The Kolkata Municipal
Corporation, Kolkata Metropolitan Development Authority, Kolkata Police, Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd., CESC Ltd.,
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Corporation Ltd. and various other authorities and agencies.

The help in the form of soft loan assistance extended by Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) to this
Project is invaluable. The Board deeply acknowledges the importance of this assistance in execution of the
Project.

The Board also acknowledges and extends its sincere thanks to various national and international contractors,
consultants and technical experts for their continued support and co-operation.
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The Board’s special appreciation and thanks are also due to the print and electronic media.

The residents, shopkeepers, pedestrians in different parts of Kolkata and Howrah where the construction activities
were and are in progress are inconvenienced by the activities on site. The Board is grateful to all these persons
and the citizens for bearing with these activities patiently, recognizing the potential of the Project in changing
the face of urban transport in the Greater Kolkata region.

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the untiring efforts, commitment, hard work and
contributions made by the employees of the Company at all levels and others for implementation of the Project.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Place: Kolkata P. U. K. Reddy
Date: 30" September, 2024 Chairman
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Annexure-|
EXTRACT FROM ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Registration and other details :
(i) CIN : U60100WB2008G0I127338
(ii) Registration Date : 9th July, 2008
(iii) Name of the Company . Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company . Public company/limited by shares
(v) Address of the Registered Office and : 'KMRCL Bhavan', HRBC Office Compound,
contact details Munshi Premchand Sarani,

Kolkata - 700021.
Tel: (033) 2213-4345
Fax: (033) 2213-4380

(vi) Whether listed company : No
(vii) Name, address and contact details of : Not Applicable

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Principal Business Activities of the Company :

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover:

Name and description of main NIC Code of the % to total
products/services product/service turnover
- Company in Project execution stage N.A. N.A.
Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies :Nil

Shareholding pattern (equity share capital break-up as percentage of total equity) :
Category-wise shareholding : Indian Promoters
Central Government (President of India) :

No of shares held at the beginning of the year :

Demat : Nil

Physical : 375,86,20,000
% of total shares : 100%

No of shares held at the end of the year :

Demat : Nil

Physical :  375,86,20,000
% of total shares : 100%

% change during the year 0%
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of
name of the year the year
% of total | % of shares % of total | % of shares | % of change
shares of pledged/ shares of | pledged/ in share-
the encumbered the encumbered holding
company to total company to total during the
shares shares year
1. President of India 278,13,79,200 74.00 0 278,13,79,200 74.00 0 0
(a/c. Ministry of
Railways)
2. President of India 97,72,40,000 26.00 0 97,72,40,000 26.00 0 0
(a/c. Ministry of
Urban
Development)
3. Nominees of
President of India 800 0 0 800 0 0 0
Total: 375,86,20,000 100.00 Nil 375,86,20,000 100 Nil Nil

(iii) Changes in Promoters' shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative shareholding during
the year the year
No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
of the Company of the Company
1. At the beginning of the year 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100
2. Date-wise increase/decrease - - - -

in Promoters' shareholding
during the year

specifying the reasons

for increase/ decrease 0 - 0 -

At the end of the year 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative shareholding
the year during the year

For each of the Top 10 No. of % of total shares No. of % of total shares
Shareholders shares of the Company shares of the Company

1. Shri D. K. Mishra 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
2. Shri Sandeep Jain 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
3. Shri Sudeep Shrivastav 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
4. Sri Ajeet Srivastava 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
5. Shri Dhananjaya Singh 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
6. Shri Rajesh Kumar Jain 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
7. Shri Ashish Singh 100 0.0001 100 0.0001
8. Shri Jaideep 100 0.0001 100 0.0001

(all the above shareholders are nominees of the President of India a/c Ministry of Railways & Ministry of
Housing and Urban Affairs)
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Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Name of Director/Key
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at beginning
of the year (01.04.2023)

No. of shares % of total shares

of the Company

BOARD OF

©)

DIRECTORS KMRC

Cumulative Shareholding at
end of the year (31.03.2024)

No. of shares

% of total shares
of the Company

1. Shri Jaideep 100 0.0001

100

0.0001

Note: Shri Jaideep is a Director of the Company. No other KMP held any shares during the year.

Indebtedness

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

Secured Loans Unsecured

excluding Loans

deposits () )

Deposits

®)

Total indeb-
tedness
R)

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
(i) Principal Amount 3,61,52,279.94

(ii) Interest due but not paid - -

(iii) Interest accrued but not due

3,61,52,279.94

Total (i +ii + iii)

3,61,52,279.94

3,61,52,279.94

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

- Addition 47,02,716.72 47,02,716.72
- Reduction - - -
Net Change 47,02,716.72 - 47,02,716.72

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year

(i) Principal Amount
(ii) Interest due but not paid
(iii) Interest accrued but not due

3,13,97,875.28

3,13,97,875.28

Total (i +ii +iii)

3,13,97,875.28

3,13,97,875.28

Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Gross salary -

(a) salary per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat equity

Commission - as % of profit
Others

Total

Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013

% 55,05,000/-

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

% 55,05,000/-
Not applicable
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VIl. Penalties/Punishments/Compounding of Offences

Section of the Brief Details of penalty/ Authority Appeal
Companies Act description punishment/com- [RD/NCLT/ made, if
pounding fees Court] any (give
imposed details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty Nil N.A. - - -
Punishment Nil N.A. - - -
Compounding Nil N.A. - - -

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty Nil N.A. - = =
Punishment Nil N.A. - = =
Compounding Nil N.A. - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nil N.A. - = o
Punishment Nil N.A. - - -
Compounding Nil N.A. - - -
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Annexure-I||

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance :
The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at:
(a) Enhancing long-term stakeholder value and its own wealth generating capacity through
® assisting top management in taking sound business decisions;
® prudent financial management.
(b) Achieving transparency and professionalism in all its decisions and activities.
(c) Adhering to the disclosure compliances.
(d) Achieving excellence in Corporate Governance by-
conforming to the prevalent guidelines on Corporate Governance and excelling in, wherever possible;
reviewing periodically the existing systems and controls for further improvements;
setting high ethical standards in conduct of business;

complying with laws and regulations;
® strategic guidance and effective monitoring by the Board.

Board of Directors :
Composition:

The Company is a 'Government company' within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. At present
the entire paid-up share capital is held by the President of India through Ministry of Railways (Administrative Ministry)
and Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs. In terms of Article 124(a) of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board of Directors shall consist of the following Directors :

(i) Directors nominated by the President of India through Ministry of Railways & Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs;

(i) Managing Director;

(iii) Whole-time Directors/Functional Director(s);
(iv) Director(s) nominated by the debenture holders;
(v) Independent Director(s).

In terms of Article 124(b), the President of India has the right by notice in writing addressed to the Company, to
nominate persons on the Board of the Company including its Chairman.

In terms of Article 125, strength of the Board shall not be less than three or more than fifteen directors. Government
of India has not yet advised the strength of the Board.

As on 31.03.2024 the number of Directors on the Board of the Company was 9 (nine), including 3 (three) functional
Directors viz., Managing Director, Director (Finance)and Director (Project & Pla nning), 1 (one) Director nominated
by the Government of West Bengal, 3 (three) Directors nominated by Ministry of Railways and 2 (two) Directors
nominated by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs.

Composition of the Board and the number of directorships held by the Directors as on 31.03.2024 is as under:

SI.No. | Name of Director | Category of Directorship
1 Shri Shri P. U. K. Reddy Chairman
2 Shri. V. K. Srivastava Managing Director
(Functional Director)
3 Smt. Ambika Jain Director (Finance)
(Functional Director)
4. Shri Syed Md Jamil Ahsan Director (Projects& Planning)
(Functional Director)
5. Shri Jaideep Nominee Director
6. Shri. Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke Nominee Director
7. Shri Dhananjaya Singh Nominee Director
8. Dr. Saumitra Mohan, IAS Nominee Director
9. Shri Sanjeet Nominee Director
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Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board are convened by giving appropriate notice after obtaining approval of Chairman. Structured
agenda notes and other papers backed by comprehensive background information are circulated to the Board members
seven days prior to the meeting for facilitating meaningful discussions at the meetings unless the meeting is called
by a short notice. Where it is not found practical or otherwise to attach or send the relevant background information
as part of the agenda notes/papers, the same are tabled at the meeting.

Meetings and attendance

During the financial year ended 31.03.2024, the Board of Directors of the Company met 6 (six) times on 08.05.2023,
03.07.2023, 08.08.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023 and 21.03.2024.

Attendance of Directors at Board meetings and at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) are as under:-

Name of Directors No. of Meeting attended Attendance at the last AGM
held on 19.09.2023
Shri. P. U. K. Reddy 6 Yes
Shri H. N. Jaiswal None N.A.
Shri V. K. Srivastava 5 Yes
Shri Angshuman Sarkar 5 Yes
Shri Syd. Md. Jamil Ahsan 6 Yes
Smt. Ambika Jain 1 N.A.
Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar 5 Yes
Shri Jaideep 5 Yes
Shri. Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke 5 Yes
Shri Dhananjaya Singh 5 Yes
Dr. Saumitra Mohan 2 Yes

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board meeting were recorded and entered in the minute book, signed by the
Chairman.

Audit Committeee:

The Audit Committee of the Company constituted by the Board comprised of the following Directors during
2023-24:

1. Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke (Non-executive) : Chairman
2. ShriJaideep (Non-executive) : Member
3. Shri Dhananjaya Singh (Non-executive) : Member

During financial year ended 31.03.2024, the Committee met 4 (four) times — on 03.07.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023
and 21.03.2024.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee. The representatives of the Auditors are also invited to
the meetings of the Committee. The Committee invites any officer of the Company in the meeting, whenever it is
required.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee (as approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 27.08.2009)
are as under:

1. Discussions with the Auditors periodically about the internal control system and the scope of audit including
observations of the auditors;

2. Review of annual financial statements before submission to the Board of Directors;

3.  Ensuring compliance of internal control systems;
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4. Investigations into any of the afore-stated matters or as may be referred to by the Board; and
5. Review of Management Information Systems, etc.

The role assigned to Audit Committee in terms of paragraph 4.2 of the "Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises" issued by Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Department of Public Enterprises in May, 2010 is also being followed.

The Committee acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory and Internal Auditors and the Board of Directors
and assesses the financial reporting system. The Audit Committee has been constituted only with non-functional
Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

In compliance of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, a "Nomination and Remuneration Committee" has been
constituted.

The Nomination & Remuneration is constituted with the following Directors:

1. Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke (Non-official Director) - Chairman
2. ShriJaideep (Non-official Director) - Member
3. Shri Sanjeet (Non-official Director) - Member

Non official Independent Directors are entitled to remuneration by way of sitting fee at the rate of Rs. 20,000/- for
attending each Board Meeting and Rs. 15,000/- for attending each Committee meeting.

The functional Directors are appointed by the President of India through the Ministry of Railways. Functional Directors
(except those who are on additional charge) are on deputation from the Ministry of Railways in the pay scale of the
parent cadre plus admissible allowances.

Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors has laid down the "Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior
Management" for maintaining standards and ensuring compliance with legal requirements. It is displayed on the
website of the Company.

Annual General Meetings:

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as follows:

Financial Year Date and Time Special resolution(s)

passed, if any

2022-23 19.09.2023at 15:30 Hours Through None
Video Conference

2021-22 29.11.2022 at 15:30 Hours Through None
Video Conference

2020-21 27.11.2021 at 12:30 Hours Through None
Video Conference

Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2023-24 will be held on 30.09.2024 at 16:00 hours through video
conference.

Disclosures:

i) Materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company
at large - there is no such transaction. However, the disclosure required under Accounting Standard AS 18 has
been incorporated in 'Notes to the Financial Statements'.

ii)  Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by any statutory
authority on any matter related to any guidelines issued by the Government, during the last three years - None.
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iii) Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee- the
Company has adopted a 'Whistle Blower Policy'. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

iv) Details of compliance with the requirements of the Guidelines - the Company has generally complied with the
requirements of the Guidelines.

v) Details of Presidential Directives issued by the Central Government and their compliance during the year and
also in the last three years - No Presidential Directive was received during the previous year.

vi) Items of expenditure debited in the books of account, which are not for the purposes of business — there is no
such item of expenditure during the year.

vii) Expenses incurred which are personal in nature and incurred for the Board of Directors and Top Management-
None.

Means of Communication:

The shares issued by the Company are not listed on any Stock Exchange. Hence, quarterly results are not published
in newspapers. However, annual audited financial results are displayed on the website of the Company (www.kmrc.in).

Address for correspondence:

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.
'KMRCL Bhavan', HRBC Office Compound
Munshi Premchand Sarani, Kolkata — 700 021.

Audit Qualifications:

There isno qualification in the Independent Auditor's Report on financial statements of the Company for the F. Y.
2023-24.

Training of Board Members:

The Company is a special purpose vehicle for implementing the 'East-West Metro Corridor' Project in Kolkata. As per
decision of the Union Cabinet (vide minutes of the meeting held on 23.08.2012), the Company is only "Project
Implementation Unit" of the East-West Metro Corridor Project, Kolkata. It will continue to function till the completion
of the execution of the Project. However, all the shares of the Company will be held by Government of India, who
after completion of the Project would run the system alongwith existing North-South Corridor under a unified control.
Subsequent to execution of the Project, the operation of the East-West Metro Corridor will be merged with those
of the Metro Railway, Kolkata. Hence, need to train Board members in the business model of the Company have not
been felt till now. However, the Company has decided to train the Directors and necessary steps have been taken for
the same.

Whistle Blower Policy:

The Company has adopted a 'Whistle Blower Policy', which is displayed on its website. Such Policy provides a framework
to enable the employees wishing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company without fear of
victimisation and covers protected disclosures by all categories of employees.

Compliance Certificate:

This report duly complies with the requirements of "Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises". Certificate obtained from a practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of the aforesaid Guidelines
on Corporate Governance has been annexed to this Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Kolkata P. U. K. Reddy
Date : 30t" September, 2024 Chairman



Annexure-Il
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Urbanization is the present day world trend generated through opportunities associated with the cities. More and
more people are moving in from rural to urban localities. It is projected that in 2030, about 4.9 billion people (60%
of the global population) will live in urban areas. Futuristic design of cities, therefore, aims to accommodate large
populations while creating high quality of urban life sustainable to the society. Megacities in today's world, therefore,
require a transportation system that has basic attributes of sustainability — efficient, affordable, accessible and
environment friendly. Mass Rapid Transit System (MRTS) has been found to be ideal transport solution in this regard,
as evidenced by the increasing number of cities opting for the same both in India and other countries.

The Company has been formed to implement the 'East West Metro Corridor' connecting Salt Lake Sector V in the east
to Howrah Maidan in the west. Government of India ('Gol') has decided that the Company will be the Project
Implementation Unit and continue to function till the completion of execution of the Project. However, all shares of
the Company will be held by Gol, who after completion of the Project would run the system along with North-South
Corridor under a unified control.

Vision, Mission and Objective
Vision:

To emerge as the most efficient implementation unit for rail-based urban transport infrastructure with sound financial
and technological base adopting global project implementation standards and practices for efficient completion of
the projects with utmost care towards quality, safety and satisfaction of the users in an environment of synergy
between public service and socio-economic sustainability.

Mission:

To implement the 'East-West Metro Corridor' MRTS Project in the urban conglomeration of Kolkata city and its
urbanised surroundings of Howrah and Salt Lake to meet the ever-growing demand of mass mobility in this region.

Objective:

1. To establish the 'East West Metro' as a state-of-the-art urban passenger Mass Transit System, providing affordable,
hassle-free, safe and pollution-free conveyance to city life.

2. To promote and facilitate Metro ridership as a part of integrated traffic rationalisation plan and comprehensive
mobility plan for Kolkata city and its urbanised surroundings of Howrah and Salt Lake.

3. To mobilise the required resources for project implementation in order to achieve financial soundness and
sustainability.

4. To execute the Project with least cost escalation with proper improvisation skills to harmonise available financial
and technological resources in order to achieve optimum time targets.

5. To maintain a cost effective organisational set up and implement proper training and value addition programs
of best standards for generating a motivated and result oriented Project team.

6. To maintain highest standards of quality and safety during execution of the Project.
Difficulties faced in Project execution:

Project implementation (as envisaged in Detailed Project Report) has been affected due to external factors like non-
availability of land as well as realignment issue. There has also been time as well as cost overruns. The Project is being
implemented in two phases viz. Phase-| from Salt Lake Sector V to Phoolbagan and Phase-Il from Phoolbagan to
Howrah Maidan.

KMRC
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The entire Phase-I has been commissioned now in two steps ; Phase-IA from Salt Lake Sector-V Station to Salt Lake
Stadium Station since 14.02.2020 and from Salt Lake Stadium Station to Phoolbagan since 05.10.2020. The
implementation of Phase-I was affected due to non-availability of land at Duttabad and Swabhumi as well as Depot
at Central Park which affected construction of elevated viaduct on a 365-metre and 120-metre stretches, respectively.
The project affected persons of Swabhumi were rehabilitated in 2013 and those of Duttabad in 2015 and the
construction work proceeded only thereafter. The land issues in Depot was also resolved only in 2013.

In Phase-ll, due to non-availability of land for construction of proposed Central and Mahakaran stations, Government
of West Bengal had proposed realignment of the route. This (executing the Project as per realigned route) has lead
to its extension by 1.878 kilometres, involving additional time and cost. Ministry of Railways accepted the realignment
proposal in August 2015 and the stalemate in Phase-Il which was continued since 2012 was over. Work on this section
resumed in September 2015.

Howrah Maidan to Esplanade section included in the Phase — Il of the Project, covering a stretch of 4.80 km
wasinaugurated on 6™ March, 2024 by the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India and was commissioned on 15"March,
2024.

Three incidences of water ingress at Bowbazar TBM (Tunnel Boring Machine) Retrieval Shaft posed hindrance to the
progress of the Project.

Crucial clearances had also to be obtained from the Archaeofogical Survey of India (as certain protected monuments
are located in the vicinity of the route) and defence authorities (since one of the stations will be under land owned
by the Army) in 2017.

Opportunities:

As the Project is being executed as per revised alignment, it is expected that there will be significantly higher passenger
traffic through proposed Esplanade station (inter-change station of 'East-West' and 'North-South' Metro lines). The
Joka-BBD Bag Metro line will also terminate at Esplanade. A bus hub is located in Esplanade close to the proposed
station. Besides, it is also proximate to the central business district of Kolkata. Upon completion, the Project will also
provide inter-nodal connectivity with two busy surface rail stations at Howrah and Sealdah, connection to ferry, bus
and tram. Perhaps no other mass transit system in the contemporary world links so many diverse modes of
transportation.

Having regard to the population density of Kolkata city and adjoining areas, the potential demand for ridership of
the 'East-West Metro' line is considered to be a unique feature.

Considering all these people-centric values and the opportunities involved in this Project, the coveted Institution of
Civil Engineering of United Kingdom has on the occasion of their bi-centenary listed the Project as one of the two
hundred projects in the world having significant impacts in making people's lives better. The Project was also featured
in world tunnel congress held in Doha in 2018. These international accolades have boosted morale of the Project
team to a new height.

The 'East-West Metro' has been conceived in such a manner that there will be potential for connection to Netaji
Subhas Chandra Bose International Airport from Salt Lake Sector-V Similarly, on the western end, the line can be
extended to Santragachhi or Ramrajatala.

Howrah and Sealdah stations being among the busiest rail stations in the world will generate huge commuter traffic
along the Metro line connecting these stations both during morning and evening rush hours. The 'East-West Metro'
line will provide significant benefits to the commuters within central business district of Kolkata and out to New Town,
Salt Lake and Rajarhat in the east, as well as to residents of Howrah city and surrounding areas in the western fringe.

Threats:

In order to ensure delivery of the Project as per revised time schedule and cost, coordinated efforts are required
among the various stakeholders viz. Ministry of Railways; Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs; Ministry of Finance;
Government of West Bengal; Japan International Cooperation Agency; etc. However, even the coordinated efforts
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may not be adequate to ensure that the Project gets executed on time and cost due to involvement of so many
external factors in such a complex project bio-sphere.

Obtaining necessary permission for closure of roads and fly over for construction as well as relocation of different
utilities (mostly under-ground) falling within the revised alignment poses a threat of time overrun as identification
of the same, obtaining permission as well as implementation in a densely populated city like Kolkata involves
multifarious stake-holders and is extremely time consuming.

Further the repeated incidences of water ingress in the tunnel also affected the Project’s progress.
Internal Controls:

A strong internal control framework is an essential pre-requisite to provide a reasonable assurance that in pursuit
of the organisation's mission, the general objectives of executing the Project are ethically, economically and effectively
achieved. In this context, the internal control systems of the Company are considered adequate and commensurate
with its size.

Future outlook:

The Company intends to establish the 'Kolkata East West Metro' as a state-of-the-art urban passenger MRTS providing
affordable, hassle-free, safe and pollution-free mode of conveyance to city life. With the completion in view, the
Company is committed to ensure the quality as well as safety in implementation of the Project. This Company will
generate a world class technological data base and know how in planning and implementation of such a remarkable
metro project which can be utilized by the project stakeholders for future projects in the horizon.
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D. RAUT & ASSOCIATES 2A-Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Commerce House, 8th

Floor, Room No. 7A, Kolkata-700 013

COMPANY SECRETARIES Ph. No. 033-22259585
E-mail : csdraut@gmail.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The Members
Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.
CIN: U60100WB2008G0I127338

We have examined the compliance of Corporate Governance by Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company”) for the year ended 315t March, 2024 as stipulated in the “Guidelines on Corporate
Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises 2010” issued by the Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries
and Public Enterprises, Department of Public Enterprises and annexures mentioned there under (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Guidelines’).

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion
on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied with the stipulations of the guidelines except that:

1. The Company does not have the minimum number of Independent Directors and one Women Director in terms
of the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Also the constitution of
the committees and the separate meetings of the Independent Directors of the Company has not been complied
with.

2. Though Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar has been nominated from the Railway Board Government of India, as a
Board member in KMRCL wef 01.06.2023, we have been informed that the Form Dir-12 for the said appointment
could not filed in MCA as DIN was not available for such Director.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Companynor the
efficiency of the effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For D. Raut Associates
Company Secretaries
Debendra Raut

Proprietor
Place: Kolkata ACS: 16626; CP No. 5232
Dated: 24.09.2024 UDIN: A016626F001310204
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315" MARCH, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(CIN: U60100WB2008G0I1127338)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices byKolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2024according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Company is not a listed company. Hence, Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules
made thereunder are not applicable to it;

(iii) The Company is not a listed company. Hence, the Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws
framed thereunder are not applicable to it;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings are not applicable to the
Company;

(v) The Company is not a listed company. Hence, the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) are not applicable to it:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (not
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (not applicable
as the Company has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from any stock exchange during the
financial year under review); and
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable as the
Company has not bought back/proposed to buy back its securities during the financial year under review).

(vi) The Company (a Central Government Public Sector Enterprise under the Ministry of Railways) is engaged in
implementing the rail-based ‘East West Metro Corridor’ Project in Kolkata. As identified by the Management the
following specific laws are applicable to it in addition to general laws:

a. Laws related to Labour and Workmen;
b. Provident fund;
c.  Provision of basic safety & health provisions at worksites under various laws;
d. Environmental laws.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standardswith regard to the meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meeting (SS-2) issued
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

(i) The Company is not required to enter into any listing agreement with any Stock Exchange(s) with respect to the
securities (shares) issued by it as it is an unlisted Public Company.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, etc. mentioned above, except the following observation:

1. The Company does not have the minimum number of Independent Directors and one Women Director in terms
of the provisions of Section 149(8) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. Also the constitution of the
committees and the separate meetings of the Independent Directors of the Company has not been complied with.

2. Though Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar has been nominated from the Railway Board Government of India, as a
Board member in KMRCLwef 01.06.2023,we have been informed that the Form Dir-12 for the said appointment could
not filed in MCA as DIN was not available for such Director.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, except the Independent Directors and Women Director as mentioned above. The changes in composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views (if any) are captured and recorded as part
of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:

a) Asthe net worth of the Company is more than Rs. 500 crores CSR is applicable to the Company. The Company
is required to contribute and spend 2% of the average net profits made during the preceding 3 years (calculated as
per Section 198 of Companies Act, 2013). Further the management has represented that the Company is not required
to make any contribution during the Financial Year to CSR fund as the profit calculated under Section 198 is negative.

For D. Raut Associates
Company Secretaries
Debendra Raut

Proprietor
Place: Kolkata ACS: 16626; CP No. 5232
Dated: 24.09.2024 UDIN: A016626F001302636

This report is to be read with the enclosed annexure-1.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT KMRC

Annexure-|

The Members
KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Our Secretarial Audit Report is to be read along with this letter.

The Secretarial audit covers the verification of the registers and documents maintained by the Company under the

Companies Act,2013. It doesn’t cover any financial transactions made by the Company. The Audit or Report also

doesn’t cover the engineering, construction and other manufacturing or service or HR matters or any law governing
those aspects.

Management’s Responsibility:

1.

It is the responsibility of the Management of the Company to maintain the Secretarial records and to devise
proper systems to ensure compliance of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are
adequate and operate effectively. The compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the Management.

Responsibility of Secretarial Auditor

2.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, etc.

Disclaimer:

1.

This report is solely intended for forming an opinion on the compliances made by the Company under the
Companies Act, 2013 or SEBI (LODR) (applicable only for Listed entities) and is neither an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

The Liability of the issuer of the Audit Report is limited to the Professional Fee that he has received for this
assignment.
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KMRC

OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
Railway Production Units and Metro Railway
NKG Building (5 Floor), 14, Strand Road
Kolkata — 700 001.

No. RPU & MR/KMRCL/2024-25/ Date: 30.09.2024

To
The Managing Director,
Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited,
KMRCL Bhavan (HRBC Office Compound),
Munshi Prem Chand Sarrani,
Kolkata - 700 021.

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Kolkata Metro Rail
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024

Sir,
Please find enclosed herewith the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the annual accounts of Kolkata a
Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024.
Yours faithfully,

(N Maisnam)
Principal Director of Audit
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OFTHE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ONTHE ACCOUNTS OFKOLKATA METRO RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

The preparation of financial statements of Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility
of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by theComptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 of the Actbased on independent auditin accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 July 2024 and consequent
upon CAG observations revised on 27 September 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a Supplementary Audit under section
143(6)(a) of the Act on the financial statements of Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the year ended 31
March 2024. This Supplementary Audit has been carried out independently with out access to the working papers
of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and company personnel and
as elective examination of some of the accounting records. Based on my Supplementary Audit, | would like to highlight
the following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in
my vieware necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related audit report:

A. CommentsonFinancialPosition

BALANCESHEET

Assets-Non-Current Assets

(b)Capital Work-in-Progress-Note No.5 & 6

Pre-operative Expenditure (Pending Allocation) - Note No. 6
3 47.44 crore

Borrowing Cost-Note 6.1

Non-Current Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings-Note 14-X 5,011.20 crore

1) TheBorrowing Cost did not include ¥ 9.59 crorel being interest accrued on loan taken from Japan
International Co-operation Agency for the period from 20 October 2023 to 31 March 2024.

This had resulted in understatement of Non-current Assets-'Pre-operative Expenditure (Pending allocation)'
by ¥ 9.59 crore as well as understatement of Non Current Liabilities- Borrowings by the same amount.

Assets-Non-Current Assets
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress -NoteNo.5 & 6
Other Financial Assets (Note No. 7) ¥ 253.70 crore

2) The Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) included11.41 crore being reimbursement of State Goods and Service
Tax (SGST) to two? contractors/consultants.

Asper the Accounting Policy No 3.7 of the Company' reimbursement of SGST' is show nunder Non-Current
Assetsas 'SGST receivable' with acor responding reduction from CWIP. Therefore, the SGST receivable amounting
to ¥ 11.41 crore should have been reduced from CWIP.

This had resulted in over statement of CWIP by 11.41 crore and understatement of Other Financial Assets
-SGST receivable from GoWB by the same amount.

Assets - Non-Current Assets

Capital Work in progress

Pre-operative expenditure (Pending allocation)-Note 6
Other Administrative expense-Note 21.2 3 123.50 crore

3) The above includes an amount 0f31.43 core being deposit made by the Company under the direction of
High Court of Kolkata for challenging an arbitration award.

Against loan ID-P263 (% 7.19 crore)and loan ID-P295 (% 2.40 crore) at an exchangerate of 0.5509 INR for Japanese Yen
2UG-1contractorviz M/sTranstonnelstroy Afcons JV and the General Consultant of the projects
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4)

5)

6)

7)

The same should havebeenclassified as 'Advance other than Capital Advance' instead of disclosing the same
as'Pre-Operative expenditure'. This has resulted in overstatement of'Pre-operative expenditure (pending
allocation)' and the understatement of 'OtherAssets' (Non-current) to an extent of ¥ 31.43 crore.

Assets-Non-CurrentAssets
Capital Work in Progress -Note-5
Power Supply- X 347.49 crore

The above includes an amount of ¥ 14.75 crore being energy bills raised by the Company against Metro Railway
for electricity charges incurred for commercial operation of the project done by Metro Railway,Kolkata. This
amount should have been shown as 'receivable from Metro Railway'instead of disclosing the same as CWIP.

This has resulted inunderstatementof 'receivable from Metro Railway, Kolkata' by ¥ 14.75 crore and over statement
of CWIP by the same amount.

Assets-Current Assets Financial Assets
Bank Balance Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents-Note-10
3 219.77crore

The above includes fixed deposits of ¥ 31.43 crore held against a bank guarantee. As per Division-Il ofSchedule-
Il of the Companies Act, 2013 clause 6(C)(b)of the 'General instructions for preparations of financial statements
of acompany’', 'balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings,
guarantees, other commitments shall be disclosed separately'.

However, the company had not separately disclosed the fixed deposits of ¥ 31.43croreheldagainsta bankguarantee.
8. Commentson Accounting Policy
Notes to financial statements Accounting policies (Note 2.1)

A reference is invited to Note 2.1 'Accounting Policies' wherein it has inter-alia been stated that' apolicy has been
adopted by the management of the organisation in accordance to the guidance of Ministry of Railways to transfer
the assets from Capital-work-in-progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the project and not phase wise
completion;

However, the Ministry of Railways communication (2018) stated that after completion of execution of the project,
Metro Railway, Kolkata would run the East West Metro Corridor along with the North-South Corridor under a
unified control'. The Ministry of Railways communication did not specify any accounting treatment or any
accounting instruction to transfer the assets from Capital-Work-in-Progress to Fixed Assets on full completion
of the project.

Accordingly, the Note 2.1 is not in conformity with the guidanceof the Ministry of Railways.
C. Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

The Company did not disclose a contingent liability in respect of award of arbitration amounting ¥ 62.87 crore
which was challenged in the Calcutta High Court by the Company.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Place : Kolkata (N Maisnam)
Dated: 30 September 2024 Principal Director of Audit
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AUDITORS' REPORT

Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.  crarTered AccounTANTS

Head Office : 32, Ezra Street. 4th Floor, Suite # 403, Kolkata-700001
Phone : 2235-0677 / 98310 79963

Website : www.rkkco.com

E-mail : ca.rkothari@gmail.com / rkothari@rkkco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED ("the Company"),
which comprises of the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes

to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the IndAS Financial Statements") and revised as per observation of CAG.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid IndAS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (The 'Act') in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS"), and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the IndAS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

"The Company is a government-owned entity established for the specific purpose of Metro rail construction project. Our
audit was conducted in accordance with the applicable auditing standards, and the audit opinions expressed herein are
based on the work performed in accordance with those standards."

Key Audit Matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA-701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted
company.

Emphasis of Matter

()  We draw the attention to Note No. 7 of the IndAS financial statements wherein Rs 210.22 crores receivable from
Government of West Bengal (GoWB) towards State Goods & Service Tax (SGST) and Rs 41.38 crores towards VAT in terms
of Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) signed by the Company and GoWB has been recognized as accounts receivable,
which has not yet been reimbursed by the GoWB.

(i)  We draw attention to Note No. 26 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the value of 38.5 acres of land received from
Government of West Bengal (GoWB) on "permissive possession basis" for setting up depot at Central Park, Salt Lake is not
accounted for in the books of accounts of the Company. Reference is further invited to Note No. 26 of the IndAS financial
statements wherein the GoWB has demanded Rs 3368.79 crores as charges for permissive possession of the said land.

(iii) We draw attention to Note No. 32 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the Chief Secretary, Government of West Bengal
had issued a letter dated 06.11.2012 mentioning that GoOWB has funded a sum of Rs.48 crores towards Land Acquisition for
East-West Metro Corridor Project. The Company has taken up and pursued the matter with Government of West Bengal for
details of Rs. 48 crores so claimed to be funded to the Company, as no such records are

available in the records of the company. Reconciliation and resolution of the matter is still pending.

(iv) We draw attention to Note No. 8.1.2, 25 & 39 of the IndAS Financial Statements w.r.t. pending litigation cases & contingent
liabilities.

(v) We draw attention to Note No. 5.4 & 6 wherein Capital Work in Progress includes expenses incurred in relation to operations

and maintenance of elevated portion of the project whose commercial operation has been entrusted to Metro Railway, Kolkata
for commercial operations from February, 2020 and income in relation to the same is recognized by Metro Railway.

(vi) We draw attention to Note No. 7.2 of the IndAS financial statements wherein Fixed Deposit of T 5.74 Crore has been pledged
with High Court for a case against a contractor (ITD ITD Cem JV) for reimbursement of PBG and car insurance due to delay
in work.

(vii) We draw attention to Note No. 14.10 of the IndAS financial statements wherein the Original Project Cost was Rs 4,874.58
Crores, but the Estimated Final project cost has been exceeded to Rs 10,442.41 which was far from its initial estimated costs.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

KMRC
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Information Other than the IndAS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises of the information
included in the Annual report, but does not include the IndAS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

In connection with our audit of the IndAS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the IndAS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we haveperformed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the IndAS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these IndAS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the IndAS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the IndAS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the IndAS Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the IndAS financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these IndAS
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial statements,whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to IndAS financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the IndAS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the IndAS financial statements including the disclosures, and
whether the IndAS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the IndAS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the IndAS financial statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the IndAS financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matter

1

There is non-compliance on part of the Company w.r.t the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning appointment
of directors. As per the related provisions and corresponding thresholds in place, the Company should have at least 1 Woman
Director and 2 independent Directors. Smt. Warrior was appointed as an Independent Director and was also the Woman
Director on the Board of Directors. Post completion of her tenure on 10.07.2022 and subsequent requirement, vacancy has
not been filled up. The company does not have any Independent Director as on date. As per management reply, such vacancy
can only be filled up by the Government and they have intimated and requested for the same through multiple letters
to the Railway Board.

We had issued an audit report dated 29.07.2024 (the original report )at Kolkata on the Financial Statements as adopted
by the Board of Directors. Pursuant to the observations of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, under section
of the Companies Act, 2013, we have revised the said audit report. This audit report supersedes the original report
which has been suitably revised to consider the observation of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India on “Basis
for opinion” paragraph. Our audit procedure on events subsequent to the date of original report is restricted solely
to the amendment made to the item mentioned in this paragraph.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure "B", a statement on the matters specified
in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

i) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

i) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.

iii)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

iv)  In our opinion, the aforesaid IndAS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) rules, 2014, as amended.

v)  The Company being a Government Company, the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act is not applicable
pursuant to the Gazette Notification No. GSR 829(E) dated 21.10.2003 issued by the Government of India.

vi)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls.

vii) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial positionin its IndAS financial
statements - Refer Note 25 & 39 to the IndAS financial statements.

b.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts forwhich there were any
material foreseeable losses.

c.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

d. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
and
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(iii) Based on such audit procedures as we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that the representations made by the management as stated in (i) and
(ii) herein above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year therefore,
compliance with the provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining booksof account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Financial year ended March 31, 2024.

We have examined the Company's compliance with this requirement and performed test checks to verify
the same. Our examination revealed that the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its
books of account, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. We found that this feature
has operated throughout the year starting from 02-06-2023 for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software.

During the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with, except for few instances where wrong entries were made but subsequently rectified through a back-
dated entry also in cases were provisions were made. We noted that the rectification was properly recorded
in the audit trail, and the Company has preserved the audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirements of maintaining books of account using
accounting software with an audit trail (edit log) facility, and the same has operated effectively throughout

the year, except for the aforementioned instance which was properly rectified.

4.  The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating the areas to be examined in terms of
Section 143(5) of the Act, the compliance of which is set out in "Annexure C

5. There has been minor non-compliances w.r.t Statutory dues during the year, the details of which are provided below
along with Management reply on the respective issues.

Particulars Amount Auditors Remarks Management’s Reply
Prabir Kumar Das under 15,93,883.00 Tunnel Exp- Hand painting inside tunnel. | RCM will be booked& paid
Sundry Creditors. RCM u/s 9(3) of CGST act 2017 is applica- | along with interest in
ble as the expense relates to work of Art. | FY 2024-25.
Saba International under TDS was not deducted from April’23 to TDS short deducted. It will be
Sundry Creditors. Aug’23 rectified.
EI D Ltd, The Oberoi Grand | 11,71,297.00 TDS have to be deducted on thisamount. | Error in deduction. It will be

rectified

Patents TalgoS.L

1,74,89,377.00

No TDS deducted. No IGST RCM booked.

It will be rectified post
verification.

Transtonnel Afcons JV

TDS on Rs 65,14,63,655/- @2% =
1,30,29,273/-, whereas TDS booked Rs
1,23,96,242/-. Reason for shortfall?

Error due to credit note. It will
be rectified.

Legal Expenses

Short booking of RCM by Rs 810/-

RCM will be booked & paid
along with interest in FY 2024-

25.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27.09.2024
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Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E
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Partner
Membership No.: 055208
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ANNEXURE - ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements of KOLKATA METRO RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED ("the Company") as at 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control with reference to the IndAS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICA1). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the IndAS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to the IndAS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to the IndAS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to the IndAS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the IndAS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the IndAS financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of IndAS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to the IndAS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of IndAS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizedacquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IndAS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the IndAS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to the IndAS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to the IndAS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the
IndAS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the IndAS financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control with reference to the IndAS financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls With reference to the IndAS financial statements issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E

Wuyothaw

Raj Kumar Kothari

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 055208
Date: 27.09.2024 UDIN: 24055208BKGSDG6669
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ANNEXURE - ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our report of even
date

(i) (a) (A)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company Is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company does not have any Intangible Assets. Accordingly, Para 3(i)(a)(B)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment by which property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years.
However, property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the Management during the year,
thus we cannot comment on any material discrepancies noticed on such verification.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the title deeds of allimmovable properties(other than properties where the company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the IndAS financial
statements are held in the name of the Company except the ones mentioned below:

Description of the
Property

Gross Carrying Value
(in '000)

Held in the name of

Whether promoter,
director or their
relative or employee

Period held - indicate
range, where
appropriate

Reason for not being
held in the name of
company

Leasehold Land

1,97,396.52

Kolkata Port Trust

No

From FY. 2012-13 till present

The Company has taken
the land on lease for a
period of 30 years. The
Company is in the
process of registering
the same in its own
name as referred in
Note 22 to the IndAS
financial statements.

Building

46,741.73

Hooghly River Bridge
Commissioners

No

From F.Y. 2008-09 till present

The Ownership of the
building was not
transferred to KMRCL
because the building
made at the time when
the State Government
was a stake holder of the
project.The project is on
the verge of completion
and the asset will be
transferred to Metro
Railway. It is expected
that Metro Railway will
initiate further for
ownership, title etc. of
the building Refer Note
22 to the IndAS financial
statements.

Freehold Land

75,480.57

Government of West
Bengal

No

From F.Y. 2008-09 till present

Mutation of 1488 sq.mts
of land is under process
and the mutation of 1733
sg.mts pending as the
issue is subjudice and
the case is currently
pending at Supreme
Court of India vide SLP
No. (Civil)36172 of 2013
as referred in Note22 to
the IndAS Financial
statements.
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, the Company has not revalued any class of its Property, Plant and
Equipment during the year. The Company does not have any Intangible Assets.

(e) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the BenamiTransactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, Para 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, Para 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, Para 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records we
considered necessary, the Company has not made any investments, The Company has not granted any loans or provided
any guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, Para 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and basedon examination of records we
considered necessary, the Company has not given any loans/guarantees/security to or on behalf of any party or made
any investment referred to in Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. The Company has not given any loan,
guarantee or provided any security in connection with a loan to any body corporate or any other person.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and basedon examination of records we
considered necessary, the Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during
the year and therefore the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the
Company. No order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of
India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and basedon examination of records we
considered necessary, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) (@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based onexamination of records

we considered necessary, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees'state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authority.

There is no undisputed amount payable in respect of applicable statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess which were in arrears as at 31.03.2024 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(b) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Custom duty,
Excise duty or Goods and Services Tax (GST) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as
stated as below:
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Name of the Nature of the Dues | Amount Period to which the Forum where
Statute (in '000) the amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1,854.94 | FY.2009-10 to 2012-13 Appellate Authority

Income Tax Act,1961 | Tax Deducted at Source 14.50 FY 2022-23 Total Defaults as Per Traces
Income Tax Act,1961 | Tax Deducted at Source 7.32 FY 2021-22 Total Defaults as Per Traces

Commissioner Appeals (11),
Central Excise

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account that have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961). Accordingly, Para 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) (a)

(d)

(e)

(x) (a)

(xi) (a)

(c)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Further, deferred payment liabilities are not considered
borrowings/dues to a lender and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which those
were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of record considered necessary, and on overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, the
Company has not raised any funds on short term basis. Accordingly, Para 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, Para 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies. Accordingly, Para 3(ix)(f) of theOrder is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, Para 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year. Accordingly, Para 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no report under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government. Accordingly, Para 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no whistle-blower complaint has been received by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, Para 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, Para 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the IndAS
financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

O)
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(xiv) (@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records

(xv)

we considered necessary, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us during thecourse of the
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
records we considered necessary, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors
or persons connected with him as specified under Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, Para 3(xv) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xvi) (@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and

records, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934 as a Non-Banking Finance Company, Accordingly, Para 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and
records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities or any Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, Para 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and
records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, Para 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and
records, there is no Core Investment Company (CIC) in the group.

(xvii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of

records we considered necessary, the Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year
and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of

records we considered necessary, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
However, statutory auditors are appointed periodically by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

(xix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and examination of books and

records we consider necessary, on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the IndAS financial statements,
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that
our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we give neither any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will be discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary and as stated in Note 22(q) of the IndAS financial statements, the
Company has not provided for any expenses based on expert opinion, copy of which has not been provided
to us.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of records we considered necessary, there are no ongoing projects until the date of our report.
For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E
—
Wyt
Raj Kumar Kothari
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 055208
Date: 27.09.2024 UDIN: 24055208BKGSDG6669
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ANNEXURE - ‘C' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Sub-section 5 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

Direction 1

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system. If yes, the implications
of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications,
if any, may be stated.

Our Comment

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has appropriate system in place to process all the accounting transactions through
IT system. However, transactions pending for due approval/checking/settlement are recorded in the books of account
only on finalization of such claims. Aggregate of all such transactions pending for finalization are recorded as 'Contingent
Liabilities' as on the date of reporting and are disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Impact on Financial Statements - As disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements.
Direction 2

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to repay the loan. If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for.

Our Comment

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, no restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company's inability to repay the loan have been made during the period of
audit.

Impact on Financial Statements - NIL
Direction 3

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State Government or its agencies
were properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and conditions. List the cases of deviation.

Our Comment

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of records
we considered necessary, the Company has not received any funds for specific schemes from Central/State Government
or its agencies. However, budgetary support has been provided by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs and
Ministry of Railways for the implementation of metro project during the year under audit. The funds so received have
been utilized for the purpose of the project. The unutilized amounts are temporarily parked in Term Deposits and
the interest earned are ploughed back to the project.

Deviations - NIL

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 320166E

@/}/ﬁ% ’

Raj Kumar Kothari

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No.: 055208
Date: 27.09.2024 UDIN: 24055208BKGSDG6669

©)

KMRC

55



|

KMRC A NNUAL

56

REPORT 2023-24

Note : This page has been kept blank intentionally



ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2023-24



KMRC A NNUAL

REPORT

2023-24

KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

(Amount in X thousands)

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(a)  Property,Plant and Equipment 4 4,23,400.82 4,23,206.24
(b)  Capital Work-in- Progress 5&6 8,05,87,847.79 8,05,58,951.58
(c)  Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 7 25,36,999.17 23,01,351.16
(d)  Other Non-Current Assets 8 12,25,881.64 8,79,351.22
Total Non - Current Assets 8,47,74,129.41 8,41,62,860.22
Current Assets
(a)  Financial Assets
(i)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 1,74,290.22 5,72,787.90
(i)  Bank Balance other than (i) above 10 21,97,744.96 11,29,345.85
(iii)  Other Financial Assets 7 22,47,046.41 21,98,751.35
(b)  Current Tax Assets 11 13,254.79 11,870.66
Total Current Assets 46,32,336.38 39,12,755.77
TOTAL ASSETS 8,94,06,465.79 8,80,75,615.97
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a)  Equity Share Capital 12 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
(b)  Other Equity 13 7,186.46 7,287.38
Total Equity 3,75,93,386.46 3,75,93,487.38
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 5,01,12,020.69 4,85,30,288.05
(i) Other Financial Liabilities - Retention Money 14.12 2,55,000.61 3,28,721.78
(b)  Provisions 15 6,932.11 7,219.36
(c)  Other Non-Current Liabilities 16 2,76,357.53 3,43,670.05

Total Non - Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(i) Other Financial Liabilities - Retention Money 17
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 18

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

5,06,50,310.93

4,92,09,899.25

17 7,83,056.97
2,89,502.68
90,208.74

8,86,678.05
2,79,960.87
1,05,590.42

11,62,768.40

12,72,229.34

5,18,13,079.33

5,04,82,128.59

8,94,06,465.79

8,80,75,615.97

Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement 1-41

In terms of our report attached

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 320166E

CAR. K. Kothari

Partner

M. No. : 055208

UDIN : 24055208BKGSAS6842

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 29-7-2024
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

V. K. Srivastava
Managing Director
DIN : 10207179

Samik Bhattacharyya
Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AMWPB7941H

Ambika Jain
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07271472

Mohua Datta Gupta
Company Secretary

PAN : AIEPG3324K
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended 31st March, 2024

(Amount in ¥ thousands)

Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Revenue From Operations = -

Other Income
Total Income
EXPENSES

Other Expenses
Total Expenses
Profit Before Tax
Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax
Profit/(Loss) for the Period

19 433.72 8,074.70
433.72 8,074.70

20 559.01 590.72
559.01 590.72
-125.29 7,483.98

-125.29 7,483.98

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss
Re- Measurement gains/(losses) on Gratuity Plan 15.1 24.37 -211.93

Income Tax Effect

Provision for Income Tax written back - - -

Net Other Comprehensive Income not to
be reclassified to Profit or loss 24.37 -211.93
Total Comprehensive Income for the period -100.92 7,272.04

Earnings Per Equity Share :

(1) Basic Earnings Per Share - N

(2) Diluted

Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statement 1-41

In terms of our report attached

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 320166E

CAR. K. Kothari

Partner

M. No. : 055208

UDIN : 24055208BKGSAS6842

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 29-7-2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

V. K. Srivastava Ambika Jain
Managing Director Director (Finance)
DIN : 10207179 DIN : 07271472
Samik Bhattacharyya Mohua Datta Gupta
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
PAN : AMWPB7941H PAN : AIEPG3324K
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KOLKATA METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

2023-24

(Amount in X thousands)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 2024 March 2023

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Income Before Tax & Extraordinary Items -125.29 7483.98
Adjustment for :-
Other Comprehensive Income (Gratuity)
Depreciation & amortisation expenses
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations -
Interest Income -
Loss/(Profit) on Sale of Asset / Investment -
Operating profit Before Working Capital Changes -125.29 7483.98
Change in Working Capital
Increase /(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions -287.25 1,730.92
Increase /(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities -15,381.67 11,126.31
Increase /(Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities -67,312.53 1,80,695.16
Decrease /(Increase) in Other Financial Assets -2,35,648.01 -2,59,252.68
Decrease /(Increase) in Financial Assets -48,295.05 -7,73,584.98
Decrease /(Increase) in Financial Liabilities -64,179.36 1,19,379.78
Decrease /(Increase) in Current Tax Assets -1,384.13 -9667.2
Net Cash Flow From Operation.........cccceeeenu.. (A) -4,32,613.29 -7,22,088.72

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment -194.57 -10,037.72
Purchase of Capital WIP -28,896.21 -50,03,676.77
Decrease /(Increase) in Non Current Assets -3,46,530.41 -2,28,692.50

Net Cash flow From Investing Activities......... (B)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds From Issuance of Share Capital - -

-3,75,621.20 -52,42,406.99

Proceeds From Int. Free Subordinat debts 61,80,828.28 27,38,809.22
Proceeds From Long Term Borrowings -45,99,095.63 3,96,725.58
Proceeds From Short Term Borrowings -1,03,621.08 2,132.12
Adjustments of Gratuity Other comprehensive Income 24.37 -211.93
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities ........ (C) 14,78,135.94 31,37,454.99

D. Net increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A + B + C)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year

m

-28,27,040.72

45,29,174.45

6,69,901.45

17,02,133.73

F. Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 23,72,035.19 17,02,133.73

1 Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) - 7
"Cash Flow Statement" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

2 Purchase of Fixed Assets includes movement of Capital Work in Progress during the year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year represents Cash and Bank Balances.

4 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever applicable.

w

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 320166E Ambika Jain

Director (Finance)
DIN : 07271472

V. K. Srivastava
Managing Director

CAR. K. Kothari DIN : 10207179

Partner
M. No. : 055208
UDIN : 24055208BKGSAS6842

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 29-7-2024

Samik Bhattacharyya
Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AMWPB7941H

Mohua Datta Gupta
Company Secretary
PAN : AIEPG3324K
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Statement of Changes in Equity
A.  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

ACCOUNTS

2023-24 KMRC

(Amount in X thousands)

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period
Fresh Allotment of Equity Shares
- For Cash -
- For consideration other than cash - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
B. OTHER EQUITY
(Amount in X thousands)
Reserve & Surplus
Particulars Share Application | Retained Earnings Other Total Equity
Money Pending Comprehensive | artibutable to
Allotment Income | equity holders
of the Company
Balances as on April 1, 2022 - 558.78 (543.45) 15.34
Changes in equity share capital due to period errors - - - =
Restated balance at the beginning of the reportng period - 558.78 (543.45) 15.34
Profit/(Loss) for the year - 7,483.98 (211.93) 7,272.04
Transaction with Owners in their Capacity As Owners
Issue of Equity Shares - - - -
Share Application Money Received - - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2023 - 8,042.76 (755.38) 7,287.38
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - 8,042.76 (755.38) 7,287.38
reportng period
Profit/(Loss) for the year - (125.29) 24.37 (100.92)
Transaction with Owners in their Capacity As Owners
Issue of Equity Shares - - - -
Issue of equity shares other than cash - - - -
Share Application Money Received - - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2024 - 7,917.47 (731.01) 7,186.46

In terms of our report attached

For Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. : 320166E

CAR. K. Kothari

Partner

M. No. : 055208

UDIN : 24055208BKGSAS6842

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 29-7-2024

V. K. Srivastava
Managing Director
DIN : 10207179

Samik Bhattacharyya
Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AMWPB7941H

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ambika Jain
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07271472

Mohua Datta Gupta

Company Secretary
PAN : AIEPG3324K
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

2.2

2.3
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Corporate Information

Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited (‘The Company’), having CIN — U60100WB2008G0I127338 was
incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 9th July, 2008. It is a Government Company within the meaning
of section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013, erstwhile Section 617 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company
being SPV is engaged in the implementation of Kolkata East — West Metro Corridor Project in Kolkata. The
company has its registered office situated at Kolkata.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements
Accounting Policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance and in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Rule 7 of Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The accounting policies adopted
for preparation and presentation of financial statements have been consistently applied except for the changes
in accounting policy for amendments to the Standards issued by MCA effective for the current accounting
period and other rectification in accounting policies adopted in the previous financial year. The presentation
of the financial statement is based on Ind AS Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

A policy has been adopted by the management of the organization in accordance to the guidance of Ministry
of Railways to transfer the assets from Capital-work-in-Progress to Fixed Assets on full completion of the
project and not on phase wise completion. Hence, in spite of commencement of commercial operation of a
part of the project, the whole of the amount is being shown under CWIP and there has been no transfer of
any newly created asset to Fixed Assets.

Company’s Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also its functional currency.
Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, accrual and going concern except
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Historical
Cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. All
assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the reporting date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period. Actual result could differ from these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

In respect of works contracts, expenditure is booked as Capital Work in Progress on certification by the
engineers.

Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Interest income from a Financial Asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the company and the amount of the income can be measured reliably.

Income from Sale of Tender documents for the construction works are reduced from the expenses pending
capitalization.

Interest on advances realized from contractors is adjusted against the respective head of contracts stated in
Capital Work in Progress.

Interest earned on Short Term Deposits with Bank is not recognized as Income and reduced from the expenses
pending capitalization in Capital Work in Progress as it is treated as Capital receipts. As per the decision of the
management interest income earned on term deposit from temporary deployment of fund during the current
period has been adjusted with cost of Capital-Work-in-Progress.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

3.2

33

3.4

3.5

3.6

Foreign Currencies

In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s
functional currency (INR) are recognized at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date as provided by Aid Accounts and Audit Division. Non- monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Employee Benefits
Provident Fund, Leave Encashment:

Company’s contribution to provident fund in respect of regular employees are accounted for on accrual basis
and charged to Profit and Loss Account. The Company has no other obligation other than contribution payable
to the fund.

In respect of deputationists , employee benefits due to employees are paid to their respective organisations
/ employer from where they have been deputed based on the direction given by their organisations. Leave
Salary and Pension Contribution of deputed employees are also transferred to their respective organisations
as per their valuation.

Gratuity:

The Company provides for gratuity, Defined Benefit Retirement Plan ('The Gratuity Plan') covering eligible
employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump-sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment with the company.

Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by Actuarial Valuation, performed by an Independent
Actuary, at each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit method.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest),
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur.

Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
is not reclassified to profit or loss account. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Taxation

Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. The Company’s current tax is calculated as
per applicable rate for the reporting period.

Current tax for current and prior periods, to the extent unpaid, is recognized as a liability. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods (assessment year-wise
and not cumulative), the excess shall be recognized as an asset.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognized on timing differences being the difference between taxable
incomes and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent period. Deferred Tax Assets are not recognized if there is probable chance that future taxable
profit will be available in near future against which they can be realized.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc) held for administrative purposes,
are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any). Cost of
acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses which are directly attributable
for the construction or acquisition of such assets.

KMRC
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

3.6.1

Tangible assets will be recognised when the entire project is ready for commercial operation and will be
dealt with as per the Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment after apportionment of pre-operative expenditure
and identifying other tangible assets.

Leases

Ind AS 116 states, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.6.1.1 As a Lessee

3.7

3.8

Lease of assets, where the company, as a lessee, has not substantially assumed all the risks & benefits of
ownership of the leased asset at the commencement date shall measure the right-of use asset (RoU) at cost.
Subsequently, following para 31 of Ind AS 116, the asset is depreciated which is recognized as an expense in
the Statement of Capital Work in Progress on a straight line basis, over the lease term.

Capital Work in Progress
Assets under construction as on the reporting date of Balance Sheet are shown as Capital-Work-in-Progress.

Capital work in progress is considered to be in the nature of PPE under construction and the provisions of Ind
AS 16 Property, Plant & Equipment will apply to it.

Construction expenditures, fees paid to consultants and all other costs less any income attributable to the
project along with pre-operative expenditure during construction are shown as Capital-Work-in-Progress till
capitalisation. The same shall be allocated to the assets in the ratio of Assets Capitalised to the Total Capital-
Work- in-Progress. Recovery from contractors towards interest and others are adjusted against construction
expenditure pending capitalisation. As per MoU of the Company with GoWB all SGST paid by the Company
will be reimbursed by the State Govt. Hence, all SGST has been put under Non-Current Assets as SGST Receivable
with year wise break-up and corresponding reduction from CWIP.

Year SGST Amount
2017-18 2,10,019.98
2018-19 4,26,944.27
2019-20 4,59,627.83
2020-21 2,41,115.90
2021-22 2,71,461.28
2022-23 2,58,395.15
2023-24 2,71,390.72

Depreciation & Amortisation

The company depreciates Property, Plant and Equipment over their estimated useful lives using the Written
down Value method at the rates specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on the
assets purchased during the year is provided on the basis of put to use date.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset Useful Life (in years)
Building 60
Air Conditioning and Others 10
Computer Equipment 3
Motor Vehicle 8
Office Equipment 5
IT System & Networking 6

The management believes that the estimated lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assets are likely to be used. Estimates may change due to technological development, change
in market conditions and other factors and may result in changes in the estimated useful life and in the
depreciation charges.

Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Leasehold Land is taken as an RoU asset which is to be amortised over the lease period on a straight line
basis.



ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2023-24 KMRC

Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Impairment of Tangible Assets (Property, Plant and Equipment)

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, Plant &
Equipment to determine whether there is any indication that the assets has suffered any impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value
in use.

Borrowing Costs

Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs states that borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset forms part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense.

The company’s Project is specifically funded by Japan International Cooperative Agency (JICA) and Interest
Free Subordinate Debt from Government for the same. Since this borrowing is specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, interest cost is eligible for capitalization less any income earned on the temporary
investment on those borrowing. Borrowings on account of subordinate debt, being interest-free in nature, the
company has not assessed its fair value as on the date of Balance Sheet. However, Loan is to be serviced by
Ministry of Finance and it has been booked as Pass through Assistance (PTA).

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in the notes based on the
judgment of the management. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the Financial
Statements. Contingent Assets are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and amounts are
received or receivable.

Equity Instruments

3.12.1 Equity Shares

3.13

4.0

Ordinary shares are classified as equity shares only.

Change in Accounting Policy

In the financial year 2020-21, there was a change in accounting policy with a prospective effect. During the
FY 2020-21, the net of other comprehensive income was transferred to pre-operative expenses and capitalised
as capital work-in-progress. This was done to provide a reliable and more relevant information as the company
being an SPV does not generate any revenue and has been established with the object of construction of East-
West Metro and not for its operation on completion of the project.

However, in compliance to the observation made by the C&AG of India, while auditing the Annual Accounts
for the FY 2020-21, Profit & Loss Account has been prepared for the FY 2022-23, comprising the transactions
not directly attributable to the project.

(Amount in X thousands)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net Block 4.1 4,23,206.24 4,13,168.52
Add: Addition made during the year 6,292.87 21,818.23
Less: Deletion made during the year - -139.58
Less: Total Depreciation during the year -6,098.30 -11,640.92
Net Block "~ 4,23,400.82 "~ 4,23,206.24
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

(Amount in X thousands)

5.0 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Expenditure Directly Related to CWIP
Civil Construction Expenditure
Elevated Viaduct 31,41,022.55 31,41,004.38
Station Building and Design 31,08,783.31 31,01,174.70
Underground Tunnelling- UG-1 2,10,06,918.04 2,03,04,977.19
Underground Tunnelling- UG-2 1,98,17,696.53 1,93,57,390.99
Central Park Depot 17,50,932.23 17,39,666.76
Track works 22,74,236.59 21,51,208.41
Tunnel Ventilation System 10,77,118.27 9,50,178.65
Underground Environmental Control System 13,63,539.24 11,55,506.22
Underground E&M 21,77,065.23 20,08,517.41
UFD- Ultrasonic Flaw Detector 276.86 276.86
UFWL- Under Floor Wheel Lathe 76,831.79 75,303.69
Power Supply 34,74,891.25 34,17,263.96
Signaling & Communication 34,99,354.71 31,71,197.10
Rolling Stock 99,46,805.14 99,46,965.93
Automatic Fare Collection System 4,36,869.95 3,20,337.58
Automatic Smart Card Recharge Machine 22,886.98 6,168.83
Lifts & Escalators 7,10,191.46 6,36,895.85
Platform Screen Door/ Platform Screen Guard 5,13,032.16 4,89,639.73
Independent Safety Assessment 25,749.04 20,276.10
Depot Store Machine 4,01,133.94 3,40,019.57
Manpower supply for Operation &Maintenance 98,784.90 85,447.47
Scanner 61,495.58 29,857.18
Other Anciliary Works 81,329.81 26,315.60
Consultancy Fees
General Consultants 57,35,617.25 53,05,958.19
Prime Consultants 1,71,375.53 1,71,375.53
Others 88,343.54 70,906.76
8,10,62,281.89 7,80,23,830.62
Pre - Operative Expenditure Pending Allocation 6 -4,74,434.10 25,35,120.96

8,05,87,847.79

8,05,58,951.58

5.1 Interest earned on Mobilisation Advance and Retention Money, realised from Contractors have been adjusted against Capital

Expenditure of the respective cost centres during the year.

5.2 As per clause 10.4 of the MoU dated 27.10.2008 between Govt of India (Gol) , Govt. of West Bengal (GoWB) and Kolkata

5.3

5.4

68

Metro Rail Corporation Limited (KMRCL) , GoWB will either exempt or reimburse to KMRCL all local taxes, duties and levies
incurred for the implementation of the project. Accordingly, taxes reimbursed / reimbursable by GoWB (VAT amounting to
T 78.26 crores) is reduced from the cost of respective Assets under Construction.

Post Implementation of GST from 1st July, 2017 a claim of Rs.160.92 Crores has been preferred to GOWB towards
reimbursement of SGST ( State Goods & Service Tax) upto the period March 2022. Claim of Rs. 21.00 crores has been
submitted pertaining to F.Y.

2022-23 out of the total claim of Rs. 25.84 crores. Pending processing of the claim by GOWB the claimed amount have been
adjusted against the cost of respective Assets under Construction and kept separately as Non- Current Other Financial Assets.
Year Wise Break Up of the SGST Claim Receivable is : FY-2017-18 - Rs.21.00cr, FY- 2018-19 - Rs.42.69cr, FY- 2019-20 - Rs.45.96
cr & FY 20-21 - Rs. 24.11 Cr, FY 21-22- Rs. 27.14 Cr, FY 22-23 - Rs. 25.84 Cr,FY 23-24-Rs.27.14 Cr.

Capital Work in Progress includes expenses incurred in relation to operations and maintenance of elevated portion of the
project whose commercial operation has been entrusted to Metro Railway, Kolkata for commercial operations from February,
2020 and income in relation the same is recognised by Metro Railway.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (contd.)

6.0 PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENDITURE (PENDING ALLOCATION)
Note No
EXPENSE
Borrowing Cost 6.1
Employee Benefit Payment 21.1
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses
Bank Charges
Advertisement Expenses
Exchange Fluctuation Cost
Legal & Professional Charges
Other Administrative Expenses 21.2
Income Tax for Earlier Years
Reimbursement to Metro Railway
INCOME
Interest on Term Deposit 6.2
Others
Rent Recovery from TTA& KRV 6.3

Rent from Mobile Coverage
Earnest Money Forfeiture
Sale of Tender Documents
Interest on IT Refund

Interest on Security Deposit

Less : Income generated under operation

Net Pre Operative Expenses transferred to CWIP

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

Borrowing Costs during the PERIOD ENDED includes
Interest Expense JICA
Total

Interest Income has been adjusted so as to take only the actual Interest Received and Accrued Interest on SBI Sweep Account for the F.Y.2023-
24. All interest accrued on investments which have been prematured have been adjusted to include only Interest Recieved.

ACCOUNTS

(Amount in X thousands)

2023-24

As at31-3-24  Addition/Deletion As at 31-3-23  Addition/Deletion
during the year during the year
2023-24 2022-23
40,12,399.72 3,85,443.80 36,26,955.92 3,70,001.70
8,96,057.30 1,15,797.48 7,80,259.82 1,11,321.67
1,37,375.76 4,012.97 1,33,362.79 11,640.92
15,463.87 112.84 15,351.02 346.03
47,361.31 - 47,361.31 1,089.77
-46,58,061.55 -39,07,332.25 -7,50,729.30 -2,32,334.78
1,11,305.79 32,838.83 78,466.96 20,963.96
12,35,010.72 4,31,696.69 8,03,314.04 1,55,313.04
2,01,972.27 - 2,01,972.27 -
50,000.00 - 50,000.00 50,000.00
20,48,885.19 -29,37,429.64 49,86,314.83 4,88,342.31
24,71,864.70 66,939.61 24,04,925.09 2,94,705.76
6,996.14 515.12 6,481.02 1,448.57
5,607.87 2,416.96 3,190.91 180.84
2,448.99 1,214.27 1,234.72 -157.68
480.00 480.00 -
12,533.98 12,533.98 56.90
18,258.00 18,258.00
5,129.62 1,039.46 4,090.15 982.68
25,23,319.29 72,125.42 24,51,193.87 2,97,217.08
(4,74,434.10) (30,09,555.06) 25,35,120.96 1,91,125.23
NOTENO  March 31,2024  March 31,2023
3,85,443.80 3,70,001.70
3,85,443.80 3,70,001.70

Rent Recovered from Contractor without any formal agreement or contract with them.

Since CAAA is making payment on behalf of KMRCL, difference in exchange rate fluctuation is not available with the management. Foreign exchange
fluctuation expense of X 3,90,73,32,247 is recorded considering the RBI closing rate as on 31.03.24 on the net payable amount in JPY. (FY. 2022-

23 it was X 23,23,34,779)
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7.0

7.1

(Amount in ¥ thousands)
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non- Current
Un Secured, Considered Good

Security Deposits 7.1 20,538.60 19,661.22

Vat Receivable from GOWB 5.2 4,13,843.69 4,13,843.69
SGST Receivable from GOWB 5.3 21,02,280.18 18,67,564.41
Other Receivables 336.69 281.84
Total 25,36,999.17 23,01,351.16
Current

Un Secured , Considered Good

Interest Receivable against Security Deposits - -
Other Advances

Other Advances/Prepaid 630.73 322.70
Fixed Deposit (includes Accrued Interest) 7.2 22,46,415.67 21,98,428.66
Total 22,47,046.41 21,98,751.35
Total Loans and Advances 47,84,045.57 45,00,102.51

Security Deposits represent Deposits given to Public Utiity Services like Electricity and carried at historical cost. It also contains
Deposit given to Kolkata Port Trust for using additional 375 sq. mt.of land for Vent Shaft purpose.

7.2 Fixed Deposit of ¥ 5.74 Crore has been pledged with High Court for a case against a contractor (ITD ITD Cem JV) for
reimbursement of PBG and car insurance due to delay in work.
8.0 OTHER ASSETS NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NON CURRENT
Secured, Considered good
Capital Advances
Advance to Contractors 8.1 2,81,008.03 3,24,706.29
Advances to Government Bodies
for Utility Services 8.2 5,78,208.99 1,89,147.82
Advance paid for Land Acquisition 8.3 3,30,177.77 3,30,177.77
Total Capital Advances 11,89,394.79 8,44,031.88
Advances other than Capital Advances
Balances with Revenue Authorities
Income Tax 8.4 36,417.29 35,249.78
Service Tax 69.56 69.56
36,486.85 35,319.34
TOTAL 12,25,881.64 8,79,351
8.1 Advance to Contractors March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mobilisation Advance 2,52,874.84 2,96,573.10
TOTAL 2,52,874.84 2,96,573.10
8.1.1 Mobilisation advances given as per terms of contract are fully secured by way of Financial Bank Gurantees received from
the Contractors.
8.1.2 Other advance to contractors also include ¥ 2,81,33,188 as the VAT amount paid to M/s Simplex Infrastructure Limited (M/s
SIL) to be reimbursed by GoWB as per MOU which was subsequently refused by GoWB without stating any reason. Hence,
M/s SIL was asked to give the amount back. However, a legal dispute arose and at present an appeal against arbitration
award in favour of M/s SIL is pending before Calcutta High Court. In the said appeal, this amount is also included as receivable
from M/s SIL. The last hearing took place on 16.03.2022 and the issue is yet to be settled.
8.2 Capital Advances made towards Utility Services is fully secured as the money has been paid to Government Agencies such
as Eastern Railway etc. and the advances will be adjusted in due course as and when work is completed.
8.3 Advances paid for Land Acquisition represents adhoc payment to LAC, West Bengal for acquisition of Land at different

locations for the project and possession for those land are yet to be handed over to KMRCL.The Company vide Letter dt.
13.10.2017 have requested to GoWB for refund of an amount of ¥ 2923.77 Lakhs for change in alignment of East-West
Metro, land no more required. The matter is pending for settlement.
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8.4

8.4.1

9.0

10.0

10.1

10.2

Income Tax Refundable Assessment Year Wise : Details of Assessment year Income Tax Refunds and Income Tax paid on
Dispute are as under :

Assessment Year Income Tax Income Tax Paid Total
Refundable under Dispute

AY 2013-14 18,640.79 = 18,640.79

AY 2014-15 16,559.57 49.43 16,608.99

Total 35,200.36 49.43 35,249.78

Order u/s 250 has already been passed in CIT (A) for AY. 2013-14 & 2014-15 , and refund for the same is pending.

(Amount in X thousands)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance with Banks

In Current Account 1,74,290.22 5,72,787.90
TOTAL 1,74,290.22 5,72,787.90
OTHER BANK BALANCES NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Bank Balances

Fixed Deposit (Maturity not more than 12 months) 21,59,230.57 11,02,772.29
Interest Accrued on above 38,514.40 26,573.56
TOTAL 21,97,444.96 11,29,345.85

Fixed Deposits includes Deposit of ¥ 1 lacs pledged with a Bank towards issuance of Bank Guarantee to Department of
Telecommunications.

Fixed deposit includes X 8.94 crores of interest which belongs to a period prior to the earliest period presented which has

CURRENT TAX ASSETS NOTE NO March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tax Assets

Tax Deducted at Source 13,254.79 11,870.66
Total 13,254.79 11,870.66
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12.0

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

125

72

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share capital
Equity Share Capital
3,75,86,20,000 (37,58,62,000)
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

Issued, Subscried and Fully Paid Up

3,75,86,20,000 (37,58,62,000)
Equity Shares of ¥10/- each

Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

Note No.

(Amount in ¥ thousands)

March 31, 2024

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

March 31, 2023

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled
to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive any
of the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the respective shareholders.

(Amount in X thousands)

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
A. Equity Share Capital No. of Shares Amount % No. of Shares Amount 3
Balance at the beginning
of the reporting period 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
Changes in equity share
capital during the period -
Fresh Allotment of Equity
Shares
- For Cash - - - -
- For consideration other than cash - - - -
Balance at the end of the
reporting period 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,200.00
Detailed of Shareholders holding more than five percent Equity Shares (5%)
Name of Shareholder’s As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
President of India through
Ministry of Railways 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% 2,78,13,79,200 74.00%
President of India through
Ministry of Housing & Urban Affairs 97,72,40,000 26.00% 97,72,40,000 26.00%

Details of Promoters holding

Promoter’s Name

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

% Change during the year

No. of Shares |% of total Share | No. of Shares | % of total Share
President of India through
Ministry of Railways 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% |2,78,13,79,200 74.00% 0.00%
President of India (MInistry
of Urban Development) 97,72,40,000 26.00% | 97,72,40,000 26.00% 0.00%
Nominees of President of India 800 0.00% 800 0.00% 0.00%
For the period of 5 years immediately preceeding the date of Balance Sheet Reporting Date
(a) Agggrgate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash NIL
(b) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares NIL
(c) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back NIL
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13.0

13.1

13.2

133

14.0

14.1

OTHER EQUITY

Note No

A. Share Application Money Pending Allotment 13.2

Closing Balance (Total A)
B. Reserves and Surplus
Surplus :
Opening Balance
Add : During the year
Less : Transfer to CWIP*
Closing Balance (Total B)
C. Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance

From Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation

net of Income Tax
Closing Balance (Total C)

Balance at the end of the year (A+B+C)

ACCOUNTS

2023-214
(Amount in X thousands)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
8,042.76 558.78
-125.29 7,483.98
7,917.47 8,042.76
-755.38 -543.45
24.37 -211.93
-731.01 -755.38
7,186.46 7,287.38

The company has transferred (for 20-21 Rs. 217,82,05,388/-, for 19-20 ¥ 236,92,20,200/- and for earlier years
3 -19,10,14,813/-) to Capital Work In Progress (CWIP) which were earlier booked in Profit and Loss Account. As per the
management opinion, since KMRCL is a SPV, all the expenses incurred are related to CWIP hence income/expenses booked

earlier as revenue now transferred to CWIP.

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
The Share Application Money does not include any Share Premium

Reconciliation of Changes in Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Particulars

Note No

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Add : Fresh Share Application Money Received

Less : Shares Alloted during the year
Balance at the end of reporting period

BORROWINGS

NON CURRENT
Unsecured

Senior Term Debt (JICA)

Interest free loan from Government of India

Note No

14.1t0 14.9
14.10 and 14.11

(A

As at 31st March,

2024

mount in ¥ thousands)

As at 31st March,
2023

(Amount in X thousands)

March 31, 2024

3,13,97,875.28
1,94,97,202.38

March 31, 2023

3,52,13,913.95
1,33,16,374.10

5,08,95,077.66

4,85,30,288.05

Japan International Co-operation Agency (JICA) has entered into an Agreement with President of India to provide support for the

Infrastructural Development in India. One such proposal was construction of East West Metro Project in Kolkata in the State of

West Bengal to cope up with the increase of traffic demand in Kolkata Metropolitan area by extending the mass rapid transportation
system, thereby promoting regional economic development and improving urban development and improving urban environment,
through mitigation of traffic jams and decrease of pollution caused by increasing motor vehicles.

KMRC
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14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

14.8

JICA Loan is sovereign guranteed Loan and is supported by necessary Loan agreement which details the terms and conditions
of the Loan.

JICA Loan is a long term Financial Liability and is carried at Amortised Cost in the financial statement in accordance with
IND-AS-32.

JICA has sanctioned Loans in two tranches detailed hereunder :

Particulars Agreement Sanctioned Amount Purpose of loan Rate of Commitment Charges
Date (Amount in lacs in Interest Payable on Unutilised
Yen) Amount
Loan A/c 192 10/03/2008 64,370.00 | Construction Cost 1.20%
Loan A/c 192A Technical Consultancy 0.01% 0.01%
Contingency Loan
64,370.00
Loan A/c 207 31/03/2010 2,34,020.00 | Construction Cost 1.40% 0.01%
Loan A/c 207A Technical Consultancy 0.01%
2,34,020.00
Loan A/c 263 28/09/2018 2,59,030.00 | Construction Cost 1.20% 0.01%
Loan A/c 263A Technical Consultancy 0.01%
2,59,030.00
Loan A/c 295 26/03/2021 90,910.00 | Construction Cost 1.15% 0.01%
Loan A/c 295A Technical Consultancy 0.01%
90,910.00
6,48,330.00
Maturity Profile of JICA Loan is as under :
(Amount in JPY’000)
Particulars 2023-24 2024-25 After 2024-25
JICA Loan
-Loan A/c 192 3,11,688.00 311,688.00 4,051,944.00
- Loan A/c 207 11,09,726.00 11,09,726.00 1,66,45,890.00
Total 14,21,414.00 14,21,414.00 2,06,97,834.00

These loans carries a moratorium period of 10 years from the date of agreement . Repayment of principal will commence
after the moratorium period and would be fully paid over a period of 20 years in half yearly installments.The Repayment
of Principal of Loan No-192 had commenced from March 2018 and that of Loan no- 207 had commenced from March 2021
as per the terms of agreements. The repayment of Loan No. 263 & Loan No. 295 will commence from September 2028 and
March 2031 respectively.

The Servicing of interest, installment of Principal and other dues is being done by Controller of Aid Accounts and Audit
(CAAA), Govt of India. So far, the company has provided for interest in its books of accounts but no outflow has been made
from the bank accounts of the company, as the same is serviced by CAAA. In light of the above, the company has not provided
any for overdue charges to the extent of 2% on outstanding amount in the books of account as stipulated in the loan
agreement. CAAA has not raised any demand on this account as on the date of Balance Sheet.

Disbursement against Loan ID- P207 has been stopped post May'2018. The Company is of the view since no disbursement
of the loan has been made post May'2018, no provision for commitment charges against the loan is required.
Outstanding JICA Loan has been segregated into Current and Non-current. Current JICA Loan has been made on the basis
of installments falling due within one year from the date of Balance Sheet as per amortisation schedule of the respective
loan agreements.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations on JICA loans - The Loan has been retranslated in INR on the Balance Sheet date at the rate
confirmed by CAAA. The conversion rate is considered as 0.5509 based on RBI reference rate on 31st March, 2024. Foreign
Exchange Fluctuation has been capitalised to Capital Work-in-Progress as per IND AS- 32.

Particulars As on 31-3-24 As on 31-3-24 Foreign Exchange As on 31-3-24
Loan ( Yen) Loan (INR) | Fluctuation Expense Loan ( INR)

Not Translated on Borrowing Translated

Loan A/c 192 43,63,632.00 24,03,924.87 3,10,998.39 27,14,923.26
Loan A/c 207 1,77,55,616.00 97,81,568.85 12,56,252.53 1,10,37,821.38
Loan A/c 263 2,58,26,535.42 1,42,27,838.36 17,32,960.53 1,59,60,798.89
Loan A/c 295 90,48,000.00 49,84,543.20 6,07,120.80 55,91,664.00
5,69,93,783.42 3,13,97,875.28 39,07,332.25 3,53,05,207.53
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14.9 Details of JICA Loan
Particulars Opening Addition during Repayment Foreign Closing
Balance the year during the year Exchange Balance
Fluctuation (INR)
Principal 3,61,00,592.00 7,95,384.47 -39,07,332.25 3,13,97,875.28
Interest Accrued and Due - 3,85,443.70 3,85,443.70 - -
Commitment Charges due 51,687.94 - - - 51,687.94
3,61,52,279.94 3,85,443.70 11,80,828.17 -39,07,332.25 3,14,49,563.21

14.10 Subordinate Debt

The Ministry of Railways ,(MOR) and Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs ,(MOHUA) being the current Joint Promoters
and Govt of WB (earstwhile Joint Promoters of the project) had given interest free Subordinate Debt to the Company for
meeting up the Central Taxes, Duties and other related Capital expenditure advanced for the project. Repayment Schedule
and other terms and conditions of these debts are yet to be framed and fixed. The Loan from Ministry of Urban Development
is repayable during 2021 to 2025 after repayment of entire Senior Term Debt i.e. Loan from JICA availed for the project.

In view of uncertainity in repayment terms and period , the loans are carried at historical cost. Further the company is not
recognising the benefit of Government loan at below market rate of interest as Government Grant.

14.11 | Borrowing Power Note No. | Marach 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Subordinate Debt - Govt. of India through Ministry of Housing and
Urban Affairs 14.7 17,10,700.00 17,10,700.00
Subordinate Debt - Govt. of India through Ministry of Railway 78,68,900.00 48,68,900.00
Senior Term Debt ( JICA)/PTA - -
JICA Loan Repayment by Ministry of Finance along with Interest 70,81,607.24 59,00,778.97
Pass Through Assistance - MoR 2,56,25,082.38 2,36,25,082.38

Less:

Receivable from MOR towards JICA -2,27,89,087.24 -2,27,89,087.24
1,94,97,202.38 1,33,16,374.10
14.12 | Non Current Financial Liabilities Note No | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Security Deposit & Retention Money 17.1 2,55,000.61 3,28,721.78
2,55,000.61 3,28,721.78

15.0 PROVISIONS
(Amount in ¥ thousand)

Note No March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Provision for Employee Benefits :
Provision for Gratuity 3,333.20 3,419.40
Provision for Leave Salary 3,598.91 3,799.96
6,932.11 7,219.36
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15.1 The Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits and leave salary benefits of its eligible employees on the basis
of Actuarial Valuation.

Defined Benefit Plans
(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Gratuity (unfunded)
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 34,19,401.00 26,83,749.00
Current Service Cost 2,84,261.00 3,08,253.00
Interest Cost 2,18,651.00 1,93,966.00
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss -24,372.00 2,11,934.00
Benefits Paid -5,64,742.00 -
Adjustments for previous FY* - 21,499.00
Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year 33,33,199.00 34,19,401.00
(i) Expenses recognised during the year
In Income Statement
Current Service Cost 2,84,261.00 3,08,253.00
Interest Cost 2,18,651.00 1,93,966.00
Net Cost 5,02,219.00 5,02,219.00
In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 24,372.00 2,11,934.00
Net (Income)/ Expense for the year recognised in OCI -24,372.00 2,11,934.00

(iii) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation

Leave Salary (unfunded)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the year 37,99,958.00 32,03,090.00
Current Service Cost 3,99,668.00 2,65,222.00
Interest Cost 2,22,062.00 1,99,554.00
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 4,05,195.00 5,51,995.00
Benefits Paid 12,27,971.00 -
Adjustments for previous FY* -24,55,942.00 -4,19,903.00

Defined Benefit Obligation at end of the year 35,98,912.00 37,99,958.00
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16.0

17.0

17.1

18.0

19.0

20.0

OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade Payable for Capital Goos

- Outstanding dues of micro enterprise and

small enterprise

Note No

- Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprise and small enterprise

ACCOUNTS 2023-214
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

2,76,357.53 3,43,670.05

2,76,357.53 3,43,670.05

There is no interest due or outstanding on the dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME) as on 31.03.24
Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 is as follows :

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year | 1-2years | 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Outstanding dues to MSME
Others 2,61,443.01 9,899.78 3,911.52 1,103.22 | 2,76,357.53
Less : Advance -
Total 2,61,443.01 | 9,899.78 | 3,911.52 1,103.22 | 2,76,357.53
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1year | 1-2years | 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Outstanding dues to MSME
Others 3,33,132.71 3,911.52 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
Less : Advance 28,133.19 28,133.19
Total 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52| 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Note No March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
CURRENT
Borrowings
Unsecured
Loan from Japan International Corporation Agency 14to 14.9
(JICA) through Government of India 7,83,056.97 8,86,678.05
Security Deposit & Retention Money 17.1 2,89,502.68 2,79,960.87
10,72,559.66 11,66,638.92

Security Deposit and Retention money withheld by the Company is released on completion of defect liability period. Classification
of such Retention money and security deposit withheld into current and non-current is done on the basis of managements estimation
of expiry of the completion of such defect liability period within one (1) year or beyond from the balance sheet date.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other Payables

Employee Benefit Payable
Liabilities for Expenses

Statutory Dues

Earnest Money Deposit
Commitment Charges on JICA Loan

OTHER IMCOME

Interest on IT Refund

Rent from Mobile Coverage
Total

OTHER EXPENSES
Director Sitting Fees
Payment to Auditors
- Statutory Audit

- Internal Audit

- Tax Audit

Total

Note No

14.5

Note No

Note No

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
73.55 6,616.14

2,095.25 153.97
29,342.19 39,677.66
7,008.82 7,454.72
51,687.94 51,687.94
90,208.74 1,05,590.42
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
433.72 8074.70

433.72 8074.70

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- 41.30

217.01 237.42

330.00 300.00

12.00 12.00

559.01 590.72
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22,

-24

a) Details of Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

Additional Regulatory Information as required by Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013:

Relevant line item in
Balance Sheet

Description of item
of property

Gross carrying value

Title deeds held in
the name of

Whether title deed
holder is a promoter,
director or relative
of promoter/
director or
employee of
promoter/director

Property held since
which date

Reason for not being
held in the name of
the company

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Leasehold land

1,97,396.52

Kolkata Port Trust

No

From F.Y. 2012-13
till present

The Company has
taken the land on
lease for a period of
30 years. The
Company is in the
process of registering
the same in its own
name.

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Freehold Land

75,480.57

Government of West]
Bengal

From F.Y. 2008-09
till present

Mutation of 1488
sg.mts of land is
under process and
the mutation of 1733
sg.mts of land is
pending as the issue
is sub-judice and the
case is currently
pending at Supreme
Court of India vide
SLP No.(Civil) 36172
of 2013.

Property, Plant &
Equipment

Building

46,741.73

Hoogly River Bridge
Commissioner

No

Rs. 24,250.83 since
F.Y. 2008-09
Rs. 22,490.90 since
FY.2013-14

The ownership of the
building was not
transferred to
KMRCL because the
building was made at
the time when the
State Government
was a stake holder of
the project.

The project is on the
verge of completion
and the asset will be
transferred to Metro
Railway. It is
expected that Metro
Railway will initiate
further for
ownership, title etc.
of the building.

b) The company does not have any investment property at the end of the current year and previous year. Accordingly,
disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

c) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the current year and previous year.

d) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loan to promoters, directors, KMP and the related
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, which are repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the curent and the previous year. Accordingly,
disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

e) Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) ageing schedule/completion schedule.
A. For Capital work-in-progress, the ageing schedule is given below as at 31.03.2023:

B.
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CWIP Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than one year | 1-2years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
Project in Progress: 28896.21 629587.38 77,15,177.03 7,22,14,187.17 8,05,87,847.79

Project Temporarily
Suspended:

For capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, the
completion schedule is given below as at 31.03.2022:

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period

Total

Less than one year

1-2years

2 - 3 years

More than 3 years

Project in Progress:

39,06,444.33

56,11,848.77

1,18,43,262.83

5,91,97,395.65

8,05,58,951.58

Project Temporarily
Suspended:
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f) The company does not have any intangible asset under development at the end of the current year and previous year. Accordingly,
disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

g) There has been no proceeding initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder during the current year and previous year. Accordingly, disclosures
as required under this para is not applicable.

h) The company does not have any borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the
current and previous year . Accordingly disclosures under this para is not applicable.

i) The company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the current year and
previous year. Accordingly, disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

j) The company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the current and previous year. Accordingly, disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

k) There are no charges or satisfaction pending for registration with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. Accordingly,
disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

1) The company does not have any subsidiary during the current and previous year and accordingly compliance with number of layers
prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules,
2017 is not applicable.

m) Analytical Ratios:

23

Ratio Numerator Denominator Current Period Previous Period % Change Reason of Change
if more than 25%

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3.98 3.08 29.54% Mainly due to increase in
year end statutory

liabilities and retention
money in hold

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders Equity 1.33 1.29 3.26% -

Debt Service Earnings Available Debt Service N.A. N.A. -

Coverage Ratio for debt services

Return on Net Profit After Average 0.00 0.00 0.00% -

Equity Ratio Tax Shareholders

Equity

Inventory Cost of Goods Sold | Average Inventory N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Turnover Ratio (COGS)

Trade Receivables | Net Credit Sales Average Accounts N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

turnover ratio Receivables

Trade payables Net Credit Average Trade N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

turnover ratio Purchases payables

Net Capital Net Sales Working Capital N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

Turnover Ratio

Net Profit Ratio (%) Net profit Net Sales N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

after Tax

Return on Capital | Earnings before Capital Employed 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -

Employed (%) interest and taxes

Returnon | Net profit Average Shareholders 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -

Investment (%) after Tax Fund

n) No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,

2013 during the current year and previous year. Accordingly, disclosures as required under this para is not applicable.

o)

(A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) during the current year and previous year
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) during the
current year and previous year with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
p) There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the books of

account during the current year and previous year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

q) The company has not provided for any expenses under the CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) following the provisions of u/s 135

r)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly disclosures in regard to CSR activities is not applicable.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the current year and previous year and therefore,
the disclosures as sought is not applicable.

All amounts in the financial statement and in notes to accounts are in X thousands unless otherwise specified.
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24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the current tax legislation. Deferred Tax Asset have not been
recognized in respect of these items because it is not considered probable that future taxable profit will be available in near
future against which they can be realized.

Pending legal cases relating to acquisition of Land

There are 49 Nos of Court Cases against the Company which is pending as on 31-03-2023. Details are as under : (All cases
are civil in nature)

No of Cases Particulars Forum
1 Land Acquistion Hon’ble Supreme Court
13 Land Acquisition Hon’ble High Court of Kolkata
1 Land Acquistion Howrah District Court
1 Environment National Green Tribunal, Kolkata
1 Tunnelling Hon’ble High Court of Kolkata
28 Miscellaneous Hon’ble High Court of Kolkata
9 Contract Related Hon’ble High Court of Kolkata

Government of West Bengal (GoWB) has issued a letter dated 9th February 2015 demanding a sum of ¥ 3368.79 crore
being the "Charges for Permissive Possession" for 38.5 acres of Land granted to KMRCL at Central Park, Salt Lake for setting
up of Depot. The Company feels that charges are not payable by the Company in terms of Para 12.1 of the MOU dated
27th Oct 2008 signed between GOI, GOWB and KMRCL and hence the same have not been accounted for in the books.

The Government of West Bengal vide its letter dated 13.02.2015 had demanded a sum of < 889.69 crore towards "Way
Leave Charges" for land use of stations and metro rail routes in the city of Kolkata The matter has been taken up with
the concerned authorities and the company feels that such charges are not payable and hence not accounted for. However
as a matter of prudence, company has shown the same as contingent liability as per Note no- 33(g).

There are no dues payable as on 31st March 2024 to any Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises nor are there are any other
particular data are required to be disclosed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006. The determination of an Enterprise as a Micro enterprise and Small enterprise is based
on the confirmation received in response to intimation in this regard sent by the Company to the suppliers.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time
of resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days basic salary for every completed year of service as per

the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. This plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
the period in which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were
carried out as at March 31, 2024 by Dr. R. Kannan, B. Chatterjee International Consultant. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the project unit credit method.
Company does not maintain any fund, so no need of contribution in respect of such Contribution Plan.
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Gratuity

The principal assumption used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Principal assumptions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 6.97% 7.17%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Average expected future service (remaining working life) 12 YEARS 10 YEARS
Mortality Table IALM 2012-2015 IALM 2012-2014
Superannuation at age - Male 60 YEARS 60 YEARS
Superannuation at age - Female 60 YEARS 60 YEARS
Early Retirement & Disablement (all causes combined) 0.100% 0.100%
Above Age 45 0.06% 0.06%
Between age 29-45 0.03% 0.03%
Below Age 29 0.01% 0.01%
Voluntary retirement Ignored Ignored

Other long term employee benefits:

The Leave scheme is a final salary Defined Benefit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of
retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary (considering Basic and
DA) and the accumulated leave balances are paid at the time of exit. The Plan design means the risks commonly affecting the
liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

This plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in
which they occur in Other Comprehensive Income.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out
as at March 31, 2024 by Dr. R. Kannan, B. Chatterjee International Consultant.

Leave Salary

The principal assumption used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows :

Principal assumptions March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 6.97% 7.17%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Average expected future service (remaining working life) 12 YEARS 10 YEARS
Mortality Table IALM 2012-2015 IALM 2012-2014
Superannuation at age- Male 60 YEARS 60 YEARS
Superannuation at age- Female 60 YEARS 60 YEARS
Attrition Rate 0.100% 0.100%
Voluntary retirement Ignored Ignored

KMRC
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30. Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods

presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of

assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated unless it is impracticable, in which case, the

comparative information is adjusted to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earning Per Share For the year ended For the year ended

March' 2024 March' 2023
Basic earning per share (Rs.) 0.00 0.00
Profit for the year as per statement of Profit & Loss (INR) (100.92) 7,272.04

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per share

3,75,86,20,000

3,75,86,20,000

Opening Share Capital - Nos.

3,75,86,20,000

3,75,86,20,000

Closing Share Capital - Nos.

3,75,86,20,000

3,75,86,20,000

32. Chief Secretary, Government of West Bengal had issued a letter dated 06.11.2012 mentioning that GOWB has funded a sum

of 348 crores towards Land Acquisition for East-West Metro Corridor Project. The Company has taken up and pursued the
matter with Government of West Bengal for details of T 48 crores so claimed to be funded to KMRCL, as no such records

are available in the records of the company. Reconciliation and resolution of the matters is still pending.

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE UNDER IND AS 24

a) Related Party Disclosure

Name of the Key Managerial Person

Nature of Relationship

Shri P. U. K Reddy

Chairman

Shri V. K. Srivastava

Managing Director

Shri Angshuman Sarkar (till 01.02.2024)

Director (Finance) & Director (RS &T)

Smt Ambika Jain (from 02.02.2024)

Director (Finance)

Syed Md. Jamil Ahsan

Director(P&P)

Shri Dhananjaya Singh Director
Shri Nagsen Moreshwar Dhoke Director
Dr. Saumitra Mohan Director
Shri Asim Kumar Majumdar Director (RS&T)
Shri Jaideep Director

Smt Mohua Datta Gupta

Company Secretary

Shri Samik Bhattacharyya CFO
b)  Transaction with the Key Management Personnel during the year/period

Particulars MD/Directors KMP
(Amount in ‘000) | (Amount in ‘000)

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,1961 35,505.00 35,063.87

Value of Perquisite - -

Profit-in-lieu of Salary - -

Sitting Fee to independent directors* - -

Total %'5,505.00 35,063.87

* Director's sitting fee for 2023-24 was paid as there was no Independent Director during this financial year.
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(c) Apart from transactions with related parties reported above, the company has transactions with Ministry of Railways,
Government of India which included but not limited to the following:
Nature of control :- Shareholders having substantial interest

Transactions during the year:

Name of Related Party

Nature of Transaction

Amount (in Rs '000)

Ministry of Railway

Pass through Assistance

30,00,000.00

Receivable against JICA Loan

14,70,026.53

34. FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies: like Advances to Contractors, Construction
expenditure, consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The total amount of transaction expended by
the Company during the reporting period are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advances to Contractors
- EURO Nil Nil
- usb Nil Nil
- YEN Nil Nil
- AUD Nil Nil
Construction Expenditure
- EURO 14,87,382.72 6,86,055.70
- JPY NIL 3,05,724.51
- UsD 2,45,086.56 2,42,453.40
- AUD 80,548.30 11,618.26
35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
e in the principal market for the asset or liability or
® in the absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
Management uses their best judgement in estimating the fair value and its financial instruments. However, there are inherent
limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented
are not necessarily indicative of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of
respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at the end of the each year/period end.
36. The details of disputed service tax and income tax dues as on 31st March 2023, which have not been deposited or

deposited under protest are as follows :

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount Period to Forum where
(in ¥ ’000) which the dispute is pending
amount relates
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1,854.94 FY 2009-10 to Appellate Authority
2012-13 Commissioner Appeals (11)
Central Excise

Income Tax Act,1961 Tax Deducted 14.50 FY 2022-23 Total Defaults as per Traces
at Source

Income Tax Act,1961 Tax Deducted 7.32 FY 2021-22 Total Defaults as per Traces
at Source
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37. There

REPORT 2023-24

he Financial Statements (contd.)

is no Segment Reporting Activity.

38. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

39. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments (to the extent not provided for):

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(in T 000) (in % ’000)
a) Inrespect of the following:
- Service Tax matters under appeal FY 2009-10 to 2012-13 1854.94 INR 1854.94 INR
b) Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debt 1,27,55,353.23 INR | 1,27,55,353.23 INR
¢) Claims by Hooghly River Bridge Commissioner towards 13,301.36 INR 13,301.36 INR
various expenses
d) Estimated amount of Unexecuted Capital Contracts 2,81,008.03 INR 3,24,706.29 INR
(Net of Advances )
e) Amount outstanding against Letter of Credit 1,316.60 EURO 1,316.60 EURO
f)  Permissive Possession Charges for 38.5 acres
of Land (refer Note - 26) 3,36,87,942.75 INR | 3,36,87,942.75 INR
g) Way Leave Charges demanded by GOWB (refer Note - 27) 88,96,900.00 INR 88,96,900.00 INR
h) Additional land from Kolkata Port Trust for Ventshaft 88,83,466.54 INR 88,83,466.54 INR

(] Service tax appeals are pending since 2009-10 to 2012-13 before Commissioner of CGST & Central Excise (Appeals-1). The

last hearing was held on 13.10.2017 and thereafter there has been no progress with the appeal, hence not recognized in
the accounts.

[} Point (b) constitutes number of claims against the Company, related to conciliation and arbitration award, which are yet
to be settled at the Court of Law, hence disclosed as contingent liabilities.

(] Claims by HRBC are not supported by any verified documents.
The amount is related to the budgeted capital cost to be incurred during the next two financial years. The estimation has
been done on the basis of the physical and financial progress related to the project. Expenditure is booked as and when
the liability is raised and discharged. Hence, this amount has been shown as estimated amount of unexecuted capital
contracts.

40. Debit / credit balances of Sundry Creditors are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

41. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's
classification / disclosure.

Notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of the Balance Sheet have been duly authenticated.

Signatures to Notes 1 to 41

In terms of our report attached

For Raj

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Kumar Kothari & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registratio

CAR. K. Kothari
Partner

M. No. : 055208
UDIN : 2405520

Place : Kolkata

n No. : 320166E

8BKGSAS6842

Dated : 29-7-2024

V. K. Srivastava
Managing Director
DIN : 10207179

Samik Bhattacharyya
Chief Financial Officer
PAN : AMWPB7941H

Ambika Jain
Director (Finance)
DIN : 07271472

Mohua Datta Gupta
Company Secretary
PAN : AIEPG3324K
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TR T | 39 Gohed | I3 377 FRuTen, T Waeish i shiffes a1 39k RO &g ®9 F 97 3142l Yyaay 1 Sk
T2

T T3 (AAd 1<) & SRS T &1 0 93 ol a0 e 1 26l & SR 1 & Gsidhd ST § ge@t &
frdterT & foIu Sueisdy @ o1 93 ¥ off STetsy TR |

ST Hed & SMIVMER
Tl ShTcTeRTAT HET TeT ShITRYT ferfHe s
/-
T : AT TGN &= T[er
30 fgds, 2024 T Hi=e
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f1e9TeR Heel ot UfdaeT

fceTen HEd I 31 HIE, 2024 &1 THI GU a4 o U ST ahi 3fohfard faxir faeRor, Hifafyes oar adefent o afdae
AT IR o e U HeToraT Tiieish ol fTfirlt & |rer S1oeT Hieteat aifiieh ufaae Teqd id gU TH=idT 2 Wl 2 |

fairar fafergamg

nfeafed 9 & SR, S 'S5 32 Aal HIRSR IR &1 g &9 <4 H ot g 2, S fof 0d & Hier ok JaaT v
qfy=m 7 TS A I S ATl Teh 3ot 3Menfid 719 s gifse fawen 2, fgeht S & 16.55 fFamie 2 |
T8 ¥ 5.74 foReiiay feQn s ¥ SR 3R 10.81 ety Jffm nfemmr 21

31 AT, 2024 1 TAT 9% o foQ fowiey fawol o1 fe@n a9 arel @ d 21 o f9avor’ o 319N &% e & alg

AT F. 1,00,920/- ARG I I (A o1 Jo T3 H "1 3faad]” e o 37eF 3TRfad Ud TR’ o ded SHmifsd
AT e

RN o & SR HU T DI T, Fedm A e e S Tet o |
gfarsT et feerfa

FIARTAT HERE IR fAHdS ("hUHIRHITA ) T3 S[ale 2008 H hIctenldl § 352 9% Hdl i SRk HHIT o
T A (50:50) fEEEHT & T YRT TWAR 3R IFeFH S AR o1 Uk FIoT 3T T o &9 H 2R 77 o7 |
e F, S TRt ot Faiet § et AT o, WRA TR T 23 I, 2012 &1 i forar o fop g 9% vy i
oY YT AT (T 39 918’ THSNSTR) bl HiT foar ST o1 38 S5 & o1 9t & &9 7 fonfeafsar st
| ol & SER, Yo BTG o U9 T ST 74% feie EniieiR wTedt Rt HaTerT o g 9 26% felier 2 |
T ATE UFH S TR ('STefSeegal ) GRT il H T T T4 9RR THITR o g&diand & fal T4 | 9resf fasmm
TG BT TH decd oY ST 3R ITedl 1l e (3qehdle "THNU=T ') T e T 2 |

A I HAT A (37T 2015 H) =0T o1 off o GREASH ol f=Re ame TR §RT TEAIfad ardfdes J1 & STTER
fifed feram ST o7 39 ae § g4 SATd Y SRR gRT 98 el ST |

R FER 2 off i fora fof St SmRiar UfEsiT o FoTie I & dh TRASH SRae 618 o &1 H SeT
AR R | BT, RT TR T o ot S1R 310 U T ST UfEST o [ S o 9T 39 Uehlghd (10T & ded
Tted 3T NS o T FAMAT o6 1 | ST o SR T Jad Ha T I, HIcAshTdl gRT G el STt & ST Jomedt
& U 31Y TEEE & w9 20|

T TIferant ot Sret fagiaamd &
o WA H foRHT off viferTeTell 7 & T wRel uRaed g

o TART 22 TG AT & Tgad AT a1 W@ et gaeT 3R faees &1, Teas Al WIH T ST
SThT TEAS Bal g & FTeT e -T13e Al aig, weatfad Tiar-fammeet AT AR & A1 ST & e
Aredoleh AgeT-v H SR gfaen @

o  THES AN WY YNA ol Fa Tedl 21 DI &
e TS W IRA T T e Wl ITAvH He e e

o THITYH I fafae Sonfad, o/ STEEE 3 3 afEsH Y 200 fvaes ufESHTeT # F we 7T o, e
QA o SHa i dga S H Heequl T+ ST |

Tl 1 KOSt 7 7% T forar e o for ufiEs w6 i tfenreny, qdr Yot arensi S g @or ge o g
AT TSI o | Gt T o1 GHTEH Y ol T 8 ; Tedifeh hrefae & <ot aneft off o gge, forept faawor 39 e &
ERIERIES
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Ffiss ufaaea 2023-24

RETSTT 1 =0T 7 Q7 e S AT o | ffieT, =Rol 7 Yet o e fhu S 3 e f fafed €

=ROT-| 1A qiee e YT -V T IIee ok Lifeem 5.30 fFHT | 14.02.2020
IB ez oieh W § HeAaiT 1.67 {1 | 05.10.2020
IC AT ¥ faaee 2.33 0 | 14.07.2022
=ROT- || 1A FTEST HeH ¥ ToANS 4.80 79 | 15.03.2024
I8 TEAS ¥ fameies 2.45 & | A1 2025 & AU AeHES

AR % 16.55 fHAHIT § 4, 14.10 foraiiey, @ee v Yaet-v § e e [9.30 fhaied 3 gEel deq 4
TECHE T [4.80 foemiay Teet & ST & fou @it fezn 7 2 | weee SiR fareres o i 91 2,45 frardies ft
WS 1 A 2025 % HE W S 1 AT 1 T ¢ |

TerdToT * fareiar o T ST

RIS % T B T el % qeT sruT frafafaa 8 :

(i) ffT STCTEIT THEAT o HROT AT & T TR@VT, AT SR R 2012 H U= SIe TWHR GRT T e
AR AT ST 37 : 37T 2015 § T foralm 1T | URATSHT o7 s JER@vT & He i ol 3ifoH &9 3 a feifad
T (ST HeH ¥ UTArE & a4 Yffd §g) |

(i) TEAME & U &7 HAER ¥ S [ 2017 H )]

(iii)  HeTR o foTT WA [T TET ¥ M (S 2017 H HS[d]

(iv) ST 19 HEMRI &1 4

(v) TSR &9 H 31.08.2019, 11.05.2022 3R 14.10.2022 T A7 TH@ 0T 52416 2 |

(W) 31.08.2019 Fl FHANR &7 | FAICE - TS WS & a9 Ufyaw M G4 § 9H1 ) ST - 579 ey
FSH AR (A= TH TBM1] H = FH Sreh I TR 18T o7 df 4t i 797 o 3fex gl o rer fafya
T ST TR T9T g3 STeh IROTREET Tee W hTh! F9a 31 U7 31 G0 & 7979 &7 § $o $An
TR ATSTE |

(@) 11.05.2022 T 37 iz FRTT SfeT H F12 o 9 wid & FH07 & IRE Famer § fffaet e & §
AT & TreT g BT TaT |

(@) 14.10.2022 T TSN F HF T4 96h (Ad1-2) T LT & Frer Oy o7 7497
T Ud U hl STferahdr

AT T T TR@VT, I TS LA AT 39S, TEAHE 3R e o STanme § ghg, Afafed 997 & R g
3fg, AT Jaex | IR &1 Aeiicad] § Seard 3R R o SrEi=aaT 7 foie qor S/ aeiR § JRAT 9o &
3AR-7IM NS & HROT, TRAHT & Hrfraeq § ffed sifafiad = & SR 9 ot ara § 9fg g8 8 | o 3
T 2015-16 T ¥cl HATCT 1 8996.96 IS & . Thi TONIT AN TEIAT ol | TeIH WAl HTTerd gRT g Uen |Hfd gRT
T o 1S, T I . 8574 .98 TS (4874 .58 TS TN &I Wighd AT o Hehrael) ol Yo &g o 31esT faie
22-10-2020 RT STTACT foRal 77 2 | T TN ST Herrer ohT SR frefarfad o:-

() TONfd ST g & T ge R feder, 2017 o

(i) fedeR, 2017 T AN &1 TE S0 § Jead RAE H fifed o1 377 fGUa, 2020 e AT T4T T
e fohar T |

(iii)  OfESTT ot 219 &t e S, 2021 AR |




fAeus Aved &1 ufadaceq

T SfcAfad FROT o HRVT, Wiehd LNT AN b H ST G0 T I T 91 aui o1 90 31feres o
T € | g B e o SReT gAY Sifires e, o 8 9fg, T S R 369 i antd § far, e § gean,
st oM Sheddt (MUt Sheld THT e Te U5 Al el § YR a7 T SAR-1gd 371 & R0y
TR G ST Wrerehar (STRGTE -2) T 9fg 22 € | 1 3 3ot Wa1e o 10,442 .41 IS % .1 U TENfad Tonfad
TRATSHT AT (STRTE -2) T 9ot 1 @ 1R Jaiet Wi SOnferd URESHT AT (TREE -2) STar Ud Ired 7t
TN Y HATCH & AR |

¥ 2023-24 o SR T ATE12024 o 1€ W@ STt
2023-24 T <R ITAfERAT

2Ee] HeM § TOAHS T 4.80 fortT Targ o =R0T-11A ST 1207 36T TRET STgad 8T 05.02.2024 31 06.02.2024
T TERT T o 3 3 Wier 1 MIeRR 12.02.2024 1 AT g3TT T | YRA o HH Te 31 3RT 06.03.2024
TS % I & d1E THST A T UTeHTS (4.80 ) & <1 1 €S 15.03.2024 F =] R T 2 1

TSN 3R FIATT LI & [T e o AU TAaR T e & af 2023-2024 H Ueh 7@ Hiet o1 T2 o7 |
S ST TR B BTl AT o e I o e A 239 N % wrerq § Sel T ¢ | A% €N 391 H Teed SR U St
TR ¢ FfH15.03.2024 T H3T 27 Ifwmet gl Fel & I T WL |
o i niferam fafaet wTdl [graet He & uoee]:
QY R & gar fHmn anr 7§ Sear gi o € 5 Mo e YT I g o1 ST
Tk A AT fafer gRT A o S T | wRr-11 7 4 uft R 2 5% R e % w0 #
SPET SHRT T 3TN e "ohe Us et fafey grr fmmfed e o € | v @i fqereies Jaer At
H TorH! o FOI1e 2 Alfeliid e STl o il TIerg WM & T8l B~ T af faaien! Brgent 9ot =) 4
TYAT [{T9ST HeM, TT9ST, WeTehid 3R UEs) o ffaet e W1 el JehT ¢ |
QRO g T Ifafaf o R g e 2

gOTwHE &t | QUi gETHR™ | gutdr skt

waTg (HeT) (*ex) wfera
qfte/2 | TEaHs ¥ fEmce ECRIL 4892 4892 100
RIEEERIIE 4892 4886 99.87%
/1 | TEeT HeE ¥ TEArS e T 7600 7600 100
qfe=m H 7600 7600 100

*x % 38 HaX ofaTE 9 ¢ A agsarerr & # ufve M Geper 9O S Sied & e fidad v @ STt ser
2019 & FuA & U T 74T I T | HE g T afery T S 32 Wl A G & e 7 3wl e
T H 2o & SR 3T ONE TeRH [ B o aTe ufve T g # 9 6 Hia¥ o e §e & far s

O 90 AR Yftd QE =g @1 M0 E | TROT-1A H T 4 fed QOr § wumel Te, T G 3R A eTed uReioy
7 T I ¢, g Teees WeE H € At %, et ST veang iR e o 9 i | afa
T, 3 3R WOTCA TehH ok YGIMRTIT o 91 Yok R AT 1 o fofu fomam <7 Te1 €, o el 2025 d
TR S HT AT T |

0 TS (FEl iR Tereid TH & 99) H Jeaad! SaehTa (ehi-Fe-3Tcie Ide 37X JoTrelt Fermt
Hfed TR AT SR 1 T T SR A1 Y e e |
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afi® gfaasT 2023-24

2o @t

R~ | SR ROT- |1 % fou firgh 2feet (Fefre-o) 3o o forw gopof 35 ard=s Yot fader § v 7 2 | wraer fe
Y TEAE Tk T4 T SR A GO § do 7 feAfer T o el @ @ e @ o ey o) e e e ) Aot v
fed & TraeT HeM a5 3R T fATda 3 & sfea-aeel & ot weaE ¥ faarees a% da o e off [
7 2 | e 3R Sare o S 9feE M G § T 2.00 AR T do R & w5 off [a
T 2 IfgETeeE ¥ UEAHE oo fed W M GO # 0.45 R ofer 9 ok o1 e o1l off arent 2|

TfeiT @ik
14 Yo, T 6 T T3, o1 3, fAfTeioT SiX wliemT o fauw 5. 899 .91 &I 1 &l @Nd W a¥ 2015-16 |
Eunue faffds, SR 1 fAfFer v 1 T off | TgURR, S % fa1 e SR and F. 9.38 FIS T 1 T 14

IRt T ML T ST T 7 | 33T Yt 31ef 15, 16 3R 17 FT M F MY HEwHUA A =i few M@
% 121fafa 03 3% 30.09.2024 T 31.12.2024 F S I T ST |

fergger smyfet

R FRER o AU fogd Smgfef o1 e Gy fafird s o1 =iar 7 8 | 9t =) i Lo gfed gEel deq &
TOARE WS & 419 a1 freres ¥ YR -v & & 9= o, St 2 9 77 6 Ueiads @ €, fostel smfd
T ST A1 T E | FAAH H HHA T TET AR Tel 2 o HRYT TEAE 3R faaee & 9 gi g #
fersTelt SMmgfef o7 T TehT R R |

TEehoteT 3T gferaeT

0T | F oft fAwt 31X Uerest oY AT Y fean T @ qen fae fiverss gR w6 fer e g ) Ao &
fATaY 31T TRl et T SR safe =Ror-11 3 Foft yftrre Lem W A T 2 | W) F gl frwt e
TeAdaRl oY 1] o< ferar 7 © et feqde fordieres R qafore o2 ferar o 2|

[T Hara- yutrett (‘Eaad’)

TG Yd & TaTE oY (R e i S o o frfa § ererefifuss Wi & SR ey o e e

AT & & WI-T1 GET 3R WM 2o A1 § Ueh 3ot dIdTeRyT 10 3@ o ol Ush TIEM 9 |
ot e & foru Sy o1 el fad quAdidiuet w1 veH far T e |

TROT-1 3R =R- 11| & S0 T H W oA T 7 SR vees $ ¥ fagrees 3% % 99 w9 e
DTG AT TRATT AT & T |

famafett, iRl Ug SiEHiEeh hal sheleT (TUHHT) T

T T -9 WT AIRT o oAU Hod TauqdIey gR1 §9R SR ¢ f=07 (S womet o1 $eem f&ar
ST <1 & | TUHE T o TH AGd $57 AR Ag oou, W R S T e | Jgat-v A e (e & afem
T IHE T BTgaHT) F AU =R — | o7 e Teet & W e JhT € 3R 14 T 2022 Y AE GRACH H
T et feam T € 1 =0T 20 % AR W vET efi Beet e, g1l A, Helehid 3 UEAMS & fATfeT 3t
FcfieRty e T e 7R T 3 15.3.2024 T AT A ARG T TE | TIANS 3N fqAIIeE & 9 & TS w
ST T TR € 3R SHad 2025 H T W I AT ¢ |

S5 - 35T A AR & 37T T W IF o Cwd e Q¥ o fou U @ et st qiAred & fow = o6
fer a2

gftrTd @e ¥ € g U0 i
RO~ | T SUSUH o1 1] 7 &1 T € | T9el He & UieAg deh =R0T-1| % foqw ugum et =] =< feam e




ffcus gea &1 ufaags

T AT BT W 3R i Y 3ok 3 T HH 71 T ¢ | Werg § Ferr v wfed fqareres qe aafe
T T T TeT € 3R T e 6 fafaet Ssnfe @t & 9o gafad U s w® €1

@  UHTEvuT =T yuttelt ('EEiUE’) R

TAST HEM T TS Tk =R0T-|| feTd Wt o fou Seieg et 1 s =16 3 fean a7 $iR ufEre &
2 | Y I Wl 3R Fiat sl Sk F BT HH A WL

@ TICHIH ThIT TaT (TUHEST / TEthId ThiT Slar (Tugsit)
6 A R eI o foTu dIuEEt &1 &1 1 6 UfeAad g LM o fIu dIugsi (37 318 dll ©IahH Thid 1a9)
1 A TR B e T e |
Tt 6(3%) TfeAdds WM 7 oTelt =g dTet fugstt wYad 2020 F =] & U T 2 |
ot 6(358) YATT REE F O SE ATl Tuget T fiq of =1 2 U T & | qenfy, faeiee (afem wimm)
TR FfeT o G UGSt bt Tefg, i BT 1 e 2 |

HUT o AT WA

& o U a1t T TAHTOT SR ST G TR i Aleh SHRAT o1 GLoHTcash &9 § TRE 1 SO 377 39
TE GTAATHe: e i ST faoTwsit gRT et S | =fer 7o &t g7 < St & wemiaRe e me frarfit = awes
& 1 @ HHT T, SURAY 370k oAU HoeiT gRT GRS AT Telal i el &1 T8 ¢ |

** I I T Ug o8’ & SMUR 1R UHYYd A1 W Ye 53 727 7 | S, 3 52T o shRoT shiT T
I T T BT AT FAR 7 lereTereh 21fed & o1l 7 | aZdTetR GaT § I SO i A o Gee 7
HEAET LN GEUH FLT ¥ Heeedl ol = fopar 2 | udl oy erdiet snedidt didun Sl o Tey # fean
T 2 | BT, ShUT 39 el S AT 3N e iR 1996 T €RT 34 % dRd HIFART 3= =TT 7

I 27|

THATAR Skt TEATAT HT TAG : Teh AT T

2yutt faaur Ugel ¥l | TEA UeAT | e ger || el
31.08.2019 | 11.05.2022 | 14.10.2022

A § ferTel T g & 4. 710 154 192 1056

gizar 7 e U A 693 154 192 1039

TR o d1¢ I bt T Ao 406 144 192 742

AT | JeRforrer A (wie) § gifad st @ § 298 10 0 308
AT USH fRU STHAT 9RaR (T aR) 202 0 27 229
AT o I1E ST S T eAa T (R ) T 71 32 1 104

SIS Teh TSI ST T FAZT (FHRTT ) o7 4. 70 4 0 74
ECIECRIED] 72 9 12 93

& fopu T e 23 2 0 25

o A T T 9aq 39 7 12 58
R & 37e 9 10 0 0 10

qTfea ganT 81 21 30 132

| &ffet T SRaTe SRR (T aR) 77 16 28 121
i TRETT 1 T 3R G gartt 0 19 30 49
JohfeieR ST/ o T 3T g 32 2 0 34
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afi® gfaasT 2023-24

TEAE W faareieg (JRT- 11 &) 7k 919 TS ohl G ki Sht 90 AT -

FSH SR &3 H Gfo=H M GO H G 8 1 A =131 o hRoT, Haw Bl et e o adieon | e sl & wH
¥ Aol T ATl I Tead gu, 59 W et SR T e mr on 3 2

W. Ugel geqT faAieh 31.08.2019:
) OfvEm M G H g e W A S {dT & o fau e a6t T s vt o
) Ol T g [@ie-1) § Wi dsR S IR TR gRT SRl T A8 1 I8 =0T
. GO g fedieh 11.05.2022:
U) 99 %9 3R I & fag g & fem
) REad IHe, AR H faew @
. el ge faqie 14.10.2022:
©)  ufvEe M g H S TS e S & S| -2
) g T [Ete-3] iR afeem T g [Ee-4] ¥ g T8 -2 W W W e SR A e g
Geh L T ATZ T TATHHT

. 3 fadmr s

T) R U T [EE-2] T O M GO § T e ST gAeEeaT % R0T iy g9 [Gd-1, 2
3 3] % oot UHEIGT S o foIn e o <Y 9[eend &1 T 71

) gary Afceten WERR W EaHIeua dfaeleT I T
q) g THS BT IR [F-58T] |
2N S T e Sl Hi-3 T § (e I de IR T
%) e SERA ol GARHT
faaTeteg ST TeeAs o dier dAeh-iehl YATAIYUT ShTalt aTel 919 WEwaqut shTat o ToTg STEMSit Ux sh1q UTT:

fqaTees - TS [2.45 R % Heaiqul sl & W1 S ST =RT-11B T A1 214 W AT @ | dehAren! FAar Ot
I HEcAt S B Ffed s & fou, s 3 faaries 3R Toeins % S g1 B % 91 Hewqul sl o W
0 ?q Frefafad meeol @t & foaw, {5 & ifrerier A 2023 % o1 T & THT €, Tehlehl AReeiT 7eM i
& o el e =t foregat foran © | Aeegu et ot oo feurfd 39 e 2

1. 9 T SR ufEm M G o Sie a1t Uk i st Gt sat ot e 9w 8 g 2 |

2. A9 i ST (didy, S S didi3) oY gt a3arei fidiad e T W Rty ey o e o
TR

3. foee iR wEeE § O UEl S 3R e Ut Weferd shieh St G § WA HaST T STeHT e
Yo GaTeT Tt TREIER T IV 9IS ST 0T T 36T femr w2 |

4. TH9e o o 3ie¥ 38 e g ohT S I S IR R SN et GAT o 32 Higk A e @ e
T HT BT &L |

5. UfSEH M G ahEeR (Wi 1) R REad 9 W G0 ©S 1 AR [ e



Ao Aved w1 yfaqaeq

6. T TS (72) FI o FH HT HH R TE |

7. TG (T 3) SN Al T G (T 4) F -2 T % O G @S H IR0 T T AT @R |

8.  d T # Gidi-2 T o g 07 1 1 I T o §1E FeRT I (Wi 2) & fehe 0d e gi H i wE
T THIHERT T hTH Y& fohar e |

JEI U gaaT

ST o T A @V o e o IRASHT § wifaq S, (ST S8 I W@ o Y 677 STHIAT oY, o SHedm

F foTw Ueh R GER SR g T i € | ST, A8 SRSl kT S e T €, e Jenfid W | U

HRTRIUT 3T TS WM &t 7 g o1 g STavaehd Tel el | FoAM o 39 URaSHT H g9 Jef 3 Gaiferd w18

TS T 2|

QRETSTT F e SAfEt s R T w0 § Frefatad e W & T e

e  TESI e & flerd ot Hiéne Hircia )129 g THa)

e TSI HeH & H gel & STardl fIugk & WA 7 37eT g1 GehTHT T TR

@ TN H 30 37aT ST TohTH AT TIHIARYT, fS I 18 o oAl T AR TR Teel & T W I i
& fe e

o TP T WAIT % ST Wi ford 63 37eT ULl TR Fa1dil T I

® TR TN Fidl o SIRU SHEIE YaaHe H 80 TRART &1 I |

L RICIIRNC LR

FHICTERTAT o e B STETET ATl Selieh! J oA ATl JealehR '-35 Hal ufEstn 9 weiaeoig =Hifat & o 2
SO T IR & 9F 2 o 91E T 31T A 7 39 T T SR |

HeA IS o HT-F1 LN TE1d ST bl Gie=w STet YguuT f-RI50T aie o H-Hrer qfeew el §HehR o TTa]
T ST ROl e St § Hed &1 S o | T TR Yeie S Sl T & AN Y TEl € ST o $eTEy st
feid & 3feafad forar mn g |

TIHT &1, STl 9 e 8, 3feam 17 fafes #1sfae & Ardst &7 SHIer id g0 daR fwar 1 w1 ¢ | fel &6
TAEES! o1 e 32T & T 9 femhl & &0 # fesied o mn e

‘F - A ST THTERYT o TRET BT W 3o & 7T 2Rt R Ufishet T4 Shl o Sl € | UREST o fee
& T ST 1,335 UST b1 22/ T | 37 |oft TSt o T TR v, fes O 37 Ut o Wi 7, o w3
TeH hiTE TE § 31 379 RIM R T 45.61 ARG & e AN F 6,900 TS AMI MWL |

et T
TATRERT o STa el S8k I H Fecyul THMET ol &4 H T@d g4, $-d% el IRAHT &l SR 1aeH 3 fafad

ENfEf, 7ok (U Wi dfvass SSfaftn ®) gRT gf@ o) &1 Td9 200 TSI § & U F97 70 7 | 98 U
IeorEA Il A ST @ B |

Tl ShT TTETUT, WENfiTent sragigur, faeeh gur o it =&

ST T fafir=T qonfert o o Suge WreNfienT o7 SUm ITAN UF S WenfiTen <7 =15 Ao s o fou fesme
TR R AR ZreiT TRe0T SR ot SE e o ¢ | wTedifen, fkad 3ue feEr €
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afis ufaa<es 2023-24

(T)  3SIT T T -
(i) Zoll TIT & fIU 337U T FHed a7 79 :
o LU AR ITF i H UALSI-Uh T Shl AT ot qReheaT a2 B |

o A WM § WIawiH T SR o1 T, ST W e I9I-T i SAVHehHT ohl ShIhI € qeh ohH T STl
N Y T-a07 Sll &1 @I o H el |

(i)  OfESHT & fou QfeT i Elie o1 Ae a9 ¢, S TeRied 9feht sl qiterear sear 2, fSed ST o g9
faed ScT=Tal, 11 foh qumtet! ® =t Y&t 37 afafiar 2t §RT @ud ol S |

(i) Ufeads DYE & IRgeTeT Y 39 e ¥ T T e, e 7 % 96 8wk e A9 1 STAN T wieeds
ST ST | Ufad s WM W Uiciishmaing Iiad % ST 3 e § iz ol &1 & o i Meaifed f&an 2 |

(iii) T HISI-TFR S TR HS LI ST Sl Fosil TS e YUl o HTL-T1eF YfTd Lo o fou aResfead femam
T 7, g ferd, Sferm aTeRt, Wt genfe & ST Y STferd faRar S e |
(iv) ol o derfeqer B & 3T & AU S0t R 3814 U el

YA ITHNT o AU Fioll 31 &t 2 He+g feil # gR Jcdt o a2 o STeTedl 1T SaT | fEuy 33 &1
30 e AR forar T € a1k & Gd Wk fder AT T STANT e ST He |

(v) il TEI0T SN X it e
T8 RS & Uk 3 T § frefifa e s
(W) WiENfTeRt SragiyoT -
(i)  reNfieRT SrawiET E foom # fR Mo yAr
ST T SAIITT UfREISTHT ST AN A o U € | TefiThT STaeiOT S WA ShT Il ST o fore e =RoT
AT o ST |
(i) 3eqE GUR, AN H FHT, SIS 5T 47 ST Tfeeeiia S oo e gU &
T forer AT a1 SR vfasy § Sfad g I fer s
anfefer faenTdr o AgaT SEET -

g qRETSTT HiseT qfTfeorh 3R YL &t deh TG T STcisel S, T &1 98 gifeie 3ifuds Saaaiie & &9
T faehTE Uee o T ¥ BIE & FW N T & fHart ™ ge9t kg @t & Meqifed S i | 278 afEsmr
AT 3T 3HF THIE B Igal IRaeT STeidl bl A i &1 Uk FIE ¢ 3N I8 Sl § Jamed & g ek
TRHTERUT USHUT oh1 ShTHT BC doh ehH &Y ol | HONd TREUT o 3TER 39 Ae H ToAME W HHUT Sierl tears
H3T AT o T 2T Graemd off 2T | O 3o o faraes 3R gaer WMt o Qrel-Trel e Ly o 3Tgh
T off ST el Iucte BT | 7€ $ 3 A o AN F & onffer faery Y agrat fienT SiR arard
ofig 3T 91 TEHUT T HH ek ITEl W07 H R |

T I T TREISTT o T

FHICRTAT T J5 AT GRATSHT 370 31 7 Uk SMefeh, QRFard, Telavl- 3Tehe S qRae JoTedl @ ST shiciehiel ¥/ex
3R MY o I &= T FTe YT, AT S 3R Tk THIATS T ! 8¢ ek WH T T | T8 TTEel 3
IR & S[SaT IRt o feld Uk g T TR e e U & o ST Ufiee WoMel a1 a1 37 | 319 ¢ fo & 2035




Ao Aved w1 yfaqaeq

o T 7.5 ARG AN UfAfET 39 YOS ST YA T | ARfYeR =RoT ® 9REs T & o 3fad qeeeiE a9e ende
[$3mEn] fopam T o7 iR Fifafires TR HeEet o foRaraa fragdes o w2

TRATST SHT=E & SR TE TR0 SR Qrfsies g4 2 (IS0 & faw sHfese 33a, e # &, wefae
TTERUT T T4 |

g Y T HIAT - T TRaed Hal (Rarees 3 g9 3R smamie &t (e oe fadl iR vfasr & Twee
=] IT3) T IR F YA I (FRTRIT SR Aget) e 1 BT aRae |

TR AT G - 11 % 0 wiewhiH Wi @ 3R stenefer famfe qoret o7 mae |

AEAT TTY TUTET AT €T USHUT hl ShT HIAT - I A BT T AT 317 Sl TRae T 1 [ HT 3%
7T A S T RT3 R I 3 TR W U e TRae T He S |

G TG AT - T, a7 TG0 T 9IRS AN ST S S ¥ g T 100% A Il & 1T Jae
3R FrelTer =TT @1 gRT et ot oran 8 3fig | 7@t do & 347 & 3evd 3R T & o ey w7 foor off geiremor-
ITTFA IR fTehTs fosTe & fagial &7 wier & gU fowar s

IERIRRSIRIGE

forefrer 1 2023-24 % T U & fAU YT HATCHT T TGOS IS1T 34 %, 600.00 Fg. . o | R af & e
I HAC A9 % ST & AU 200.00 RIS TR T € IRGETEN 9 o SR, Yo HaTer 3 Stefier % & foy
300 TS T ST fopu |

Netd sl
fheTeTel St ! 3Tfehd TR IS & 3758.62 FAS T |

31 T, 202471 ST S TEFT TR IS IR ST, JeehTess 3R Fehel goil T 3758 6255 T o1 TaT | ol &
I A (U S TR gRT g%tk SR! Gfed) ot enfid sfaadt T3 2781 37808 (74%) off Sk &
Td I T HAAT T 977 2430 T (26%) oI

T
yfedes af & SRM, AT T U AR, 2013 ST URT 73 % ded ST I ST 19T ST ST A&
Teteef o o SR 0T, RO SR TR BT o

oA -

&) R ot sfe A et e e By R T e fear @

@) fodt o= Frfd freem o =i o) foedl off 501 & Hay & ohi Rl o faerlid) 7@t € w; den

M) U AYEE, 2013 T URT 186 % 27 RT FRHER Ge@d, @ie A1 3= o "AreAm o foRdt of o7
formferet forerrer <A1 wicrferat etfer 8t &1 € |

TETaeh, TEANT ST TYar 320 chust

TfeEATE I 9 & R ST 3 U i o Tereh, FeAnt! A Gged e ST et ot |
T uder |fafa

NS gRT Mfa AT kT G T AT § 2023-24 F IRH frefafad FRve wfie o
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Ffi® ufaa g 2023-24
1. o 9 AR Gl (-FEaT) : Freatey
2. i SEET (R-wre) : e
3. & s fie (- : e

31 W19, 2024 T T 99 o IRM, TRaT Te 9T 1 =R 935 g€-03.07.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023 3R
31.03.2024%1 |

STTeh oI TiiaTeh
Y 91 US TATGUad |, A1 UH1Sde o faei af 2023-24 & U st o7 S7iafieh oiam qdereh fe foham mam 2 |
TRET I KT A AR ol T o 1 Ud 34ch Aafa ufdae o FHiem & |

wifaferer Sr@T uiteren

TR o e 31 Hel o Wierer 3 T FAR HISH US ST, TS TR bl sl AU, 2013 =T 91T 129
% JreT Ufad ©RT 139 % o7 faeia af 2023-24 & fow st o Fifafuss ovar wWiess & w9 7 fged fHman ¢

oIET Ut eTeh ehT UfadeT

31 AT, 2024 ] FHI gC IY o fold ST o faeiia faavol @ @ (Hifafees) on qiierent 210 T AR oKl T
& T Ifae da ¢ |

TS AR ISR U ST o St ARIFEH, 2013 T €RT 143(10) o 37efF fRa or@ier AHen! (TH0) & &
T 1 2 | I ! o STel Sk eI s ufiae & fadie fawit @ o1 oar-wie 3 aar-wiees
1 fierfEt 7 affa €1 9 Sfeese 31w a1dE UsISaad gRT ST Ak Gfedn & w1t € aner st st 2013 ud
3T 3Tl R o W & STeRid i fHaon o 3! oRaT- Tt ¥ grefud Afae Smavasharelt % rET
& T ¢ AT IR & SIS U AT HfEar o SR S 37 Hfeieh Se Y ol [ 5T € | AT forwar 2
o 3% T g oRaT-TteT Wi IAHT T F oY Uk SR Y A 2 WA Ud 3 € | 31 39 gRT orar wiferd
forcier faaolt & ameR W e oo frmmlt 7 3w 7 7 | oren weres <1 ROl # 3fefad e et ® g
T w2 € 3R R stfaftaa foomht &t smavaendr 76t € | Tifafie orar et T ot i # wedie | e
faforemd, smafat, afaerer fomfort 76t &1 € 1 3= IHtenei= a & SR U S oRaT e Jiafd r dRarerst s
et ot ST oY o T R




fTew®s gued o ufageas KMRC

AR o Fasen T HeTeraT wieres et fewfurai

AT 1 4RT 143 (6) T 37T 31 AT, 2024 T AT U a9 o AU forefar fawolt | R & fefen 3R Hererat
qiee (Fiash) 1 frofort of o §

st 3 forefr ot SR Geifer o Wi ufqae ST Jeck Tl o1 GerT i o ol 3 Heaqol [ s 3R
T & | ST WHHIT Y TN & :

©. fa=ite fearfa ux femfurat

TEA-UT

et it g

(dt) YT ufeRaneli=T e e €5 3 6:
uftare gd = (sifaa fafram) e @ 6:
3 47.44 S

FHUT O i AT — 1T 6.1
Ft-hie fasits gaang

(1) /T - T 14 - 5011.20 FHUS

1) SR o 1 AN H 20 A 2023 § 31 A1 2024 Fl (e o T A STAVA hl- AR Tsidh F fefg 1
0T T AT I 9.59 FIS 1 IMHA Tl B |

T IRUTHEEY - gREufadi- TReEred 93 o (G ede)”’ 1 9.59 SRS ohH S AT 3% Jrel 2 -
T FATST-IUR T o ST & T S T w4

-9 WY HINER GRASHT ST gRT Aot €, fraes e %01 @ § Gefe qored 3R =21t T & T
& e forey wiafrer Ty TR e 2 |

iR, FUHARGIA AL FRT AR F01 & GATaM & foau fiiier 761 2, FuHsRdna & difies @ 7 fewd
T F0T T T SRt eIl 9 ®T F arIenTe © Sl hUHSIRETd SRT U Soid1d eIl & hig arkdfdes qehe
T FE A2 |

o a9 2023-24 T @l 2 A, 2024 ! YUUT Ja922 T ITTe] 0T faaul & SR T dar femar @ o)

0 I STEET - 263 37N 295 F U, SIS T MM Ideh 99 Hef H 21 9% o1 S €, Ueh R 20 37l &b 3 g5l
IR 20 FT T |
zafern, fae aff 2023-24 & 0T @raT-a81 § IUAR haeT 20.10.2023 TF & A &1 & feqre fear w2

e, e 39 T R far s & fam af 2022-23 & S, 20-10-2022 e % <1 &1 fedqra fear 1 o, gafau,
fat af 2023-24 T 21-10-2022 T 20-10-2023 Teh &1 INE HEH &1 Hezad! 76 & fqu =417 o feame feam mar @
3N 9% Ueh God W& 2 |

THfAT, S WAL 7 2 3 7did T 811 € 1R STeTETUIT K07 ST -263 3R 295 & IR AN T e
T =Ja-fad Tt T TE 2 | ST, TG I3 o7 3 Frer-Fre 3UR (FH-17) & ST SR ana # = (e Tet
TR

ﬁ o ﬁ ._qﬁ_ﬁz ﬁ o ﬁ .
() ISTTer wfeRameli e - AT . 5 3T 6
1= faiter ufteafaat (2 . 7) 7 253.70 HUS

2) g ufgramele & (desaf omedh) H < 2 Ufererl/ wmeterdrsi ot Tee kg Ud HaT Y (THSugd) i
Tfeufd & &9 # 7 11.41 IS E@ET TR |
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afi® gfaasT 2023-24

O o1 TRETeRIT AIfd . 3.7 o STTUR THSITUEd! & Ufafd sl I THSiugd! o &9 # 9H-ahid qREufl & i

TG A 7 31N WEogdT 3T | I o hHl I TE 7

THERT TROTH 3 ¢ o Trgscgaédl o 3 11.41 SIS 31fsh <o 77 € 31 31 | forefl/ = ot — it wasiiugd
T I &1 A S T

Tt af & SisTent & o T JTaa Mo Uhehi=0 ST i 3 7.24 RIS UGSTUGET i 0fayfd &1 T2 off 31k 7% ufafd
s o e a9 2022-23 § &1 T o | Afe Gelrg & S ©, O 28 fae av 2024-25 T U THSHUEA § AR Y
fo= S|

fireet a5t & SisTent & U SRS e &1 % 4.17 RIS UHSUgdT o ufafd sl ¢ off oIk 7% ufaqufd nfed ar fae
T 2019-20 H &1 T ot | A Fe® < ST @, 1 g fad a9 2024-25 F U UHSHUHAT § €A oY fe S|

78 iiieror ferdt off e F foreier feerfer by wonfer €t izt €, aifen Ai9-shie aftgufy 7 aF eifues 9arE 1€ € T & 5
AL T €

et - et TR

T ey chret

gftee gd = (<ifae fafrerm) (Ae- 6:

ST UYTH{eh S9aT A1 — 21.2 % 123.50 SHilS)

3) SR H S §RT Ueh e fofa it it 23 & AU PictehTdl 3= =are & o9 3 o1 ST 1 72 % 31.43
FAS FH AT IMHAR |

T IREACH @ A o a5 YST S § T AW % F W Fighd A STHT AfeU o7 | T8 RS IR
Td =7 (cifad fafaem) 1 sifrss 2oimar mr @ iR a1 | uRgufa  (A-3hie) T T31.43 FIIS T <A T T |

IEATET-MESNEST HEuH St o ge7 § SN faar= fvig & faeg, i =maredier wepdt Y= & gHer arg O
AP/749/2023 % 3TelT 3TIIE ol T2 | AT =ATATEIST 1T A8 9T foom 7 o fop fia-<eR 62,86,70,229/- ¥4
o1 ot Tfer GEferd A, 50% e & T H MR 50% Sk TR & ®TH | MR, AR TgS, 377 e,
Tl o AT fSHIS ST o A1 T 31,43,35,114/- ¥4 Sl Aehe T ST &1 ST o |

ST aFed, ot farm oot & favg 3 1fi 781 €, 9T YA 3TeTad o TR o1 TIeH ohid o o faar
o7 3R o7t o7 fofa a7t 1 81 gam 2 131X, 2t R € 5 | SRt cereRtor’ aftEre gd o (cife fafre)” &
T ¥ fofa] T € 31 T % STER, 2023-24 % Aftieh @At § AR O e By e TE auiEn @ @ qer e
ftafaat s o TE aeiEr T

1 07 STEEI- 263 (37.19 FAS) 3 KT SMEST-T295 (.2.40 Fg) & foAU ST A7 2 0.5509 INR =T fafHa T W
2 FoT-1 IFER TUATITT UHehi=T ST 31 IRASHIST % SRd shed




e Aved & yfadacq

wufw - Af-wie ufEufaat
YT wfehanefi shE-Are - 5
farege emufe : 3 347 .49 HAT

4) IS § HIT IAD, FIctenTdl §RT TRASHT o AT H=1e o ol fasiell 3[eeh o &9 H @4 &l T8 .14.75 TS
1 T o A SHIAT BT WY YT T AT R TR il oyt SNt 7 1 39 AT By Arsseganstt § <9i & aen A
A9 § AR ®9 H <97 ST =fen

T IRUTHEET AaY Y, SIcTehTdl I I 3T 14,75 HUS T ¥ <30S T 1R g2t & faag ot & afer
e <M T |

FHIAHTAT AT 3ot HIIRTH fAfS (E02) Hoet e fEW Ak 37 BTHST WIH AR W Lfid 335 H0T § of T
fersTelt & il farelt a1 e o TR & |

FUTRINTA 37 AT & T HaT Yot J HoT Fosil S[oeh o1 Wfgfel =l AT 1 & STa1 AfoTfsreh Uf=mer I & T/
© 3R AT 2024 T 37 IR 3N W@ fHAT-Hel & ol Sioil Yok T 24T 41.53 FIS F09 ¢ |

378 T, TET I T 4.00 TS T T AT T € AR THAT, 37.53 A T I A2 3o T W7 o €Y # fe@mn
ST =feT o, STafeh HUHSTRETS 7 AT Yo ey’ 9 & o1efiv 2278 g T 3R 9 1475 g T fafFee
- feretelt Smafe” & aref femma 7

7% iR 51 S 2 foF 14.75 31 T off farelt snyfdl’ /e ¥ "AaY Yo I wiftcr” o # woeiaRa fre s =ifee
& 31X 7 ghafowa foram T 2 fo i af 2024-25 # U R Smo

Hufy - swie ufduafaar

ot ufteufaat

Tehe 3T Tere TUedl W aT ek 91T (1T -10)

3219.77 &S

5) SURIE § U Sk TRAT o FIeT afes ST 3 T 34.43 TS 1 T 9N ¢ | St Il 2013 &1 3T ==
% fediom- = & fordl ST o Fariie foemom TR o o fou QT S/eelt & @3 6 () () o SR HifsH o &
Y 7T TE G 7 Seht ok IR 9 AT A1 IURF, MR, 37 vfasaret % g wfayfedt w1 svem & e o
ST =feT |

TG, AT 7 ek TR o Seet T T 31.43 TS oh1 afes ST ohT 10T & GaArgT et & e

<feF TRET ST GATET T AT AT SAFIFEH, 2013 T STTIA-55 T SATAHAT BT S | BT € | A fored a9
74 dieh & forrm s |

A, T ERT 62.87 IS I AT T & GH i S gHI 7, 31.43 FHAS T T dk M F w9 H, WA F FT
T g1 € YT T TERT ST o W@ SR LR, 3. AT, Tkl bl SISl % ST 31.43 S T I
YT 6T A fofar ST JehT 2 |

Tofer, fafew afer, S vt € @ o1 S Fet 7 1R =1 forehay farawor & yrifires e & w9 F <of #1 TE €,
GAT Y T 994 & T ISA L

o @R T ifq uT feur furai
ot faaort ot ea
@TeRTUT Hifaat (A1 2.1)

6. TRETERRVT fat AT 2.1 T S &1 7 S 3fiia fomar ST € for 37 St & Wy-Ty e TR o gen e
TelE SRT ¥6 HATerT o AMevi & STOR gREufaat sl 9T s =07 T 2 W T afed 9@ & of 21 W
ST =1 RT3 feer qRi et o TR e % o ue i evrE v €
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afi® gfaasT 2023-24

T I HATTT &1 9 (2018) & TTHR "IRASHT & ST o T 1 o 18, HIT Icd, ShicishTdl Tanldhd a0 &
TEd ATf-TR—Y FIRSK o HY-HF $ 4% WAl HIRSR T IRATAT T | I HAF o 75 § GRASH & qof g+ |
TRt o ST T e & R aftaf TRt A % A S Ted oaie STAR 71 g ol
YT TE € [AETER, AT 2.1 3 HAA o Aiesi & gET Tel 2 |

T & TG § 3T HUHRGTA T TE-UT=T B3 ISR GRS o T 6T 61 oy 17 € 37 931 Yo Y
TSI =01 o 37efi ITR-2feqoT SRR o Tr-J1er gt i T GReisHT o Uf=ner 3R Tawa@rd ol s iy 11 2 |

FUHARGA U &1 =R0T § GRS A1 07 7 781 2, Tetifer OfRarst o7 Ueh fewn qeet &1 =] & T ¢ |
e, AT fohT T e I Yaifere aRaft T qeois Ffafad SRot & dud T2 & -

A Tl TIeT A AT = frees ag e TR Tec €1 3% o fo T €, wifehd <1 e sferenieT mgw
TfereTd ¥ foreTR o o & 3R 3 SelT i foa ST Wk 2

B. TS &1 T &g Rl # J % (YT &9 I A Wisk, g 3R fame 3 gxe=m) afgufat gyof afEsr
& fou & 3R 3 WOR Gafed & € | 39T JeAieh QUi g o T e 3R A1 2 % 91g € 999 2 |

gafee, Gqut aREsT & qR7 21 3R R farex o1 aiforfsren ufiener I o fomr, fafead qo frefifta ittt

Tresg 3T F Tufty, T 37 ST F TIHIaRd Tet 5T ST TehdT € 3R IRvHEsT qeagrg o Fé forar S Ferar

=

Tafeq, I fohe 9 o7e e T @ fo SHatt 2018 H Yo7 5o gRT ST O o1 91T bl 9 | foran S =nfew 3i
TS b1 T © foh Shl o fEcTeiien] ol oh1E YTHeh STl A8l & T 2 |

Tt 3MMehfaren IATG T USRI UfaageTd (STEer= = g1 sht T aeh)

7) ST T T 62.87 TS T TIMVT BT WTATIHT ST, SR ST GRT ShoAdhaiR SEehId B JHil < 18 oY, Sl kit
2T BT AT T R 2 |

U ST 62.87 TS 1 RN Te & @ o1 ST b1 €, 31.43 FIS T i e TRAT & &9 H, 7ufd & &9 # g1
B 7T BT Tt ST % Y SR WRIR, 377k 1 A, ofehee] b1 SIST o SINT 31 .43 TS T o1 TMIT BT M
e S T 2 |

sHfera, fafy=re Tfer, S Teet € @ ot ST g § iR =1 o favor F mEfies e o ®9 % ol &1 T 2, B g
FHE T IO € A IS




ffeorw Aved w1 gfaqaeq

feyTer Heer
foreTerel a1 o1 emdr 3fiehad 15 (T58) § ¥ 10 (29) fRIE &1 2 |

e o 7 ¥ ST % 17 3% IS T8 o SR A U U, SE0ar SN A SIS WaHN 5N 0eH i ¢ S8
YTt w1 S 3 TAFEN ¥ TR &

ST (FreeTer a6t Frgfar 3iiR awaren) oM, 2014 % 38 4 3 Trer ufaa st aifafem, 2013 (“sifufm) &t awy
149 (4) % STITCH §, SO T T § o7 I “We= FE9Teh” o1 STavdehdl ¢ ol & 30 909 a8 R ifufm o ar
2 (47) SRT IR oo 77 © | Teiteei 9 & SR et & FR9Teh Hedt § &g & oF fewTes 6 om | wes v
1 Fgfer o U Yo e, Yo Here § S R e e

Y79 SIS & MR TR 2021/2(3M)11/40/4 AT 31.01.2024 T AR AT 3ifaent S, SNEIRUTY 1 Gowmy/AgT
I/ o TG H 3k 3T T9N o SAfARET 02.02.2024 T TRASHT & T & T a1 T 37T dah, S +ff
Ted 71, AfREd TR & w9 H S & e () & 9 H fged e

ST 1 9RT 152 (2) & ST | it Sifeent s o1 frfaat @1 fy & fau ered o1 ST St I aifies
Y 3k F T 5T S |

T THN, i Arelt & Haer 3 5 S 2015 1 Ush YT S 1 8 | 38 & Geof §, arfufm =it o 152
(6) 3R 152 (7) % T TN AR W @ Fet 2, 5t 371 amat o Frey-9rey Tegf ge 91 gsit ol e
TN g7 1R T ST @ | 34 & TRAsK, S0t & forddt off frewrer ol et afiier a1 Sgek o A9 gRT Jarf
HEEARCICRET TR

S H A3k ST GE&AT

31.03.2024 o] G faiig a9 o SR, 0T o f1e97eh Heel &l 08.05.2023, 03.07.2023, 08.08.2023, 19.09.2023,
08.12.2023, 3 21.03.2023 F1 6 () 93 3 |

TregTent sht SR rfiTeaferT

FIFTT T RT 134 (3) (T) 1R URT 134 (5) & A, 50T 9 2023-24 & 1fifer orar & Faier § feere ded
&1 srfiyerfgar fred ©

(1) T TR T YAISY OREieh Heh! ohT I foham T 97 31Y g 29H 319 fameq 487 2 ;

(2) facier faaRolt o ooy & afofa UG oRaier= ifaat =T == foram T o7 3R 3= oIaR AN f5Ra T o e 0y
fofg SiR 3TAM < 3 oI faaergel &, SR faxii o =it gifid TR SRt o el UF 39 3afy & <R 31
3 =1 o qR & A frer gfyenior fear < gen |

(3) ST ST IR T GEET MR NETereT qen 3T yffhaaredt st Ak S T o o foAu Sifufem & qrae
& IR T oiaT Rehis & Tav@ o fou 3 o v e e e,

(4) ORETHUF METHHA & SN T qar fHar 2 o,

(5) |t WIS AT o T T SUTCH A= i & o 3fae 3R e wonferst G w5 e off S U
T T SR T & § afAer & T oft;

(6) @l TSN Wi HHehT T AT forall T |

KMRC

25



KMRC

26

Ffi® ufaaTT 2023-24

qMffer fed w1 an
fafTam st &RT 92 (3) B 77 3ueer fAfRa woy & a1ffeh o+ &1 IR T (3e=eh- 1) fofar T 2|
Taferd Tatt o LT STgder AT e

T Y T o TR 20T % ded Ush 9 Fidsi-eh &1 T 3T9 8 |'$S 0T 24’ & =3¢ 25 317 26 &
IR, 5 SohTeal W Ueh € THR B =07 1 T 72007 21 weeaqo word €11 2, o wfeae 3oTs 3R o1 Jeemd
Tefeyd Ty o T H T S | SO T TER T Geferd T % U 3T FT 1 a1 337 7 37N faeer faawon
Hifr gomd fFu 21

5 Tt & rer 9 & SR ST % TEerol o= & 3T (AfeR Wi 7€) Y B iR fuHuet e §

(% ./3Z)

-2 St UeRfer et o o & ferg

31 ®Tel, 2024 | 31 9T, 2023
BICAR I
I HAeE § ard i 300.00 300.00
ST Td 978 STl HATer § T ffe - -
37 He
(%) IR Td YSit Sl o i & g
IR FARTE HaRe 0.005 0.02
I A R Toiohre (! fagage ™ &l fafids - -
@ T
U fafids 8.01 102.97
IRA AR e fafids 0.09 0.08
et 308.105 403 .07

T & SN TG TSR A Al S Grel YRR o faeror i faeawit & e 33 7 feu m

TETIR, i U -2’ # S (oraEn) R, 2014 % faw 8 (2) % 9rer ufad Sfufram Ot 134(3) % Fars
(T) & Teo # aferd ot & OF-37 T I S ST A T ¢ |

HUT SRt fawi feerfer ant weTfaa shiey ater wifaas aiad=T i ufdagand

TR Heot 59 a1 w1 Y e © fon fawiier o =t 31 A1, 2024 (FFER foreter fawon Geifed 2 & 3fd 37N 39 wfade
F1 ARG & T g3 U bl faa frfd S quifad s a1 g o ifqes gftadT = afaesand w1 2
EL R

ferefier o 2023-24 % IR HUT F TG UG B ff w7 FEfE, At ® a1 SEa, 77 o, S s

(et HifHent @t Fgfed wd mRefher) fam, 2014 & f190 5 (2) & ded FiRa 9w T stfues o1 Mitgfies o
FIIETE |




e Aved & yfadacq

Teh W@ yeer it a1 faenta ug shreiraa
SO T 7 E 3 B8 HIRER URASHT 1 A1 & T8 § | R WA 3 ol foen 7 o afeer T s o

& = T S IRASHT o e o IR 2 T ST SRt T8 | IRETSTT O IR B o 9, IRT SRR Uk =0
o e ST (40T HIRSR o |1 T4 o |

I AT 3 g e € R S 9 A SR & BN & a1E, 3THT IR 3R TEEE BT Yo, Ik
R ferar S |

SRS F Tae §, I 3menfia o1 IS giad faeen & oo & fou us R sifen weem Hifd ar o W ufasy
T 3t g W fer o s | i St S e e & fAu, Wi stiafter fesmn SurEt &8 fEer mn ® (Waw
TRET TEent BRT FAHT oIl Tel & ST-H1e YR o (83e T Hel of@l T (FUsi) gRT e ol T&T o STerl
AL TSI &l Ueh dTedl BH gRT i T3 37ideh oiar-udie gfed) |

Tt wreTfoTeR e

ST IR foramaa & =R07 | 2 | fawiig a¥ 2023-24 & oY o 3THR W &0-1 o FRIfEd qrrfsier Saeere
(FUGTR) o GaY § o SfUfEm, 2013 (SAUTREE) S €RT 135 & WG & ded A ST SEvae T8T ¢ |

o

AU 1 GRT 135 ST STETASHATA T2 SHoh dad a-1T T AT = o SFIe H, &0 & o Freerfafad fFeeret
1 Ueh faferad wfed frfad grifsies Swefia gfufa g1

(1) & AET ARYe T ges, W (e feve

(2) o sEey, AW AEya v it

(3) & gond, A ffdra feve

RLEEELE]

T 2023-24 F U FASAT T (THNT) F Goier H, wifeh T Tkt TRASHT BT FH0T Y T 7 3R A1 TTe Seq
T At B, TSt Sa a3 e fea € o Yo7 5o ol o |1 Uk STdfieh HHEid 90T d & S 1@
TRl € STk o $geRT IR TR Tt S 3R a1g H Fe U unely feenfdl grn st g

e stfgTree o ufaag

T gataw e SfemaT epardl & ST B favdrg Wadt ® | S g SUSH 9, YRd 9N gRT
S SH & WESIer &5 o SEHT o foru ffae sifiyemes W feenfrder gy aifed ©, Frfha stfuemg @ ue afdae
ST - 11% &9 F T ¢ | 21 39 Tfdde 1 U e 2 |

WareI =T Ud fayetaur o3 afaaeT
T =T 3 frgaioT ufeee, S f fefifta €, afifer wfese o1 fegan © sfRergem e - 1% &9 & off T 2
frament I =aTerEt gRT Wi HEeagut ST 3T SevT

forit off frramer a1 STeTerd 1 fregmet gRT U ahiE Feeyuf a1 31 31wt et wikd fofan T, foregent st = 39ek wfasy
o T & =] fEifd o e US|

Afgeeit sl Gram it g@-gigen
FHT & TG Teh FH-3cfed R ifg 7 1 S w afeanett & 9 3aligT (g™, e o framon) sifufa,
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afisw gfaasT 2023-24

2013 & 37l Us” S7iafies forermaa wfifa’ off nfad &1 18 ¢ 1 Tt SHE (@ wfed) 79 AT & orefi o 2
TR T faaoT Fan @ -

i, foiE A o SR Sl TR Sl e - I
i, faeie A & e faerE e fereerdt a6 dem - 3=
iii.  HAT fae A o SIER ifed forerdl sl den - v
rferediepfaat

YT Horerd (8 Yt gfed) ; STErE S 9l o Hererd; o Heerd & e ¥ YA SN o g1 € 9feee St
RN J TRASHT & Foqe § e Ferdr 3T averes Teain ol e AfEdIah i vem s =medr € |

TS ShicteRTdl BHHIE SHIARYM, Shicehd HaMifdad SqaHa AT, Sidehal Jfag, ¥Rd 9= 7 fafids,
Hrugd fafids, 3% ad W2 o bd! fefiasgem siaReH faffds ud o= fafi= miteriRal qer it § ura
eI 3 GEanT & felu 37 Ui STHN Jehe i 2 |

3 U % fAT ST $aXMe ISR Usidl (SISEHIT) gRT 31 18 ooy 0T TeradT o &9 H 7o 31ed ¢ |
a1 TR & e # 39 Tl & Ao o1 I8 e F WIRR il ¢ |

1S fafi= T i I TR, G 3 dehiant fa9Ios & FRaT Gedi oK Gemdr & fau s+4e ufd a8
foel ¥ SR Jehe AT R |

e fie ud soige e difgar o1 a9y =9 ¥ wergr ud 3ok Ufe 39N 9ehe a1 8 |

HIARTT, Tieacter 3R gasT & fafy= fewi, STet fmwr ol wfa o o 3R ®, & Fanfaat, gemert, Jea =it &6t
AL T AT T ST ST GIHAT A1 IS8T ¢ | a8 Ja¥ hicterlal & § ITedl 9fiae &1 96k see | 39
QRETSHT T &7 BT e o fou, 3 Tfafafert o defuder e o o fu 3 ot At 3R Amient 3 uf SR
T FIAT |

S IRATSHT & HTFaaA & fT Gt Tl W Ot o shH=niRar Ud 31=1 it gIRT fopT T 37erek wamdl, ufdagdr, el
e 3T AEH & fau e T9iar FLar e |

THICTERTAT UET 1T THIARIM (A1 S o
TevTen Wee o fe qer S9eht I o
TITT : ShIcTeRTAT ot ..ok gt
feqten : 30 fadav, 2024 STERTET



ficus gued w1 ufgacy
AT -
qMdeh e /T O

31 T, 2024 h HIG fa<iia a8 et

[GFTT 3ffufam, 2013 &1 €RT 92 (3) de
U (e SR TOTEE) FEE, 2014 % AR 12(1) % SR H]

USTIeR{uT Ud 377 faaur
(1) dremged © U60100WB2008G0I127338
(i) dstreRaoT fafer . 99drE, 2008
(iii) T T AT . AT B2 I AR fAffes
(iv) T &t 907/ 39-2uft . ESE ST/ IRE ERT Gt
(v) TSiichd ShTATe o1 TdT Ud Frieh fqavor . FUHRENS WET, THSIREIE e IRER,
SIGERTAT - 700 021
I (033) 2213-4345;
e : (033) 2213-4380
(vi) =T gl St & i
(vii) IR R TR wSle, A FE T, FAW, 0 WS A
T 31 He faror
HUAT hT T ST Ik ShTdehel:

Tl T FTHAT ¥ Fef FRIGR HT 10% a7 ITY 31k 7 e A 2

GRS fsTe TR | Sl T K hpIEo)
Bifeg, afeafsad ud waifque shufrEt st faawor ; =1
PR WEY (Fe sforaet o ufaeTe o &0 ¥ gforae! g usit ot faawon) :

(i) 2ofar IPR | . YRAT WY
FE WEHN (IRA & TFUf) :
¥ o WIRT T T STl hi T
e CoA
ffSterer . 375,86,20,000
el SRT T % . 100%
EllC) LRI
ToRfSTehet : 375,86,20,000
T IRT T % © 100%
af & S TREA T % . 0%
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(i) TYEYET Rt grECEnar

i gfaaT9 2023-24

1. | 9RG & qufa 278,13,79,200|  74.00 278,13,79,200  74.00 0
(a/c YTAHATT)
2. | WA & T 97,72,40,000,  26.00 97,72,40,00|  26.00 0
(a/c 3T faepTa
HATH)
3. | WA & 800 0 800 0 0
N
T |37586,20,0000 100,00 = [37586,20,000|  100.00 =

(i) TS T PrEenfiar ¥ ufiad =

1 | S F e 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100
2 | T % R yHIed @ 0 0

SrReTRar # fafar 3fg/

A & RO T Y

Y TU AR faawor

9 & i o 375,86,20,000 100 375,86,20,000 100

(iv) ¥7e TE PraCereht st FIATETTAr ol WHT (SASTTT AT TSTA o Fdyren, TieT i gieed o srfafien) :

qY o U | PrEeeniar a¥ o SO Hiaa graventar
Henica) Ut o T PR Y Ut o T
. IR T % . I AT %
1. . & e 100 0.0001 100 0.001
2. o T S 100 0.0001 100 0.001
3. | 4 g4 FErad 100 0.0001 100 0.001
4. ot ISl Aared 100 0.0001 100 0.001
5. At g e 100 0.0001 100 0.001
6. T TTSI9T AR S 100 0.0001 100 0.001
7. ot 3Ty e 100 0.0001 100 0.001
8. ot SIS 100 0.0001 100 0.001

(ST T SRR I HAeAT S AT 37 I8 Al & HTer & ded MRd & T0a(d a/c & A ©)
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(v)

(vi)

VL.

HIv® Aved =1 ufaacH

v o T T wifient (SRTAY) S ST

a6 o U i a8 & I ¥ Tt
FIGTATEAT (01.04.2020) FIICRATEaT (31.03.2021)

MetcIk: HUNHFA | TR, U & el
PR T % I AT %
1. | s 100 0.0001 100 0.0001

e S S O & TR € | Y % SR foRd off 31 T Ve T Hiftieh o T g IR T o

SHEUTIUEACT ¢
FeRT/ ARSI AT, AR YA o ol Fehmn Fel, Hfed T s TN

i o & ey § SHUTIRAdr

()  HeTE - 3,61,52,279.94 - 3,61,52,279.94
(i) ST TR, AR A T fora T
(iii)  ATST Mg Tifch SehTal et

& (i + i + i) - 3,61,52,279.94 - 3,61,52,279.94
farter e o g sEuTIRRET ® aftad

T - 47,02,716.72 - 47,02,716.72
o

15 uftad= - 47,02,716.72 - 47,02,716.72
it a6 o ot § SRUTIEAAT
() Hau - 3,13,97,875.28 - 3,13,97,875.28
(ii)  ATST FehTAT, WAk A et foha T
(iii)  SATST Mg WAfeR ST Tt

e (i + i + i) - 3,13,97,875.28 . 3,13,97,875.28

frevTet ud WO eeren i shiften ST UTsifien
e feeTer, quieRferes feTeht Ud / 1 waereh ol Mt fier

Tohdl e -

() 2TFeRT A, 1961 &1 &RT 17(1) ¥ fAfed maemt o SaR 3o . ¥.55,05,000
(@) e AR, 1961 &1 €RT 17(2) & T8d ST &1 g I

() AR SAUFEH, 1961 % &I 17(3) o & 9 o daet HAH I

ek &1 fashed A

Wz gfaadt NS

FHTH - AT F % & &7 H =

4 A

Fd . %.55,05,000
T A, 2013 o STTAR TifelT 3RS
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Vil. THTET / T/ YO 9T

SH A T e
TS = T e
ST ST ¥ T Tt
@ . fregremoT

ST Rl o T
Bl = ] e
ST I K T Tt
T, Tehehdl 31T AR

ST T e T
el = A TEt
ST I = AT T




ATeTTeh- ||
forfire sfTgTE OT wfee

frTfura sifareTras Ut huet T g9

FopTfier SAfiemTg T e o <9l T 32T B

(%) CrEmEfy fedqemer et auT S9! ST o TS odT ot 11 o A1em § Fe -
o  og ARG Al o # 9 qee ST HeT,;

o el foxi uee |

(@) 37 T Foigt 3fR seeemt % qREfTAT 3R e I S|
() WA ST o Wi ¢ & |
() ffi srfirome o fT gRT SopEar U Y-
o fi stfiremad W yEferd feem-fEel & eEa 3R et off Wwa 2 3% Fer,;
o TISTET UUMCRI ST TR-T T T U ST 3 R & forw e,
o T F IER UF HIER § 3= Afcfeh AT T T,
o faftml ud fae! e,
o IS g WHIfdes ANTERi Ud wudt R |
frdeTen e
G

ST AT, 2013 ST 4RT 2(45) & 37 & Tod T8 H U GRENT HOA ¢ | JAAH H 3T TYuT e IR USn 3ot v
(ST FaTe) 3T ST U TRl HHel & Haei & ATead § 9 o T9ufd gRT enfid & | ot & enfdereq 3w uhifquem
F enfdad 124 () & Hef #, fevres dea # frafafad feeme onfie e

(i) YT HC 3R TR e HATeR & AT § R o TP §RT Aad v |
(i) ey e |

(i) qUieRTfeter FeeTeRToT / STiees feoTERToT |

(iv) fed= emeh! grT AfHa feeres (D)

(v) a3 faeere () |
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i ufaaca 2023-24

YRT 124 () & Teof #, IRT & TTUT 1 01 o 1S § 3Tk 27279 Tfed 7 AfSTa! bl THifehd i o o St aht Traferd
ek fetfiae & gia o o1 e o 2 |

4T 125 & el &, 9E & 9 & &7 99 41 27U F 21fues 15 fevrer 2 | 9T TR 3 2790t deh a1 il T&T &l ToArg Tef
el

faieh 31.03.2023 T ST o € § FeTeR @ G@A 9 (1) o, f5EH 3 (1) wFref=retes fewres, Sid &y v, frevs
(far), FReTer (3TUg Us &) 3R frewrer (IS it A1) | 1 (Te) Fegmes afy=m smret Ter R A1 | 3 (A7) fewres
YT HATeTT g A 377 2 (3)) Fevrer a3 9red & Harerd gRT e onfHet 91 |

feier 31.03.2024 &1 F1RvTe Heel &1 T84 Ud fevrent g1 i fesmes wel @i g i &1 e 2

%.H. Taeyrer T | TaeyTeR ug =Y Suit

1. | SifdgE S S

2. N F . F. Aardg EECRECN G
(ST feeTen)

3, AT SAfeereRt S freemes (f)
(CIREIRERRENED!

4. o Y e I T8 fesTer (IRESHT Td A
CIREIRERRENIED)

5. ot e BIECIAEENE

6. AT, AT IRYR B T feTeR

7.. | e fie BIRCIREENED

8. S G e, Eueg T feome

9. B EI] BUECIAEENED

ﬁ%mmwaﬁ‘éaﬁ;

fI39Teh Hedl o1 3o 3TeAe o1 e A i o dTe THTH YT 2okt Gl STl @ | STl ek S3eh STeqrad e gom
T T IS ST, Skt F Frefeh == kT Graen o U o1k T3y s SR §R1 GAfefd TsieT A0y 3 377 s
M AR W S3e & T fo Ud FevTeh Tedl o Y@t oht IRUEA o ST @ | et UeisT e/ SISl & Ueh e &
w9 H Hafed T ol SN bl Helt i1 a7 SSi1 AGeleh 7 8l A7 3792l Hei fhaT ST a1 97 7 S, 1
3 93 | T R S 2 |

qEh Td Sufeerfa:

fertier 31.03.2024 T THI gU faw @ & R, ST o FR9TeR W 7 i 08.05.2023, 03.07.2023, 08.08.2023,
19.09.2023, 08.12.2023 UF 21.03.2024%1 6 (FF) 93% T |



T STITOTTET U T e

39T HSd ol dIgoh! Ud alfifer 31H daeh (Tsiium) ¥ feerent &1 Sufterfd frefafed egam e - -

FreyTent shT =R d3e U yIfaet g 19.09.2023 =T TS
Fw. forrer w3 Sufeerf
21 I O 6 &l
Y T .U SEr HS ol SWSE]
NN, & . Aa&dig 5 &l
St ST TWHT 5 &l
i . Aiewe S 3TedH 6 il
AT AfeehT S 1 UG
4T 3T FHR FeR 5 &l
o SEE 5 &l
Y TR ARYH S 5 il
At ye g 5 i
ST i A 2 Rl

fRe1e ded &1 U 43 ol HEATET & a1 &l g 91 7 osf g ufafyd qor sveey gRT saneriia fehar s
2l

T T |t

T 9 2023-24 % IRH IS GRS AT &1 oraT TheT affg & fffafad oo nfia O

1. o TR ARvEe A% (AR- i) -
2. ASEEm (T-erferTd) - geE
3. ot ueee fie (AR- i) . Hewg

31.03.2024 1 THTE fa 99 o SN 03.06.2023, 19.09.2023, 08.12.2023 3 21.03.2024 &1 FHT &1 =7 93
ST T8 |

S T o7 T AT % 9FE % T W ST < | WA T Saeht T oRaT Tkt & afafafert sy off et S g |
e St ST BT, G doe Hierdl SfeRT il STHET S 2

TR T FAfT T Geof ot (AR 26.08.2009 T SIS 3T S3e H 29T HSa gRT 3AR 31ER) R

5

1. 3ffafes R0 Wl Ud oiar Tiiereh! & Nerorfed oRaT T<ieT o -2 o an § Toa-9ua T ofal qiefen o
rer ==,

2. T HEd oI A i Y TR difidn faxiie faaRul ahi e,

3. AR HE=07 quTTedl o1 ST{dTer A= ohir;

4.  IwfeEd "l § ¥ R 7 A 9 SR FUTEe T HHet # ST ; q24

5. WEET GEAT U AT Sl HHieT |

T2, 2010 § YA TN, YT IANT 3 Frasif1er STH HI, FasiTeh IUHH 91T g1 ST Sheid Fdsiie a5 &
STt o fou fmfa sifiemes w feenfader & o= 4. Z%Wﬁﬁé@qﬁwaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂéﬂﬁ?ﬂaﬂ%ﬂw
CRISIEEES
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Ffie afaa T 2023-24

e, Je1feR TF Aafieh o TRt 3R fesTer Hee & e il U el & w0 7 el el @ @i i wfede
UTTGAT ShT SATehel Shicll ¢ [oRal TEa Sl a1 713 9t R-ahTa=Teren FIe9TeRT bl olert fohal T 217 |

ATk Ua Ut sifues Gfufa:

ST T, 2013 T URT 168 (1) o I |, Ueh Ao 3R MRefaes G &1 e @ e |

AT SN TRt |t o1 T3 e fafad feomen! i ot s fora T e :

1. o e AT T de (R-TeprT freeres) . 3TeURy
2. disEEm (TR-TreprT freeren) . HETd
3. frEsia (IR-Ta freomen) . g

- R WA (evTe e S &l Uoe ddeh H W o o foTd :. 20,000/ T1 AT &1 U=k a3 ¥ 9T
o & T +; 15,000/ - 1 TREHF & e 2 |

TS FeeTent T e Y Ha1e™ o W § ¥ gRd o APl §R1 6l Sl € | e e ( e sifaied
TR foo1 T 7, SR Bigeht) Yol e F WfAfrfad TR ST Oef Ga o SoHE 3 AT o7 W ST € |

ST Higar:

fAeTeh Teel R HIeh! o1 SHTT W@ TS fafirer et &1 ST gRfv=d i & fu a1 & et oI g weeH
& AU 1@ SR 31T MR Ggdr S0 TE € | 38 SO o d9Ege W e fyid fmar mr e

Tftieh ATATY/ T I3k :
el i anfier WTAT=/ 31" 33t T faawur frafaied SIgar e

Tareite adt Tetien wa wv=r £S5 10} [EAER IS G IIEG
afg =g &

2022-23 19.09.2023 T ifgan Fihg EAREE
15.30 591 & WeEm o

2021-22 29.11.2022 &1 Aifedr g FIE Tl
15.30 591 & WeEm o

2022-21 27.11.2021 &1 ifsa g FIE Tl
12.30 51 & AT H

fair 9 2023-24 & AU AIfifer AR/ 371 93 i 39.09.2024 T 16.00 S GIfEAT HIHIF & TeAm I AN
Eagsieng

Uehe [eh{uT:

) o1 fuek Aeal il dee oo, o S & fedt % grer 92 e I genfad g @ gk © - O g
AT-2T TET ® | BIeleh, Siieh ek UTH 18 & dad Sadeh Yehd[ehi0] &l faier feaeott o froaforli” # omfiyer
ERIERIES

i) Tt A 991 % SR AR gRT SR R feenfreer & Geiedt SR Hre 7 SRt gR R- 3o, R ifafeen
TIERT RT SO I GG T SHAT, S & f3av0T - &7 2|

i) feege SR M ud Tt gy for fordt off s o o oienr |fafd dek Tge I TRt FE T T - AT A
TR AR A T ST € | ST o T ot Shifen bl o wiien T qe wge I 9faa T2t forar T
2




ferrferer srfarorrer ov ufaa e KMRC

iv)  feemfadslt &t sTavasaTsT % STE T feReT - S Y T AR W feenfdeit ) smavas s w1 e
fepam 2 1

V) % TR gRT IR T U mafa o fR e SR o o SR aen il diF 99t § 39 Sarer T faser - T o
F SN TWAfT 7 1 o T T E g3 o

vi) o 9 H Sfae fopu U O =1 o6 5, S SR & SRl & flu el @ - o % SN o oy Ol g He Tl
ivii) @ S A THid & 7 3R R Hsdt o 3 weem & fu o fFu MU © - FE T
T qre:

ST ERT ST o M0 SR R oft Wi Ues § gEtas e ¢ | sufe, SHeER-uat 7 forent after geferd 7E e
| gTeifen, Sienfard for U aififer famirer ofRome ST ot JerEe (AT T8) T Hefdid oy S € |

AT ¥ UAT:

eI 7T ¥l HIOReH fafies
"FUHNHTA Ta, TR ST I
T UH=e TR, ShietehTdl - 600021

@ T AT
faag af 2023-24 & U FHUH & T Geqel W EdT o/al e o UfdaeT § Shig Aar el 2 |

aﬁg‘mwuﬁwﬂw

Tg ST 90 B9 F AT § -9 A RSN qRASHT o shEifad o & foqu nfad &1 € @ 1| F 5 whEed
% fo (feAfer 23.08.2012 &1 RIS 93k % HEdd o 3TTUR ) I8 Ul 382 -dfid AT FHITSR RASH o fag
Fad RS FEETE T T | e TR & (e 3 I 8 a0 S Rt Wit | g, s 3 T 9w
YRA TR & T 21, ST URASHT 3 q 2 & 918 Tehiehd 18307 & e Hisel A-Tey FiRER & q-91ef 39
TOTTAT <hY If=nferd sht | afiEstr o fasTe & q9eTe, $R-3% 9T SIS N o afi=re Hal I, shictertdl o 92l
farerr R fem ST | 3/fee, , SO o fosT9 Aigal # 9IS o Tawl ohl UrTfad i ohi 3Taeaehd] 379 deh Heqy el
F1 TS 2| BTeifer, ot 3 feTent @y ufyifard s o6t ol o faar € 3T 3ok o STavash e ISR TR ©

feaer =rer ifa:

U A Uk el sellem TG T SR ©, S ggeh! J99ge W yefdid fohar T € | 59 aYE o1 i e @
STEITEN & W o {1 ot & et 1Y SiFRIfiraral o2 a1t fEdl eha oi o1 STTYR Y il © 39K 94t Sfvrl &
FHHTAT 1 GURTT Tehd1eh 0T o1 JR&T T Rl 2 |

STJUTA UHIUTIA

T Afded hE1g TS & o IaH! o forg Fmfid o W feonfaesT & STavaedrsti &1 AUmad ST ahdl
2| e sifiremes @ IR 3feafad fenfaslt & e & Taer § Ueh STt st Qiaa F et JHoTes 39 gfeed
T G T e |

e vTeR Tiger o forg derT Seht ST &
hICTeRTAT L& R e
femian: 30 fadav, 2024 areer
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i afaa T 2023-24

FrerTeh-||

TSeI el U fageimur ufaae

TeEr Tt S fagorgur fare
ITEHHI0T IFFERT o WTeAH ¥ I IR (999 9 29t A e gen 7 | 3ifiich F Sfereh ot Ieor & vredt Y 3% 5T
T € 3T | T8 SN T T @ 5 2030 H, AT 4.9 ST AT (3T T 60%) S el &= # @A
gafeTT, IRt & AfawT o fEsTe 1 3299 € VTedl Sia fIehT3 ol 3= TPTal b fH07 e U SST 3T o1 GHmfor
Y TS T | SAAT, 37T T T § AT Bt qfae T Yomel i 3MavdehdT el ¢ for ferar & g pre -
FHI, T, AT SN 0T & el | I S IS faes (THREIH) ot S7est gr 1 € 39 eel & ufige
I, ST o STedl &l dedl G § TWE € IR 37 217 291 S § A fehed F 1
SO T T3 'S I WG FIRSR ' T AN S o feaw foram 71 2 qd & Tiee oo Tt = ) 9= | grae #em
STSAT 8 | TR YR WER (Seireng) 3 foia foqan € o 7 St aiareiT e seTg 2t 3R s & fmes

& TR T Tk T HT ST T | gretifch, Todt o o ST YR WHT o TG 2, S s & T EN & 9
Uehiohd {207 & Sfarfd STR-SfamT HRISR & WU-J1 WTel & =TT |
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OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT
Railway Production Units and Metro Railway
NKG Building (5th Floor), 14, Strand Road
Kolkata - 700 001

No. RPU & MR/KMRCL/2024-25 Date: 30.09.2024
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T, AT 7 e TR o Teet T T 31.43 THTg hl afes ST ohT 10 & GargT et &2 e

o @R TuT e uT feufurt
Tareiter faawutt T e
@R T Sttt (AT 2.1)

6. oS Al A2 2.1 &1 3R oA e oA S € T or= |l & wner-Te el W efen Heen &
TeE gRT I Halerd o RS & STOR qREq(al sl IREsHT o1 =R [ R Fe! afces IRATSHT o guf 2
TR STl et e Y feer qfteafe il e & o ueh i S T e

TN YT HATCH 1 T (2018) F ITTER "AREASHT % HETEa & T 2 o a1, AT I, HIcAshTal Ushighd
0T & TR T-TRY HIRSR & WY-TeT T2 9% Bl HIRSK T IRA 3T | 3 §1ed & 0F H g
o qof B X IR T IS Ufeharei ol § fer afiEuft 3 TR & o o h1g T d@ie 3UaR
AT HIE TG ST Tal ¢ |

AR, AT 2.1 3 HAeAA o Ariesi & SET TE ¢ |
Tt . 3MTehfETeh TTATY ST USITa UfqagaTy, (W 7 81 et ST deh)

7) T A F 62.87 RS T QT hT TN 3TV, oY ST GRT hefeheell GIEhId 8 A1 &1 T8 off, T 37ehfqen
AT T YA FE AT T |

WA o fesen Ud HeTerar e
& ToTT ST 3=t it &
T : hicTehTAT (T HE)
famien: 30 fadaT 2024 eI @I feyTen



@ gUeehi okl Yidded

47



48

ST 39 I ! TG T e SISl T 8



w9 aw wm ufaass KMRC

Raj Kumar Kothari & Co.  crarteren accounTanTs

Head Office : Ezra Street, 4th Floor Suite # 403, Kolkata - 700 001
Contact No. +91 33 2235-0677 / +91 33 2234-1478
Website : www.ckkco.com, E-mail : ca.rkothari@gmail.com, ca.rkothari2@gmail.com

WA AET UreTen shi Gynfer fare
PrerTaT 2 Yer iRy ferfirds 3 wewt 3 forg
faiter faawutt st eramde uT fae

I

T ThicTeRTdT HE T 3T SRy fAfaes (S & Tor i faswont o1 aiifee foran €, fSoi 31 W 2024 T =
oig sffe, A 3R 21 o1 T (3721 s 31 9fed), $fad § ufiad o o SR Fh 9 % o e e
o faroT, 3R ot faarott & for e, R mecayut ciaie ifaat 3 2121 ZReATeash STehTe ohT JRTeT SNl &
(fS =1 Seuny faei faavor & =0 & Gefifq frn T e) |

TAN 79 7 3fR TUHT T STHehRT & TR a7 86 U M0 Tl & ST9R, SWied $Suuy famia faawor s
s, 2013 (CSAffEA’) SR STferd THich J STHeRRT <0 € T ST (YRA oRal 01eh) o1, 2015, JT Fonfed
(35 UTT), TAT URA T 3T AR T R R ST a1t 121 oi@ich (it o Ty ufad e o1 ¥R 133 & 3favid
TR IR oI Al & 38T 31 T4, 2024 T T o ATHa! &l fifd, Torr 39 faf¥y 1 Tara av & fau 39
1Y, T P A, 3FFET T URad= a7 ST Tehd! HaTe & SR 8 el Jo fs7er gfyeniot meqd &id € |

T <hl T

T ST AU, 2013 ST URT 143(10) & Ted MY ORATRIET T (THT) o STHR 70T RETaieT & | 39
Tt % ded U SAEeTREr i gt Rid & foei faawon & aamiemT & fau cramiess ot Sfert & s §
Y afofe femar T 2 |

IRAT AEE STRTITH T RT STH TR Ffedl & Frer-T1eF shot S, 2013 o TaeHT o 37l 33ud fai
faraeoit T EARY oRET TEET o T i eTemel qur S Sfavid Y T R % oA, B9 U § WA § oI BE
T TS IR SR TfeeT o STER I 311 e St o @ o € | SHRT 5T § 56 R ERT O o
e T T o FAU SR Y 3 o fow T 37k 3wge & |
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10

11

12
13

14
14,12
15
16

17
17
18

1-41

31 |1 2024

423,400.82
8,05,87,847.79

25,36,999.17
12,25,881.64
8,47,74,129 .41

1,74,290 .22
21,97,744 .96
22,47,046 .41

13,254.79
46,32,336.38
8,94,06,465.79

3,75,86,200.00
7,186.46
3,75,93,386.46

5,01,12,020.69
2,55,000.61
6,932.11
2,76,357.53
5,06,50,310.93

7,83,056.97
2,89,502.68
__90.208.74
11,62,768 .40
5,18,13,079.33
8,94,06,465.79

CUEIEIR:))
31 |T 2023

423,206.24
8,05,58,951.58

23,01,351.16
8,41,62,860.22

5,72,787 .90
11,29,345.85
21,98,751.35

11,870.66
8,80,75,615.97

3,75,86,200.00
7,287.38
3,75,93,487.38

4,85,30,288.05
3,28,721.78
7,219 .36
3,43,670.05
4,92, 09,,899.25

8,86,678.05
2,79,960.87
1,05,590.42
12,72,229 .34
5,04,82,128.59
8,80,75,615.97

fevre mued & fou 9 3T 3
&. . sharear FfiereRT i
T R ey (f)
SITETT 10207179 l3TETT 07271472
Tt wgraTd TEST &7 AT
e fami Sifendl SOl g
T AMWPB7941H o AIEPG3324K



i @ 2023-24 KMRC

THITRTAT Hel TeT SR fafie e
31 AT, 2024 ST THI a6 o fog

T T B <Rt ferarar
(T %, ®)

faawur W 31 T 2024 31 |Te 2023
i)

= § e

T AT 19 433.72 8,074.70

HA AT 433.72 8,074.70
T

3= T 20 559.01 590.72

HeT =T 559.01 590.72
HTYd o -125.29 7,483.98
HTET

A HT - -

ST T - - -
Srafereh e/ (3T -125.29 7,483 .98
ST Uk 3T

39 5 oW Ud I H g e T fehe S |

=18t AT R T 119 T/ (=17) 15.1 24 .37 -211.93

SATHT T = -
STRERT o AT Urae a9 forar T - -
1% 3T AN 3T, o @1 A1 21 # qAefierd el foham ST | 24 .37 -211.93
srafer & fore et e o -100.92 7,272.04
wfasfaadtvraema

(1) fRrRYesT - -

(2) fafga - -
faiter faawutt o Gor sge 1-41
Her= gHR ufaae & Fgar fevrer AUgd & fu 9 39a 2 A
el T AN ShISHI US . 4. . sftarear rftaent 9=
T SEER ey v v (=)
Y USRI . 3201668 ¥ 10207179 ¥ 07271472
i T k. RIS
AR Titer WgTmt AT T T
HI=Id1 . 055208 e faeiig il ERCIRSIRC)
TEI3TETT 24055208BKGSAS6842 &9 AMWPB7941H 9 AIEPG3324K
TI : pIAHTAl

femier £ 29.07.2024
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Ffiss ufaasa 2023-24

ThICTeRTAT Hel TeT Sh R fofie e

31 9T, 2024 h! THTE 9 o 1T Tehe HaTg faaur

Taawur

. TiaTer feraTeneTTat o Tendl WaTg
T T STHR0T Hal 3 4 5 37
& fou qome -
3T AT 3 (T
JAEH Td UReieT =7
faoft g7 # 3AR-Fe|
S A
aftiafa/ fraer & fagst w =1/ (@)

HTETer goil Uftad= o gd ufarer o

EARNICRCIRITERE

Sreafey qrae F 9/ ()

377 A <Frslt 7 gfg/ ()
TR-gee 2Aanst 7 9fa/ ()
3771 faretar ottt 3 &9/ (3f9)
foretrer aftgafat # &/ (3fE)
foreiter <araadt # &1/ (3f9)

AN T aREafd # w4/ (37E)

TR A G TR AT . .
7 T et § Fedl vaTe

Tufd, T Ud 3T S @l

EEQ IR Sl RCH

-Fm aftgafaat & w41/ (3fE)

frawr foramehemt @ g1 Tehdt HaTE
@. favita f@areneat & Terd! waTg

ST ST ST S T T 37

TS o 3T FeRTT § 0T 21

Erafer Surd & e S

ST S J I 377

T=IET 311 A S T HHRISH

faritar ferameretmat & 315 el vaTE

. TR Ud Tehe UG ¥ 715 9fg (F + @+ )
. g S Y& ¥ Tehe A Tehe THIT
3
1

. @ & 3 T Tehg i Tohg WA

T 2024 ST THIGT
T4 & fog

-125.29

-125.29

-287.25
-15,381.67
-67,312.53

-2,35,648,01
-48,295.05
-64,179.36

-1,384.13
-4,32,613.29

-194.57

-28,896.21
-3,46,530.41

_ -3,75621.20

61,80,828.28
-45,99,095.63
-1,03,621.08
24.37
14,78,135.94
6,69,901.45
17,02,133.73
23,72,035.19

(e s, )

T 2023 ST THIE
¢ & fog

7,483.98

7,483 .98

1,730.92
11,126.31
1,80,695.16
-2,59,252 .68
-7,73,584.98
1,19,379.78
-9,667.20
-7,22,088.72

-10,037.72
-50,03,676.77
-2,28,692.50

_ -52,42,406.99

27,38,809.22
3,96,725.58
2,132.12
-211.93
31,37,454.99
-28,27,040.72
45,29,174 .45
17,02,133.73

e vATE faR0T T SIeTe] UEfd o AR AR R T € SR 5 SN 31 IS STeRISd ey S A gRT S WReA oRat ’ieR

(INdAS) - 7 91 Fal Ratia § Frefifa fran w2

2 e gl @1 @l H a & GRH T T A1-gsi-o a6 fafafi enfaa 21
3 o % ofd H Tehe 3 Tohe TAGA The 3R S 99 I <o 2 |

4 fama At & 3RS W STEl VAT €, O SR a/ i foRar T ®

Terirar it o dore gger
T AR Ufaae o FgER
T TS HAN hISKI TS &
HIE TEET

wH TSIeRUT §. 3201662

T 3T .o hISHT

aMieR

@ §. 055208

FEI3TETT 24055208BKGSAS6842
RS2

et : 29.07.2024

1-41
v 7vsd & fou 9 3T AW Y
. . starear SfteRT S
ey e e ()
SI3EUT 10207179 $IeMEnT 07271472
wiiter wgTaTd TE AT T et
A i SAferenm T HEE
T AMWPB7941H 9 AIEPG3324K



arfie @@ 2023-24 KMRC

31 9T, 2024 oh! GHTE Y o foTg 3faraet o uftad= a1 faar
. 3ot v us T ER w. )

31 W=, 2024 | 31 WT=, 2023
faawur
witrare srafer & urw o gia vt 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
T4 Smafer i =T % FHRoT 3faEdt SR o H uftad
AU Ufdae STafer sl Jre et o gf-eiiia o Tivr 3,75,86,200.00 3,75,86,200.00
ST 35 ERT ST SR S U
gfaaet Pt T =T andeT
- T F faw -
- T % M I fAmed -
wfqae srafer o sid & g9 iyt 3,75,86,200.00 | 3,75,86,200.00
. I sfaadt
(U TR ®. #)
f=rd aitc
srferge
= faqa HU o
faawor JIAT T ufaenfia sma|  gferet ameRt
TehT ifad TRy ifad T & fag et
e gfaadt
nfEsgeaet
1 3T, 2022 T TI9 TAYT - 558.78 |  (543.45) 15.34
T4 3@y &t At o SR gfeadt PR goft # uRadd - - - -
fde e1afy st veeTd # g o I -| 558.78| (543.45) 15.34
9 & foa e/ (71f) -| 7,483.98| (211.93) 7,272.04
Hifeteht ok & T ek &THAT ¥ HTfeTehl o | wiF-a
HEZERIRISS FCTE | - - - -
IRR 3T T 0T - - - -
31 W=, 2023 TR 19 T -| 8,042.76 (755.38) 7,287.38
74 37 it faA o FHRT g IR USi § uiad - - - -
A Tfae 3Tl ot S[eatd H qAeRa o afer -| 8,042.76| (755.38) 7,287.38
9 & fow oy / (®1F) -| (125.29) 24 .37 (100.92)
HifeTeht o BT H SAfch Q0T T HifeTeht o TN oi-a-
HEEEIMRISS HECEE ) - - - -
Jehe & AT 31 3T TR S T - - - i
IR e T I - - - -
31 A, 2024 & I AL -| 7,917.47| (731.01) 7,186.46
Hor gHR Ufaae o FFER e 7Ued & I 7 3T AR A
A TS HAN HIST UE . qr. . siarear rfaenT S
TS TEIER LECAEENED e (fm)
T USiTeRiT §. 3201663 T30 10207179 SI3TEA 07271472
i 3 k. ShigTr
BILIEi iiter wgTaTd HE ST =T T[T
He&Id1 §. 055208 e fai SAferehTdr ERCIRSIEC)
13T 24055208BKGSAS6842 7 AMWPB7941H I AIEPG3324K
TAM - SHIABTT

<k : 29.07.2024
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TSI ReHeH & A

1.

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

HITRE TR
FIAHT 3T I FIARYM fAfids (‘shot’), fSeT CIN-U60100WB2008GO0I127338 ©, b1 9 S[ATTE, 2008 T
T AU, 1956 o ded AHA foha T o7 | 9% et S, 2013 T AR 2(45) & o7ef § U WIS

AT 7, S o U I, 1956 T URT 617 o AT ST 2 | T 214 o AT F8 ST ShIceRTar B
FIAHTAT $-TL TZT HIRSR TRASHT & 1A= & ot 85 € | o1 T Totighel 1T hictehTal i ferd 2 |
fareiiar farauT G shae @t e

e it

3 foira faaor s stfufem, 2013 (O IfafEm’ ) &1 9RT 133 & Sida AfUgfad IR oEie- aFa! (38
TTH) F STHR T 3T G § TR o TR, 58 o (VR oraieh 7ek) e, 2015 (TRE-T
W FIN) & 7 7 & Frer ver A 2 | faeie faeroit st qert e wfa & fu o T e it
R @] feram T 2, Far weeie SR ST Aent § Hene o fo eraren Jife § foRw U aRadr B siee,
S A g 37t 3 oA wdt € et el ot 9  org e oRaie feat # 37 U | R faawor
a1 e o It 2013 ST ST 111 6 ¥ Y R SR 2 |

IS A o AR % TR H3A o e §RT 4RASH o I0f 9 § 70 84 W, 7 foF =Romesg @ies I quf
TN R, TRE(AET TGS~ - T 3 37t IREufE § TR s 1 AT 0 7 2 1 gufe, uiEs
% U e % T ToeH & I B & aasre, T AT Fes et o ded fowm S et € 3 ferdt off
¢ IS TS HUfT BT eIt Ut § ohig EEienuT el g € |

ST 3 R feRoT YR S0 H T U S €, S 3Tkt ST gan o 2

TEIhT T

ferefrer faramoT Qferetfaes T, SUTSH 31X =1e] a1 & MuR R daR fvu T 2, fqam s e areet o 5
e R erafyr o iq % 3 goai W A S € | Uferfes o 3 AR TR AT iR Jared % Seet | fu
T =R % 3 g W 3enia et @ | gelt aftgufEt S SAerfEt Bt st 3 HrH uREte e 3R S
AT, 2013 T AT 11 FEdier 11 H Fefifd 31 IHEet & STuR =16 a1 R-1] o &9 & Ffied ferar
T 2 | T o AU aitEafeEt o AfemenT o Fehdl 31X Tohe qHehall H Skl Wftd & &1 1 Ui 3R
U & SMER W, ST 3 ofgafat ofit 29eiat & =1t a1 1R SHiiehor & 329 ¥ o1 e =gk o
12 HEH % w0 7 fefifta fpam €

U A FAutar sht Su=HT

AT ol ek o ST faeiie farolt ot Gt & o Teler o) 3Am, fofer 3R amomd sqm a1 STageehn
B 21 Y A, fofr 3 eRVId SgieR et & AT iR aREufa 3T eerfEt o6t o <t g e,
forefrer faaott ot e fafer mR arrerfiqen uftufemt 3R eTiat & Nehd T 3R 37afyr & SR ot 3R 719
1 Rdrd =t TS R B gl et € | adfaen uRoT 3 SHET & = 2 gehd 2 | SAET # uRadd 39
Aty F forftar faaaont % afteferd 21 & i ufiada fopy < € @i, afe geagf 2, 3k gt &1 fareie
feraoTt o Nt B GeAr e S 2

ST STt o Tarer 7, SNTERT SR AHIOE W S o W § gSi e o w9 H €St oA S 2 |
TEayUt ek =ifaat

LRI AT

TTSTE <1 T A 0T Wik o S g TR HIT S |



aIffss @ 2023-24

foitg faeron w537 (STRY)

3.2

3.3

3.4

feriter Iftgafe & <17 37 ad /=T U1 21l @ ST 8 GiaT aidt ¢ fop anfefer @ shoedt et figer afiv e
1 YT ) fHeag Y 197 ST G ¢ |

fopeiTor aRTelf o for ffereT cwarasit 1 foght & 3T R YofeRaoT cfed o I = S 2 |

IHERT T AT A T AT 6 T F G w1 7 afold et % Gafed v & fawg gurEfed & S
2

ek o T YA STHT T (ST TS BT 3 % T H AT Tl G S 2 SR e § e dfad o §
HaTA ST & SRfeR S8 ST Tt 2 w0 H 7 S € | getee o fvfa 3 orqER A stafy & 9RE ff
ST ARFES & Ay ST R ST TSt S T W 7 ST SR S AT o 9T TERfe fRe e |

faeft gand

SO o T faR0T IR R T, T S SR TTees HET (INR) S STRTET 31 HETeT B OFe &l e
faferdt o afer e <3t o e < S @ | weies RO erafir % ofd #, et gerelt § qewafia M
ST ST GETAAT SR UF oI TeIefT W4T gRT WS 36 T8 39 fafer W v i W g Sianad foma s 2 | faeof
751 # UfeTfass @ & e # A 7 R-wifEe 7et o1 U Srdifed Tt fher Smar 7 |

FUT A St AN

Ay afEafEt o sAferreor, fmT o Saaes § @Y afyd YR o &1 anrd, S OET giEaf © i e
gfeed ST A1 fagh! & fu AR B vl e @ @, 39 aREufEt s g # a9 de Siet Sl |, S
A for gfiufea 31 gfesd ST o et o fou T ®9 9 Gar 9 81 Sl |

HUTT o

wfaqer ffer, SraenTyT TehdiehuT:

i se=nfat & Gay § viasy [y 3 o o ST9e o oRal-Siar Tigad e W foRa S @ & ary
TS B W 5 ST foRal ST & | St a7 9 1 2 {91eM o YTl Shig 377 Sl el 2 |

AfAffe T SN0 SH=IRE o At , SH=IRA! ol e el SH=R! 1y 3ch Haferd T/ e o fiu
S 2, et F 3 3% TeA g feu MU EeT o SR W ufafee foRe A 2 | wfafted et & STl
I 31X T 3fvTE Y ot 3T TR % IR 3ok Yafd TSt § THidRd o2 fear s 2

W:
ST T SHHARAT b1 had i gU I=33T, Ui oy Farfgfa 2 (CI=8 AsHT’) e &t € 1 I3

AT ffed et ot Jarfgfe, 9o, STemar a1 AR 31 FH1fd T TS I e i 8, S dafud
AR & I 3T BT o T ISR T 37T o SR TR Tk T efl 2 |

T=IET AT o Tarel | AT Ueh W U3l gRT Ieieh ooig v fafer i s 3T #fee 1sfd &1 3w
T R U TSR Joque gR e ot <l 2 |

TR A1 3R B 3R s uREufee R e (I =0T &1 STSeh) o INHe 3 g0 gAHH, 39 3@ty
T 31 ek A H W= O =S AT HEE o e detq e § qia uflerid g ¢ fEd 3 8 2

37T ST 37T H HI=IAT A1 Y0 R ST 3T 37T H uRcfid 2 € oI 3% o 7 =i @ H qAdiieha
TET ForalT STl 2 | 35 =TS o1 0T ST T e H Y R @ et o TRE W g & v Fen
FT AT

KMRC

69



KMRC o fis ufdaeg 2023-24

70

foita faeron w537 (STRY)

3.5

3.6

3.7

HO
AT &R G0 § 37 &Y 31N I &¢ o A7 &1 e 2 |
FAHTT T

T # T R A o AT S A A T SRR § | T o aHT ST gt T RO smafi o fo o 2%
% FTER T AT 2 |

A 37 el i o fou adaM o6, STadiTer 99T ae, SFaT & & H Hr=0d1 U 2 | 4 aa9e 317 el
Il & Fau H ggel ¥ A ot S AT 37 e & o 2 ey § eifiek @ (JertieR R i g
T, @ 2ifafiaa ufdT &t ue afeufd & 9§ Jr=gdr & S |

I &Y

TIfiT &Y o A1 &Y &1 G o 3 T Tl o STt §, S hT A 31T 31 odieh T 37 o |1 o7 3 @
S Uek Al H 3T Biel 7 3K Ueh A7 (e a1e ot 7Y H Sqe § e 2l @ | T o6 gRguta oy
HI=7AT AT € ST 7 A G SuiE © & afasr 1§ o6 A oy feee wfie 1 3uee 2 e faes 3
T T ST T 2 |

Hufs, I ST IusHTT

TITTEfT 329! & foru Tt T Fufd, GO 3 3T (R, e, e o7fe gfed) ot 9ot e § an
# ¥ Gfad qoe iR 71 (3 1S 2) TR < S 7 | AR it Avd # A gl Iosk, T SN
31T 3T e o INfHer & S 9i) Uy aftgqafaat & fosor a7 stfemreor & foau fSmer €

< Gt GRS AT Gte o fou daR &) ST, 968 g uigufaat s /e 3§ S S fi- st e
= % e 3R 31 e gREufl s 9= e % §1¢ qRAE ol JHeh 16 Ui, T 3R 3Ushl &
AR fAgaT S |

3.6.1 7%

$S UUH 116 A el T € {5 At agaey § fereft ve=r v aRgufy & SuAn 1 e & Seu § ue fifvEa sty
& U o o o7 IR fear ST 2, O 3eel U3T heaiial & o1 ST 727 eI |

3.6.1.1 U3 & ®T T

Rt &1 9gT, STl il 3 TgeR & w0 7, Ry fafy w02 & 12 uftgufa & w@ifie & g shfEmt i
ATt oY T 9 F TR0T AT fRAT €, A ITANT o SR aret UREuf (STRST) ST AN W AT S | 39
e, TS TTH 116 % T 31 T TIeH ohd g0, TRER 1 Jeag forar oI € 59 02 =1 erafy & SR diedt
T IR W I H GO 1 o fFaor § o % ® § 9 < S ¢

YT ShTe W U
ot sfie 1 Rt fafer o fmmeis ufaft o1 geid-se-mfa & w7 5 fegm @ e |

T IR ST T ohT oM i et weRfa AT S @ $iR 39 W ARG O HiFe 16 TUf, T 3N
ITHIUT o T AT 2 |

oo =321, YATRHRT S I 1 T8 T 3R 0T & SR qd-Tae 2 % -1 uREsET o fou fer
ferit off 37T BT FITTeRT 37T Goft TANTCT BT oiIertoT ek YT -h1d -1 o &9 # famar < € | 38 gefighe
qftguEt 3R et geiTa-ahrd - o S # qRgufaat s afad fam S | st $iR 31 3 fow 3Rt
Y A SNeRT wifard fefioT =5 2 fges FrTafsr st ST € | 9fS= Sel TReRR 3 TTel ST o T




aIfiss @ 2023-24

it fereuil X swsa (SY)

3.8

3.9

ST o STTHR 9T RT T ST TT Hof THSiudl S Ufaf 59 TR gRT & S | T9feqT, T Tgsiegd]
T -IAT TRE(E % Ted THSIUHAT o o TG § AR Joh- 317 3R e e I 3H Saldt o qrer

@R |
2017-18 2,10,019.98
2018-19 426,944 27
2019-20 4,59 ,627.83
2020-21 2,41,115.90
2021-22 2,71,461 28
2022-23 2,58,395 15
2023-24 2,71,390.72

TeagTd T ufteies

ST ST, 2013 S ST (1 H Ay @ W fAfad g TS o ITE ek Tufa, §o ST SUsi T
3T STTHIT ITANT SHET TR JeIe™ ¥l ¢ | a¥ & aRE @iel T TREufadl ® qergr 3w & fafer &
YR W T o S e |

qfEafe T AT ST e g TR
Asset | Useful Life (in years)
Building 60
Air Conditioning and Others 10

Computer Equipment

Office Equipment

3
Motor Vehicle 8
5
6

IT System & Networking

TSI =BT AT € o STHIA Siae Zremefardt @ o1 39 rafyr &1 3 1A <ofir @ fages <R aftgafar
T STANT T ST 1 GET € | Acheieh! b, aTeR &1 et § Sead Y o171 SRkl & HROT 3THH
I Fohd ¢ 3R TR IROTHEEY AT ITATT S 3 g I[eeh | aeard & Hehdl ¢ |

Teles ff T Jeg R et forar ST € |

AISTEIes i 1 Uk RoU TRET & &7 § foran Siar 2 58 Dl 3am o SR W ofis svafyr § qRenfud farar
ST

T Hufear (Fufe, €6 ST Suehn) i g

e RO S1afer 3 oid ®, ST 10T Tufe, Foi 37 SR S 98 TTVT okl eiteqT el € ik a8 Frefii
feralT ST Heh foF 11 5 91T 1 1S Wbl © fof UGl 61 o1 21 g8 @ | fe U &1 Hehd Hisfe ©, 1 e1f
1 TT (afe 1 7Y Frefifid e o foru ottt ot et v 19T BT STE ST AT @ | aget A e
3fd goa # F fge &1 A iR 3T § ge § § S ifues €, 9w T

3.10 SUR & &t A

22 U 23 IYR o Sl AN § el T ¢ foh SUR oF &1 aAnd S 919 et Iy uftgafy o aifireor, oo

KMRC
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afis gfaa<ss 2023-24

foita faerol w537 (STRY)

1 I o foru e 8, 39 uRgufd &1 A o1 feed a1 @ | 377 SUN o &l A &l Ueh o & &0 3
AT &1 ST &

ST T IS BT 91T T F S ST Teen TerdT (JICA) 1R 34T 3 o TR J =A1f o STy
0T g7 fore T fomam <Tan 2 | e F% IUR oIy &9 T ue A gRgufa e & o 3299 9 ¢, 3 S
AN 37 SURT T ST 97 T 3157 fordlt off 31 Bt 5raTehy ofiehoT o foqw T € | 37efieieer 07 & oy
IR, U § ATS-Tord T o ShRUT, SO A Aok ¥ a5 fafer | gwe 3 o o ateher 6 feRar €|
TTAifer, 0T o1 for Hamer ST Afad forar ST @ SR 8 U % HerEdn (PTA) O w9 H TSt R T ¥

3.11 UG, 3MTeh{&eh dIaid I NTehfoer Gafwat

T S T W S S @ S ST o TR SR el s o uRumeaE T S a1 (ST A1 TEEIeE)
BT R, T2 GUIET & foh STt b7 SIRIGT a1 f9aT ot T ST99dehdl BN, 37 SIfie el TIf3T o1 Ueh fagadi
ST AT ST Gehell € | TR ETeh STaATel oht were & f0f7 o ek ) et # wehe fopam e €1 o
IR ETRATST Tt T X 7, 3% faei (ool & vehe et ol STl 2 | STehfineh Tafeat ohl e ek e
el & S @ ST e fo Mo (el o1 FHTH Fel ol Sl @ 371 TR 910t A1 0 et 21 S ¢ |

3.12 sferaet swley
3.12 .13fFdT 9
TR IPRT o1 et Sfed] SRR & &0 8 qiiehd feonar ST |

3.13 o Aifa ® aftadT
fat af 2020-21 F o i § uifad w9g § gRade foar 7| fam a¥ 2020-21 9 SN, 3 #UeE
I ] Jd-HATE 2 T AR T T 3R G swrE-wfa & w9 % Sied foRar 1 g% fvawda
3 s IR SR UeM & o oAU famam T o iifes shoel Ueh THdidl 81 o A1 hig et 3T
T Tl © 3R T-3% WY & Fon o 3R  wenfyd o6 v ©, 7 fop Ui % W e W g9k S &%
foa i

BIAI(eh, TR o C&AG BRI fa a¥ 2020-21 o d1ftier @Al o i@l T4 Sid 9 &l T8 froqft o STurer o,
famr o 2022-23 & AU o9 @R =1 @A TAR foman w7, e afEs § @9 geiya T8 e 9 o

ot 2 |
4.

ST % 0007
Tufer, G ST STRTUT T . 31 AT, 2024 31 9T, 2023
ECa-cica 4.1 4,23,206.24 4,13,168.52
NS 7 & IR fopar T At 6,292 .87 21,818.23
A T & SR fawar T e - -139.58
w99 & IRH HH 8™ -6,098.30 -11,640,92
ECaecica 4,23,400.82 4,23,206.24




arfies @@ 2023-24 KMRC

|2 L] Bblh 1 kRllath % bIbIf 1Bh bisfbik b b)Sh 1B Lkl B het kb
3h kyjbte 12h |2 | blieals 1% Bh L Bhlfiiehie M53h tjble ‘2t klhEte dplte Ibbkablie |4 TE- thto ITT-SVPUI HEhe kb b] ol AW| % kbl bl Bh - STV
| S312kDIE3 |k hikbdke ¥ T Y

‘ |2 lkle Le2] Hiblajfe L kbt Lifzhe Bbd bllkb
2 12k bhjlla bl 1% Serf Swh §8E Dt hip) 2h Hle 4 kot kehble ft tld 2ok [t S lathite B} [Pk Iblkblte [ Hebdh Bl hlaalh b koht %o blple € T'%

|2 Bhls S1pdo 00°€E s ket lieto] BIbItk [t bltle] 2P} fol} Jh byt
B R&28 % bhik |t blble bisy Pleblde ‘Uatk b D ‘0T twf 4o bhipkh do 11> Dbllik Lklolkeih %o 1Dleble ‘Llag Lk i lkdel2h b bl e bhjlkt b 1Y
€8'866'0€'T €8°866°0€‘T kealy 12k Bla b ¥Z0T ‘flh TE
69° L6€ 99 69" L6E‘99 BIZrsh blk bbb ¥Z0Z ‘Rlh TE
v6'687'S 6" 687°€ B2k ik th
kiolfelhak /13 Phie) /Dol lbth
SL'L0T €9 SL'L0T'€9 ERlabh bR B2k B % ke
BIZRok Phb 1% €207 ‘Liile T
TS 96€°L6'T 75°96€'L6'T koh 1-2b b tb Y207 "Rlh TE
biolfelhtk /1 Phie] /Dnllk
blolkl
75 96€°L6'T 7S 96€°L6°T koh 12p Jotwh b €207 ‘Wpie T
wb Elhis o1b Bh lntbb)
1000 2 13J1» : 2 Bt to] EPbMh BEMWIhek) ht ko k3B to ks Il Bh DY) Yo hb Mikk |% YZ0Z ‘Rl TE

Elhis Joip Bh T T’
62°20v'26'T | 89°669°T 8 ISS'Y | TTILIT 98'St | T9'60T'v v2° SS0°ST | 66°89LVS‘T koh 2p 28 tb ¥202 ‘Rin TE
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[T AT
Eiolplbbr /[ Phi) /bbb
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faritar faawuit o2 gger (ARY)

PP —— TfeT&.000
ST hTe W ol @ WA . 31 T, 2024 31 WTH, 2023
= TS Frseeg g T Haifed €
fafaet fadmr =/

EEIRC] 31,41,022.55 31,41,004 .38
L femr 3l fesme 31,08,783.31 31,01,174.70
JfET T FHT - -1 2,10,06,918.04 2,03,04,977.19
e gL T — HSit-2 1,98,17,696.53 1,93,57,390.99
7T ek 17,50,932.23 17,39,666.76
3w 22,74,236.59 21,51,208 .41
RIEICIEIME RIS 10,77,118 .27 9,50,178 .65
fETe TR R0 goTer 13,63,539.24 11,55,506.22
ftTd § Ug TH 21,77,065.23 20,08,517 .41
JUFHSI- LI o fedaay 276 .86 276.86
JUF AT — 3T TAR Zidf T 76,831.79 75,303 .69
forstett et eTmgfl 34,74,891.25 34,17,263.96
fafe ud = 34,99,354.71 31,71,197.10
8 R T FTel SISt Mt 99,46,805.14 99,46,965.93
rrfete feRra ST qutet! 4,36,869.95 3,20,337.58
Tt Te 1e A 7eta 22,886.98 6,168.83
ot 3N T&heiat 7,10,191 .46 6,36,895 .85
IIH T SR/ IR ShiT TS 5,13,032.16 4,89,639.73
T LT AR 25,749.04 20,276.10
et =R 79t 4,01,133.94 3,40,019.57
T Ud TER@R & o Sierfer Smgfd 98,784.90 85,447 .47
T 61,495.58 29,857.18
3T qe 81,329.81 26,315.60
AT T T Yok
T HATGRTR 57,35,617.25 53,05,958.19
TG HARHR 1,71,375.53 1,71,375.53
3 88,343 .54 70,906.76
8,10,62,281.89 7,80,23,830.62
Ut- sfffea =, ifaa smdes 6 -4,74,434.10 25,35,120.96
8,05,87,847.79 8,05,58,951.58

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

SHeRl H T MTAZSYH TSarg 3R RITHAT W 31d st 61 99 & <RI Heiferd onTd sl o Goid =1 & faeg
Frrfer ferar T e |

N TN, T TN & 1 fAieh 27.10.2008 5 TUEIAT I & TS 10.4 % AR | =0T (GoWB) 3R ST
IR FIIRYH fAHIS (KMRCL), GoWB IRASHT & ey & fofu fer mug off weiia o3t shedeiteit ol FIKMRCLERT
T B2 T AT WIAGfS M | TR, GoWB FRT Ffergfel/wfef 2w & (42 TN 78.26 wirg) Fwmed uftguf=t %
AN H T A TR |

1 e, 2017 YU & HTE= & a1 T 2022 i 3TIf 7o THSHUG (757 Tl 3 JaT %) ST afergfes o ferg
a?aﬂagrg%ﬁ 160.92 IS T T T U7 51 T2 © | forefier 9 § Taferd 21.00 F31S ST ol T €1 2022-23 ¥08 &
FA |

25.84 TS, ST3SE! §RT T Tl Afeld TR o SR @1 ol T8 AT okl FHme afeafaar st anmd & faes
TP e T % 30 a3 faer TRt 3 &0 3 Se T T S | 9 UESuad @ T A e 5y
TN §: FY-2017-18 - ¥.21.00 SIS, FY 2018-19 - ¥.42.69 FUS, FY- 2019-20 - %.45.96 IS 375 FY 20-21 - %.
2411 TS, FY 21-22- %. 27.14 S, FY 22-23 - T. 25.84 FS, FY 23-24- T. 27.14 TS |

T 7 G e B UREST %F 3 e o e 31 TERE o g9y § foRu U @ onfet €, gt anffsger dere
L, 2020 T T T & AT Al I, HIcTehTar o1 TiaT 71 € 31N 39k Taef 7 3713 Ha) 3o7d g Al T & |




fa=iter faawutt ot ggeT (S

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3
6.4

U4 uftae = (wifae smee)

ST H.

Jp)

IYR AN 6.1
FHAN AT YA 21.1
TeARTE Ud e

g wi

fa =

2T H 3AR-FE A
LT Td U 4R
S U9E e &Y
e 99 & fau s
AT ¥ ol wferafe

21.2

T
rafy STH O TS 6.2
T

AT 3N Fmed & e S IR 6.3
Hrarge TSt § fwen

STed ST T

fafaer eeastt & foet

TR ATHT T =TS

qfeyfe ST 9 =rs

TG : TRTer o ST ST 3

I1eE Ud Ufere g Yrewgengat ¥ siafta

T T % SN SHR AR H o1fHet §

S 2 SIS
£l

arfie @@ 2023-24 KMRC

(T H.000 T)

31-3-23 @€ 2023-24 & 31-3-23 @€ 2022-23 @

W R g W R

feretra feretta=

40,12,399.72  3,85,443.80 36,26,955.92  3,70,001.70
8,96,057.30  1,15,797.48 7,80,259.82  1,11,321.67
1,37,375.76 4,012.97 1,33,362.79 11,640.92
15,463 .87 112.84 15,351.02 346.03
47,361.31 - 47,361.31 1,089.77
-46.58,061.55 -39,07,332.25 -7,50,729.30 -2,32,334.78
1,11,305.79 32,838.83 78,466 .96 20,963 .96
12,35,010.79  4,31,696.69 8,03,314.04 1,55,313.04
2,01,972.27 - 2,01,972.27 -
50,000.00 - 50,000.00 50,000.00
20,48,885.19 -29,37,429.64 49,86,314.83 4,88,342.31
24,71,864.70 66,939.61 24,04,925.09  2,94,705.76
6,996.14 515.12 6,481.02 1,448 57
5,607 .87 2,416 .96 3,190 .91 180.84
2,448 .99 1,214 .27 1,234.72 -157 .68
480.00 - 480.00 -
12,533.98 - 12,533.98 56.90
18,258.00 - 18,258.00 -
5,129 .62 1,039.46 4,090.15 982 .68
25,23,319.29 72,125.42 24,51,193.87 2,97,217.08
-4,74,434.10 -30,09,555.06 25,35,120.96 1,91,125.23
WA, el 31,2024 T 31,2023
3,85,443.80  3,70,001.70

3,85,443.80

3,70,001.70

STST 3T ohT GHTANSTA T T © ik i 9 2023-24 & oI THESE Wi @i W Shael aredfaes I &I1sT 37 2

TS oA ST 7ok | §99 § Ted! ford T fa91 W 21T Tt =1t 6l Shae U oSt & WA SR o foaw weenfsTe fame mar

21

o forddi Sfiefich ST a1 319 & 3R J 794 5 T farn

feh, G FUASRGIA T 3R F A 3 @1 2 3N 6eH & g [ o3 5 SAR-Fe 7 37k Iuce T4 ¢ | S
T e <7 AT W AT 31.03.2024 1 RS 1 THITA o & IR e el J51 § 3aR-9¢[@ 214 3,90,73,32,247
(o af 2022-23 ® =€ 23,23,34,779 ©1) <1 foRal AT
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i ufaaea 2023-24

fereiter faraott oX sgeT (W)
7.0 3= fa~ivy ufteufaat (9T %000 )
WA Y. 31 U, 2024 31 T, 2023

A adar

ST, STEST /AT ST &
T ST 7.1 20,538.60 19,661.22
GOBW ¥ 32 1T 5.2 4,13,843.69 4,13,843 .69
GOBW ¥ T SGST 5.3 21,02,280.18 18,67,564.41
31T e 336.69 281.84
Eal 25,36,999.17 23,01,351.16
g
SR, 3= AT STl &
- R S o e T =S
- I IAim
=1 fim/fims 630.73 322.70
[rafyy s7 (3TfSid = afed) 7.2 22,46,415 .67 21,98,428 .66
S 22,47,046 .41 21,98,751.35
el T AT AU 47,84,045 .57 45,00,102.51

7.1 Offe ST & e fastelt St e ST Farsd 3 fau & T ST o ferie @ W A T S afer € 1 g
3T I 3299 o U Safafie 375 9 WX i 1 SUAN A o AU RIceRTar T A ST & T ST feT o e 21

7.2 M H 30 & HROTAEIST IR R S T 9l F fu v 3heR (3l

AFATAT o T 5.74 IS T Frafer ST R Tr T R |

8.0 o= uftaufaar

EAIST AEun I & fEas 9 °§ 3=

A . Tl 31, 2024 Tl 31, 2023
Hr-gaurT
TRFRFe, AT | AT €
qfSrre 31y
IFeR T AT 8.1 2,81,008.03 3,24,706.29
W Fremar &1 1M SyAfir 97 & fom 8.2 5,78,208.99 1,89,147.82
ff7 TR o U 1 o 8.3 3,30,177.77 3,30,177.77
et fera ST 11,89,394.79 8,44,031.88
TSI T & STATaT 31 A
9 MR o 9rer gqa
TR 8.4 36,417.29 35,249.78
TaT S 69.56 69.56

36,486 .85 35,319.34
gl 12,25,881.64 8,79,351
8.1

dHAR ! T 31 T, 2024 31 T, 2023
e AT 2,52,874.84 2,96,573.10
=gl 2,52,874.84 2,96,573.10

8.1.1 3TFY &I Il & 3TIUR faU M0 aeae S JaheRt I o fawiey e TRET & Hremm & 7 e F ga § |
8.1.2 Iherl &I feu M0 o1 S & 2,81,33,188 off O 7, S vy fmciey SwRgeR faffds (o wwandud) & e % T

J2 o1 2, Y AT I o SR 9T ST GReR g A a6 ST o, R a1 ¥ ufee Set TWeahR 7 fa B T
T ST Y o o7 | . gafern, T Ugesua bt 3T 9199 < o U el T o7 | Afi, Ueh T foaTe Seq= ga o
I T UHd THEUA & e H weeerdr f & fge Ues stdiet H-T shetehTl 3= e o GHeT oifad § | 3o 3T |,
T TgHEuA ¥ o7 & w9 F 75 AT o et € 1 e G 16.03.2022 %Y gE ot 31X ArHel o1edt qe geten T 2|

8.2  IUAITAT Jarsdt o forw &1 7 IS i oft qve § e € SRiifer T d Yo amfe SR weRndy TSIt @ e feme e 2
3R o TH T 2 TR AT B 3 G W wHf R s |
8.3  URASHI & fou fafe= vt = fy stfemenr & fou Ueruelt, ufve S sy A faRar T SAfim dedf e € 3R 39 qff w6

AferreoT 37eft ek HUASTREITS T FaT TiaT T 2 | ot 3 fomieh & 13.10.2017 & 0F & Weq q $2-3% A1 & o &
Wﬁaﬁt{éﬁﬁq?zaﬂwﬁrwaﬁmﬁr%ﬁ@ﬁw T TRHT T ST BT 7, 379 fF T 3F9Fham T ¢ | HIel
e g dfea 2 |




9.0

10.0

arfies @@ 2023-24 KMRC

fariter faawoTt ot smer (STd)
8.4 ATH A 3T KT 99 I GeAichd : FrefRor o # e o Oy iR fEIe WS T A T 0T 39 0N R
qeieR ag ToEt gy | faarg o e el
SEehT | TohaT AT STEERT
f13. 2013-14 18,640.79 - 18,640.79
f1.3. 2014-15 16,559.57 49 .43 16,608.99
Sl 35,200.36 49.43 35,249.78
8.4.1 FrefRoT a 2013-14 3R 2014-15 % AU &IRT 250  Ted WML (W) H MR Tet & WA foFar ST Fh7 T 3R 3T
- AT e B 1
e ST T TR (TFT 000 7)
WA E. 31 9T, 2024 31 9T, 2023
Fent U 91T
e J 91 = @+ 1,74,290.22 5,72,787.90
el 1,74,290.22 5,72,787.90
T Fent 91T
WA H. 31 W, 2024 31T, 2023
o= dent 7 9w
Tafer ST (TRTeET 12 FEH J 31feres ) 21,59,230.57 11,02,772.29
ERREIRERIELEIS] 38,514.40 26,573.56
HA 21,97,744.95 11,29,345.85

10.1

10.2

11.0

12.0

T ST H AR 9T Y ek TR SR e o fau Sen & e et W@ 7§ .1 oAng 1 ST e 9nfie 2
Frafe ST H 8.94 HAG T <A VMHeT € S T AR 3rafer & eet sl emafey { Geifere 2 fgent e 9% 31 9419, 2024

31 9, 2023

FAHTT R TR

Etel

&®T Hufd
BT W FHadr
EX)

Sfradt frae o

Tferepa P ght
Fforet vrav gt
3,75,86,20,000 (37,58,62,000)
Ffead] PR £.10 /- TS

it sifiresr wd qut gaer
3,75,86,20,000 (37,58,62,000)
s PR ¥ 10 /- URF

T .

31 T, 2024 31 WT=T, 2023
13,254.79 11,870.66
13,254.79 11,870.66

31 T, 2023 31 WT=, 2022

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00

3,75,86,200.00
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Taitar farawott oT gy (W)

12.1 3feadt vrr ¥ g2 faw / sifier

S o T e Uer 9oft % sfeEdt 9PR ¥, e 3ifhd 9o %, 10 W 9PR 71 3feEdl SR o Ueid uRes ufd 9eR U
1T o1 TN & | St o TREAT o L 8, sfeadt 9l & ek Gafid SRReReR] g T T giead] QR ahl g
o 3T H ST ol fordt off 91 aRTUfd &l U S o gehaR Bl |

12.2 WfdaeT a6 o WP Ud 37 7 FISRT Sht HEAT Ua TehTIT 19T AT WTHSTET

faawur 31 WTH, 2024 Rt 31 WTe, 2023 At

. Zleaet g dsit IRl T SRRt @ . Ty
Wfddes rafer o we 9 3,75,86,20,000.00 3,75,86,200.00 | 3,75,86,20,000.00 | 3,75,86,200.00
s7afey & <R e IR Oeft 8

aRad - gfadt IRRT & AT T

-- T%E & fau

-~ T o 7T 37 fammred

Wfqde Tafer st WA O 919 | 3,75,86,20,000.00 3,75,86,200.00 | 3,75,86,20,000.00 | 3,75,86,200.00

12.3 O U9t (5%) STaaet It & a1fereh o 9ot eent Rt faawur

VIR &l AT 31 W=, 2024 ST 31 WT=r, 2023 <At
A E. % ETTUT NN % ETTuT
T HAT o SIRT
e o Tl 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% 2,78,13,79,200 74.00%
AT e Ll AT o HATed o
T F YR & TP 97,72,40,000 26.00% 97,72,40,000 26.00%
12.4 WHIE AT BIfe T AT faawuT
THIET T T e Y e ECRCARC GRS % T o R
aftae=
TR E. | FAIRRT | TN AT Y. | et S
T % T %
IR o Tpafd (Y HATe) 2,78,13,79,200 74.00% |2,78,13,79,200 |  74.00% 0.00%
IRA o AT (TG ud Ired
faeTa ) 97,72,40,000 26.00% | 97,72,40,000| 26.00% 0.00%
IR o AT & AT 800 0.00% 800 0.00% 0.00%
12.5 5 TS shi 31afer o forg, gor ux ufaae fafer @ foes uger
(%) Tohe B A I R 51 O e T A o Y § A SR S el T S Gt I
(@) aFg IRRE & HeAn Ol gew o w9 7 SET Fa T 3R SRt 5 9o NE
(M) AT @I T IR T FA AT AR A0 I

N



fareiter faraut oX sgeT (ST
13.0 31 Sfoaet

®)  IIET A T wifa eMmee
3ifeT o (FA-a)

@) IR ud At
arfergi
TR 9
e - I F <R
T : Gree el % I SHakd
3 o (Fa-@)

M) A AUk AT
TRfTeR 9
RIS o IR @1 2RI & T3H &
3feT o (Fe - )
T ! g WO (& + @ + )

WA H.
13.2

13.1

aIfiss @ 2023-24

(TIT&.000 )

31 WT=, 2024 31 WT=T, 2023
8,042.78 558.78
-125.29 7,483.98
7,917.47 8,042.76
-755.38 -543.45
24.37 -211.93
-731.01 -755.38
7.186.46 7,287.38

13.1 a9 &% R SO 3 9 20-21 % AU F 217,82,05,388/-, aF 19-20 % AU F 236,92,20,200/- W el a6t & A
¥.-19,10,14,813/~ ! A~ JTa- T (FTS M) T TIHIART o3 fea1 € S Teel ooy 37N 21 @ & <= fovy 0
| YU FT T F IR, R HUANRES U THHE 2, T R T e wd dreareed ¥ wafuq €, gafe
Tl TSTE o B H St /7 31 U et § Ty foFd

13.2. JTEX STAE THT ST snae

IR e AfeT H 1 off IR fifter e T 2

13.3 JIIX IS YT wifad srae ¥ uftaaT et faena

Taawor

FIAT 2MTae T wifaa emee
yfeae e7afyy & gRey H 91
a1 : T & SR erdfad IR
wferag arafer & sfa ¥ 9w

14.0 J4UX

AT-gaurT
sfasfa

o

s Wafr FT (S2EH0)
IR THR & TS o 0T

WA .

Y,

14.1914.9
14.10 9 14.11

(Tf¥T %.000 ®)
31 WT=A, 2024 31 ®T=l, 2023
e = # e = |
(TIT&.000 )
31 HT=, 2024 31 HT=, 2023

3,13,97,875.28

3,52,13,913.95

1,94,97,202.38

1,33,16,374.10

5,08,95,077.66

4,85,30,288.05

KMRC
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farivar faraott T gge (W)

14.1

S ST hl- 3TRYH T (SEST) 5 9Rd | =T [T o fl GeanT TeM & o fl w@id o T9afd o
1T Uk THIAT T © | U €1 ek ST 91319 STe T H ShIciehlal & $% 9% Al Gt o1 {7 o, afes 5 g
TR TR ATer TRaR YU ST R Sh¥eh ShIcTehTdT H2ITifea &1 B AT &1 agal Ji ol T f&aT ST 9 3R 39 Wehi
2fpeh ST 1 THEA UF gl H1eX aTedl i a97e & 2 T8 UGHUT i ¥ ok a1 Sfeleh e ohl arerar qer vl faey
T STEd! TTERT § GYR @ ST T |

ST 0T TYY TR %07 ¢ 37T G 07 JAeia ST A 2 S %07 o F=m 31 91t oh7 foremor et € | Sgeht 07
wer Aty faeia e @ oMt 38 €3 As-32 % @R faed faawor # aftenfud ane o fern s 2

14.2 STEeRT 4 =X 2R § 07 Widhd fehu & fSept foaor =gt fear o @
feraur S T e T ST T 3299 EIE) e T
At (ST o 31 ) W | W IT Afaagar
TR
0T Gl 192 10-03-2008 64,370.00 fefor ohref = 1.20%
0T G 192U qehiient AT 0.01% 0.01%
3Teh ek 0T
64,370.00
0T Gl 207 31-03-2010 2,34,020.00 fefor ohref = 1.40% 0.01%
0T @Il 2070 qehiient AT 0.01%
2,34,020.00
0T T 263 28-09-2018 2,59,030.00 fefor ohref = 1.20% 0.01%
0T Gl 263U qehitent TS 0.01%
2,59,030.00
0T T 295 25-03-2021 90,910.00 fefor ohref = 1.15% 0.01%
0T Gl 295U qehitent TS 0.01%
90,910.00
6,48,330.00
14.3 VAR ST URTIAT MHTSH 5 ThHT &

(TIT&.000 )
ferazur 2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 & AT
STeTTE 9T F 0T

- 0T Tl 192 3,11,688.00 3,11,688.00 40,51,944.00

- 0T @l 207 11,09,726.00 11,09,726.00 1,66,45,890.00

HA 14,21,414.00 14,21,414.00 2,06,97,834.00

14.4 3 FOT QU ST AHE T 10 99 =1 37f4 o AT 2 | AL 7 g G BT 21 & S IF S U ST e A

14 .5

14.6

14.7

14.8

20 T &1 37 # T /e T YA a1 STQT | 3T{ae i 911 o T8N 01 . 192 o Heie &1 T4 A1, 2018 ¥
I B E UG HOT T, 207 T IEIAC A, 2021 T €1 | 0T F. BT [T 263 TF H07 . 295 FHIT: fFeieR 2028 37K
T 2031 T IE FT |

IRT THR o Shdlell 31 US UH3aH U S (HUUN) GRT AT, eie ol fohtdl q2T 37 Jehtal ahi JaT e &l 5T
T 7| AT SO T S H T AG-afed § 0eH R 7, AfehT Hu o e @it ¥ A afede T fha e,
Fifer TUUT SR 3T T T 1 ST ¢ | Suer bl A9 §, St I oiar-sfedt § S U1 ™ 29 it e aeh it
Ik ° 9 o e Tt feRan 7, St fop 0T gegha & Frefiftd fopar e €1 Huun 3 o 09 o aiE % SEN 39 @i
T o A e 7

T SEET -207 o Ted AR HT TE 2018 F F1E Aek 77 T € | SHUAT BT AR @ R T F01 BT R0 WE, 2018
1 TE R T ¥, ST 0T o e Wfea Yook o oI R WEe o e T6 ¢ |

FERTAT FSELIT T BT A 3R TR-Fe = 7 afa a1 T 2 1 THH STSALHIT F07 1 Heiferd F07 Fugie a1 qrRener
TG o STER oH-T3 o1 dg § Ueh a9 & iR b1 0el Rl o SR T 49 &R T 2 |

STTgeT 0T 7 TR el gg7 7 IAR-=ed-HUus gR1 f¥ &1 T ¥ | qoH-99 &1 aii@ ol JRaE 51§ ey frar mr 2|
31 T, 2023 T R o/ S o Teffd o7 R 3Menfid AR <X 0.5509 € 1 T AS-32 % STER 39l g1 # 3dR-
=TT 1 AT~ | a9 fepar T g |




aIfiss @ 2023-24

et farawott ot sgeT ()
oot 31.3.24 T 31.3.24 hIRUT | SYR T fadell | 31.3.24 U EOT
T (IA) (SMETAIIN) T 7 IAR- (STETAT)
IrgaTted &t SrgaTed Tt ela =T sraTea
0T @I 192 43,63,632.00 24,03,924 .87 3,10,998.39 27,14,923.26
0T @I 207 1,77,55,616.00 97,81,586.85 | 12,56,252.53 | 1,10,37,821.38
0T @I 263 2,58,26,535.42 1,42,27,838.36 | 17,32,960.53 | 1,59,60,798.89
0T @I 295 90,48,000.00 49,84,543.20 6,07,120.80 55,91,664.00
5,69,93,783.42 3,13,97,875.28 | 39,07,332.25 | 3,53,05,207.53
14.9  SMSHIT FUT kT faawur
farawur TR 9T | adh el | adeshene | faReitgar®| siffwow
E:pISED g | SAR-dgE | (SMEUASIN)
AU 3,61,00,592.00 7,95,384.47139,07,332.25 | 3,13,97,875.28
SIS g U BT 3,85,443.70 | 3,85,443.70
feTergell Yok TehTT 51,687.94 51,687.94
3,61,52,279.94| 3,85,443.70 | 11,80,828.17}39,07,332.25 |3,14,49,563.21
14.10 STefEeT SRUT

14 .11

14.12

15.0

I HATT (THRATAR) T TG U 9t HHa & HaTed (THT=0) adH Gge TH1eR 89 & A1 3% 9fe=e s

TR (IS o qaad! T TH1ER) = TRASHT o T had &Y, SIET Ud 377 Hafed gsivd 214 M o o ot
T SATST o STEIeT 0T YeT fora 2 | 3 S0 a1 YA STgHT qe 37 gt ud 91 why 374 7k ogR ud aF et
foram T 2 | ufEerT & forw ot 93 Tafey ST STl SreTEEiT I I 07 & YA % g el ey HAe F

T 0T 9 2021 F 2025 F XA THYTAH AT 2 |

TR O ahi gTferT
T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
NFYTET 0T — 3TTETEA U ITe ATt o HArerT & SRy
IR TWHN 14.7 17,10,700.00 17,10,700.00
AR F0T — I HAAT & SIRT YR THR 78,68,900.00 48,68,900.00
FST TEf FT (SBAET0) / Gidw
o FETCr GRT AT o T TSR 0T T YT 70,81,607 .24 59,00,778.97
g 9% AT — 3 T 2,56,25,082.38 | 2,36,25,082.38
I
JIMEG o foAu Yot Harer & e -2,27,89,087.24 | -2,27,89,087.24
1,94,97,202.38 | 1,33,16,374.10
T-gaaT fasia o, WA Y. T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
gfegfe ST ud ufaemor afer 17.1 2,55,000.61 3,28,721.78
2,55,000.61 3,28,721.78
TaemT A Y. Tl 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
FHART &Y & forg qrae
T o foaa waem 3,333.20 3,419.40
FFEHTYT I & AT qrae 3,598.91 3,799.96
6,932.11 7,219.36
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it fereutt oT gy (SY)

15.1 &I

(i) ORI @y SR o URfeR 1Y FHO 9 T e

Seifeheh Hetich & SR W U T FHAEAT & 91 I=T o1y S S1qeh1eT 3 oty <kl Sl &1 fegme W@l 2 |
TRTere AT AT

Taawur

(ii)

T ot I[ERAT H GRIf Ay e
AR HaT AT

ST AT

dHifoheh (T9)/81H

AT YA

ot foam 9% & fau gqmEse
qH o i o fCaTie oy e

T o SN e i TS

Taawor
T faawor &

(ifi) ORI &1 <1fered o YRfYeR 37 SHIT 91 o1 fHer

FAAM TaT AT
TST AT

el AT

I FAME 3
dHiferer (ar)/21H

3T ® r=rar e 9 o o 31 (31) /=

Taaor

T &l Tead # aRifid oy St
FAAM TaT AT

TST AT

dmifeRen (ArY)/21H

AT A

fire famm a* & fow gamEe
a9 o Ifd | gftaTiyd wre S

Jeget (rfamuriae)
31 U, 2024 31 W, 2023
34,19,401.00 26,83,749.00
2,84,261.00 3,08,253.00
2,18,651.00 1,93,966.00
-24,372.00 2,11,934.00
-5,64,742.00 -
21,499.00
33,33,199.00 34,19,401.00
ﬁi'ﬂl'l (erfarmare)

31 W=, 2024 31 HT=l, 2023
2,84,261.00 3,08,253.00
2,18,651.00 1,93,966.00
5,02,219.00 5,02,219.00

24,372.00 2,11,934.00
24,372.00 2,11,934.00
TSHTYT Ia=T (Srfa=aTiET)
31 T, 2024 31 T, 2023
37,99,958.00 32,03,090.00
3,99,668.00 2,65,222.00
2,22,062.00 1,99,554.00
4,05,195.00 5,51,995.00
12,27,971.00

-24,55,942.00 -4,19,903.00

35,98,912.00 37,99,958.00




aifis i@ 2023-24
fariter faawoTt ot smer (Sd)
16.0 ST AT-TAH TG WA Y. T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
TS Feg el % fu =R 2
- &I 37T 3R o ST T FhT
- &I 3T 3R o ITAT o ITCAT 37 IRT S TR 2,76,357.53 3,43,670.05

2,76,375.53 3,43,670.05

31.03.24 T &M, T 30N TeT ! (THUHURE) 1 <21 R & 1E 0 A1 90 761 @
31 97, 2024 3% 31 9T, 2023 T AT gU 99 & feAw AR 37 T FeRT SrgE s AR R

faawur T St e fafer @ frafafea safuat & foe senrar
WET | 19 ST 1-294 | 2-399 (399 feren e
THUHUAS T b1
S 2,61,443.01 | 9,899.78 | 3,911.52 1,103.22 | 2,76,357.53
FA 2,61,443.01 | 9,899.78 | 3,911.52 1,103.22 | 2,76,357.53
faawur T Skt e fafer @ frafafea safuat & fog aenmr
IWE | 19 ST 1-29 | 2-399 (399 aferen e
THUHUAS &1 FehTT
B 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52 | 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
HeT 3,33,132.71 | 3,911.52 | 1,103.22 5,522.60 | 3,43,670.05
17.0 favita doamd T . T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
EREiE)
ST $2T9e IR TSig! T o7
URA THN o Jreaq F (S3MEHT) 14.1t0 14.9 7,83,056.97 8,86,678.05
afeyfe ST ud ufaemor afer 17.1 2,89,502.68 2,79,960.87
10,72,559.66 11,66,638.92

17.1 SO gRT Akt TE Afegfe ST R wiemor T Y S i erafyr O B 0 ST oY & STl € 1 Akt T QT wferemor afdy
TR TfTgf STHT BT FARM U TR-IA 0 H AT Joi T S dKRE U (1) 5 o i) A1 3Gk a1 39 /e i e <Al
37afey % T S FT G & Faler & A o MR T {51 e 2 |

18.0 3= fa<itsr Toam@ T . T 31, 2024 el 31, 2023
- .

FHE AT 73.55 6,616.14

9 o fofu < 2,095.25 153.97

ifdferen sehmr 29,342.19 39,677.66

STHT ST 9T 7,008.82 7,454.72

SISTEHIT 0T T Afcasdl e 14.5 51,687.94 51,687.94

90,208.74 1,05,590.42

19.0 31T 3T ek T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023

ST AT T &S 433.72 8,074.70

=gl 433.72 8,074.70
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i farautt oX gger (SRY)

20.0 I AT WA Y. T 31, 2024 T 31, 2023
Ry 37 F wE 41.30
or@T Tieeht Sl T
Tifaferer orar T 217.01 237.42
ATAfer orEn TR 330.00 300.00
EZEECIRTIE | 12.00 12.00
HA 559.01 590.72

22. <huHT SfafTEd, 2013 St ST 11 FRT Sfar rfafter fafamaes geET|
STEeT Ut o @ faerE ot faawur shu=t o T8 uT =8t 2|
EAUAT | GufM el | Hehel 9@ | W Ao | 9 Wi faorg | dufe fRg i | huet o A Tt

TTETTeR o8 | o] T ) T A &ITeh THIET, qafae B ST ShIUT
T farawur FreTen = ey

v & fivaem
o1 aHey/ feven
& wHaT §
Tufd, wEwE | wEr g | 1,97,396.52 | iR =AH EE] faedtr af 2012- | ST A Y T 30 AW
ITHIT EEEl 1373 s | = eEfa o fau A
W feran € 1 S g
3T A T OSiiehd
FHH UHFAHR
Tufq, §99 T4 | iwfia | 75,480.57 | Ufv=H S Bl faxiia 9 2008- | 1488 @ Hiax yfy &7
ST it iy TR 09 q 3 Tk | IV Wi € 0
1733 1 Hia¥ 9fi7 &1
139 difed § it
HHe e & 3t
AT 9999 § IR
& A= = |
U T (e
36172/2013 & 3T
CIECKA!
Tufd, 993 wd LEC] 46,741.73 | el R fast T ERREL I3 T e
STHT FHHI 2008-09 FHUHARHITA b
%.24,250.83 | EEACARA e foRdl TR
ERIREL] o e 99 39 Y
2013-14 9 EERIRIDIRIRSCRIED)
%.22,490.90 | 3T URANHT
e fEer o |
RS I8 B &
PR W 7 N Fufe
I W2 3
AR &Y fea
S | 39 © & g
A, 99T o Wi,
IR 3fe o o
3T T S |

W) S U A A iR et 9 & ofd H 1S A Tl € 1 GeTuR, 39 R Siava Smfrd Yehd IR o Tl e ¢ |

M Y e 9 iR frer 9 o SR St wuf, G 3R SUShT T qHeeR TR R 2




arfie erwr 2023-24 KMRC

foxitar faerol W sweT (SR

q) A A T, FeuTeRt, U 3R Feifud midat (st foR e sfafer, 2013 3 ded TR R T ) @ STen-
ST AT G T Rt 317 SAfeR o Gy 0T S R T 7 1 0T A7 A AL A 2, S Wi W A G SR e o
& <R foRdt oft o7l =7 FJewich skt emafer oy fAfdy fopu 57 e A9 7 | FegdR, 39 IR o Sietd ifead wehd oo oy
TR

T)  A-TSA-shT (Heee e dt) T S/ T S
. A-YSI- T o U, QT ST 31.03.2023 T 99 &1 E €

ek 314t o forg Hesegemgar o Tivr HA
GiEs I T a8 ¥ T 1-2 9 2-3ad 3 9 | ST
TR T W' 28,896.21 6,29,587.38 77,15,177.03 7,22,14,187.17 8,05,87,847.79
TRETT STt
w9 Y fafaa

T, Yol-h-wie & fou, et Q1 e A € A1 St Hot A Sl g § SR ol I Afu € T T, 31.03.2022
o X A S A T R

ek STafer o forg dissrgengt o vt T
RIGEE T a¢ ¥ &Y 1-2 99 2-39d 3 a9 & wTer
TRASHT T WS | 39,06,444.33 56,11,848.77 | 1,1843,262.83 | 591,97,395.65 | 8055895158
BlIRIEEIE TSR]
&Y § feifer

) T IR A 7Y 3R Tt 9 o oid  faeRTy & Siavid I 3T Ut Tel € | AegHR, 39 o Sicuid feqd wehdTeRtor
A el e |
D) A T 3R el 9 & <R A Ul o fie sifufem, 1988 iR 3Tk Sid sA MU et & i R off

ST Ffe Bl TE o AU Sl o Wi g HEaTEl 97F A7 Al T Q| GeTER, $9 R & fafd S yendie
A T DAL

) ST A 9 3R e 9 o <R =] R ST G 3 SR W et A o Gt ¥ S 3UR i e 71 RN,
T TRT o STRI ST Tehd [ehRT AT el a1l 2 |

) T A a9 SR et 9 & SR Rt off e A7 fai W A7 31 HOTeT §RT ST Y fEthica S Tt e
%1 TETER, 39 I & fia SR 10T o] Tel BT € |

) ST A 3R e 9 & IR S ifufe, 2013 ST URT 248 A1 SO STUFEH, 1956 S RT 560 o ded d¢ i
TE SHUfTE o G HIE M TE R € | ACTER, 37 RT o STl TR ehd TRl A TE e ¢ |

T)  denfer o % aTg ST TR 3 O USeUT o U IS Yeek AT WY Sifed T @ | dedun, 39 W % Siad smferd
Tehd TR T0T T Tt BT ¢ |

3) A 3R B o & SR ST FIE T Sl Tl @ SR TedaR S Ui, 2013 1 URT 2 % WS (87)
ST ST (TRt ST HET IR ufaEen) fm, 2017 % W17 U3 Well 1 U@ BT S o el @ |
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foritar foarolt = gwsa (SIRY)
T) favcmoes s

U == arer a | adH sty | fueeht s | o uftadw | 25% W sfuem g OT

Ufad T sIuT
T S | 9dAe aREuf | A gad 3.98 3.08 29.54 % | 9@ Y § 9% o A &
Fenforer et & g ofR
ek T & o HRT
Fo g | g E O IRRERET &l 1.33 1.29 3.26% -
ST sfdt
0T HaT Shadsl | 0T HaT & fAT | o7 Far < < -
3T A T
ﬁ\”ﬂw‘“ T AT F ?gﬁmﬁ 0.00 0.00 0.00% -
g ferady
TG AR | I A FF | 3 gl < e RG] EWEH]
S Sl
(Grafrsiie)
3P @

S I I Bisa faat M| ] o Tt UEH
SR 2 FRER | I[E Bfs Glie | 3fd =R 3 o T e & et AN Tt
ST
ST
I[E AT ST | 3% o 91E 318, | 3% et & Tat RG]
(%) Sk ™ L "
fer | & % 91 F | 3 SRR e 0.00% 0.00% -
A (%) @ o fafer

3)

TSI 1 Holl TET 1 T § | GETER, 36 TR % A TR h el AN Tl el € |

)

= T R et a & SR U SR, 2013 ST GRT 230 ¥ 237 W STTER T MR SR foRdt off wrazen &t

(31) S T = o o <R el Feemstt (wemell) wfed Rt avr =Afa () A1 T (37) @y SAfim =1 For a1 R

& (7 A SR AT T2 GRRITeT A1 9o N =1 ot o1 Sid 41 Teh & B8) o1 ey 781 fan @ oiie fiwer af 3g
o & A1y (A1 fafgd =9 7 97 37=7ey 25 foar 7o &) o e

AT (e arrell) gRT A 3T IR W fFYY off e W YgA MU 31 AfGqAt A7 GLsh | Uewey A7 megey
Y Y IYR 7 a9 Y A

Siferm aTedt &1 =1 3T 3R T IS TRAT, AT AT T TWE H hlg TR UG e

(i)

(ii)




s A@ 2023-24

foiter foazent « 537 (SRT)

)

)

)

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

(31) S R e A SR et 9 % R faeel wrensT (wiew uidh) afed R off sfe (@) A gwer (o) ¥ ve
T et g § (e fetfigd w7 ¥ =1 e1=rexy <t fohay T e fo S

(i) ot (i amemedl) gRT =1 3T 3 W fFdr off T F TgH T4 1= AfGA] A1 HLestt T yoet A7 3TTey
w0 Y YR 7 8w Y a1

(i) oifo ammeff &6 =1 e oI T IS TR, T A1 S8 OE I hIe TRAT TS |

TRIERY AT, 1961 % Ted &Y [EiRoT § =1e] a 3 fiet o o SR @il 1 &bl # GIST AT 3719 o &1 H uehe fou
T I # FIE e @St Tl fora T e |

ST A T STUTTIH, 2013 T URT 135 o YFEH o STHR HUHAR (AT SHIiSe STelie) & qed fedr off @=
¥ U e et foe 7 | Fegan, WiegeR nfafafet & T ¥ aend et on] Tet € |

W%gﬁ[aﬂ‘ 3 e o o SR ShTCT 3T A1 SRS g7 7 AR A7 faer 6 foRar € 3R gufene, Wi MU gehd ey
A TR

W qek arrer fAfdy 7 2, fasha faawur it @t & 39T & oot i esmr § 21
eIt s ftgufaat (375)

FAA ST T o Toct BN A STEIR I FHIE Tel ot @ | 39 Hal o Hafe] F ST ot TREAf 1 /=i et 2l
TE 2 iR I% Gfad TR A S © o fiehe wfasy #§ wfgsr § o A oy Sy S faes e 3w e feRe S
T |

gfr srfrrgur ¥ Hafua wifa s araer
ST & et 54 2IFITAI HH § ST 31-03-2024 T Al @ | fFawor @R € (@l g fafse wehf & ©)
HTHEAT Y T faraur HR
1 oty sfemreom HAATT A= =R
13 gff SR A ShIcTehldl 3= AT
1 gff feugor HESAESIEIRISE]
1 TR YA Y e, hicTehldl
1 i I ShIctehTdl 3= =TT
28 fafaer I ShIcAehTd T 3= =ATATed
9 T Heeft HA IR 3= =TT

AT S TWHR (GoWB) = 9 TRad! 2015 Tl Ueh T ST < fSUT ahi T o fll gl T1eh, |ed oieh § USRI
1 & T 385 Uohg ST o AT STAfd W Sheal % U S[ee o &9 § 3368.79 THAIS FI 1 TMVT KT T T T 1 9N
TFR, GoWB 3R KMRCL & FI7 27 STaAR 2008 T TEAIT THT 0 o TR/ 12.1 % SFUR ST gRT 3o 9[eeh 2
Tl 2 3R Tafae se fewme qeaet ¥ 6 fepar T g

fe=m ST TWRR T 319 T Aok 13.02.2015 3 T&T SHICRTAT ITeX B WM 3 F21 It it & fy 3 o fow 3
T I[ok & AT 889 .69 TS FUN T TAIT 1 T ShT off | 37 HIHCT I Tafed TFIHIEAT & FreT I3 T ¢ BTeAf(eh,
TR o SR W, ST A T T 33(SN) & STHR 3 STk I & &9 § <9 € |

31 T 2024 T T off Goo, o TR TeAT I &1 12 TR 37 e ¢ IR 7 & AT Sifufem, 2013 3 gaH, @
3T Hem e faenrd Afafam, 2006 T R 22 & TR AT 3777 9T 32T 1 GAMT A I EVISH ¢ | Tk 3T
T Yo AT 3R A 3TN o T H TR0 SH0AT SR SffeRerait s g Hare F Wit T e O S 9 gy ) Smenia
2l
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foxitar faeron W 397 (SR
29. HEERT AT FroETd

88

FHHFIET BT HeH fFT ST e = e oot o1 f&a0r 39 1R 2

TRCATIE SPTET AT

SO 3 FHHANET T I BT A Bl €, oA sy Janfgie & T s 7 9 9 o Ja1 9 o A 2 | I
A I, 1972 % 3TER aT o T guf 7 o o 15 femt & gt 997 & feqma & I=1d T e R S 2
TZ ST 3T AR T ST BT SifeRes Shfemt s faer shifaw, < Sifgw 3 307 Sifed & e 3R o 2 |

TS 3R FHifRer Ararst § aRady T e 2 1o AT 3R 21 T QA 3 S1afe § wee e ¢ e ¥ oy
e A H A ¢ |

o1 AT T Ga e drwiferer Jeaieh 3R aRefia @ S o adH Jo 31 7, 2024 1 SF. 3R, FH,
. TSl SR TATeHER gRT fofan T o | aRefd @ S T g g 3R Tefud S JaT A S deree
IfTe e U5l T ST Tk A T o7 | e i A TE e €, st Ut Aer e o g ¥ Je i

IS AITIHAT T ¢ |
Pl

dHifeheh JeAT o TASHI o [T STINT &1 ST ATell TE TR 39 TR

SiTaTehIfch JeAeh-1 o TS o foTd T T R0 39 YT o

T o 31 T, 2024 G 31 T, 2023 d&h
FT T 6.97% 7.17%
afger & 399 3fg 6.00% 6.00%
3T e 1 Jar (I et Sfe) 12 3 10 7
T T Arfeeht IALM 2012-2015 IALM 2012-2014
Mg # Yarafa- gy 60 T 60
31 o Farfafa- Afean 60 T 60 ¥
Ty q et YA SN e (Felt SRoT o) 0.100% 0.100%
3T 45 ¥ I 0.06% 0.06%
39 29-45 & a9 0.03% 0.03%
3 29 T &H 0.01% 0.01%
Wes dafaf 3T 3T
3T StefehToTeh ShuTt oTeT:

FET AN U A I IR oy Fer 2 S At 9o, et a1 Wi fehmt % wrem F a1t fhe
TSR A T Y 7 | oY 31 397 (s 3R S 1 A H T gu) 3N T Sash1er 9 3 SR W i
fohT ST & ST 91X Fiehor & T T fohT ST & | Ao fests ot 37ef @ fof o dX W et o faxier ftomi
T JIET H Tt SNGH 7 TR 2 i 3FT 2

g 2SI 29 dR R 0T 61 Aifeher et s forer shfigw, g Sifgm it 307 Sifigd & ffu SR e 21

. TS IR G . X . =T GRT 31 I, 2024 1 o1 URETET 31 TR @y Sifae & ado go
T e BT arHifchen Jedieh fona T |

EEICGE)
UERAd qeAeh o TS o fod 3TN a6 ST dTel g7 UR0T 39 TR off:




s a@ 2023-24

foretar foao @ 33sa (SR
T aTumg 31 W, 2024 T 31 W, 2023 9
T 6.97% 7.17%
afger o 397 3fg 6.00% 6.00%
3ffd e et Jar (I e ) 12 10 7
T X AIfCcART IALM 2012-2015 IALM 2012-2014
g # Jarfafa- g 60 T 60 T
31 § Jarfgfa- afgen 60 T 60 T
RER o 0.100% 0.100%
Wz Jafef e SAREC]

30. ditfeen gd erafer sefeat

31.

32.

33.

wiiferer qd svafer et weqd o1 T ud srafeEt 3 fow Jerrerer ATt sy g S gdend w9 § e 1 S @,
=f g€ off | afe =fr weqd 1 7 gay R oty ¥ 9 gE €, O WEqd & T ey yRfie stafy & o o,
AT 3R Tferadt 3 SRR 919 1 O 51 a1 ST €, S 7k o I8 STemaerics | 2, U fefd #, ot e
1 T AR Afq ) AR ®9 T ORfyer fafer @ any s % fow gumfea e s 2
fe 9IS

wfer PrET S T 2024 T GUTE | WTE 2023 ThY TATE

¥ o feg ¥ o feg
TfeT IR 7 3T (F.) 0.00 0.00
T SR 71 feRoT 3 SR 99 & fAu o (INR) (100.92) 7272.04
Ufe PR T 3 o a9 J Sfradl IRt @ WiRa sfed S 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,20,000
TRfYer O gSt — HeE 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,20,000
TH PR S — e 3,75,86,20,000 3,75,86,20,000

UfS=m e TR o J&F TF T 06.11.2012 1 Ueh U5 ST o o foraw Ieorg foran o o fo afy=m et TWerr 3
-9 W31 FHINER TS & U fy Sy & U 48 FRs &9 oY 19T BT ooy f3ham € 1 et ¥ ShureTRaTet
o1 foT ST a1t 48 IS w0 & G707 & AT fy=m STt GUehR & QT A 331 ©, ifeh ol o TS H UEr g
fiehTe IcTes] FET € | HHeT T THTE S AT 3efl of wifere 2 |

¥ UUH 24 o A8 U ferd Tel Uehe IehuT
(a) EGIferd Tar wehetehTuT
T Ueeeh T SfeRT ot AT Regd =t wepfa
SdtgF G 3Teey
ot 9 o ek EECIEENED
Y STTIAT TFR (01.02.2024 Teh) freemer (o) oI frrevrer (stRuw dg dY)
ATt 3ifaehT S (02.02.2024 ) e (fam)
e qevhe Sl 3edH feere (4 ig 9)
4t e fig [BENIED
ot T ARYR 2Tk BENIED
< Hife Ae [EENED
4t 3 FHN ASHR feeTen (g ds d)
o sy BENED
et gt < e F g
A wfer weTart RIS
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KMRC =i fis ufaaea 2023-24

foftar forerolt X sEsa (S)
() @/ 3rafer & SR WOE Weier Shiftiehl o ATl oi-2

Teaawur

LCEECaCY
(YT *000 )

Humdt
(YT "000 )

MIeRT ARATTIH, 1961 o1 URT 17(1) H Hfed e & IR a7

5,505.00

5.063.87

A =T Hed

T F I A1y

T FRTTeRT T S3 T o *

hel

5,505.00

5,063.87

*  2023-24 % U F2STeR T 93 W1 BT I TE foRa 7T ifeR 3 fari O oF SR g o e e o

(TT) SR AT U ey el & Href -2 & e, ST o Yol Herd, N GLehT o H1e off oi-o §, 5 fferfiaa
e 2, ifeh %1 deh G 121 2 :

i1 &t Tepfr: T fed Ta Aol IPReRa

TH & S e
Heferd qret ent 9| -3 &l Uehfd T (000 FUH T)
A HA - o1 et 30,00,000.00
JMEHIT 0T & fgas o 14,70,026.53
34. faevht gz few

ST R el gerelt § oed e ©: SR 3hert B tfim, T =, uRomaasy, fafa < # 3aR-T1gE % Sifew 3
2 & | RAfET 3mafer & R SRt §RT foR T O SR et 11T 39 R 7

faraur 31 WTH, 2024 ST | 31 HTH, 2022 T
[T 99 & fow | | 9 & fog
SoherT T T
- RS RS
- el b b
- I I
feior ==
- o 14,87,382.72 6,86,055.70
- S I 3,05,724.51
- guEst 2,45,086.56 2,42,453.40
- el 80,548.30 11,618.26
35. Ifud Yo wraT

e afifaat iR et o1 3 gog 39 Afer % enfact & ST € S SR Gt & & orafterd aed # aRwuta
1 S o foAg e B ST 27 By i e & oAU I i S | S g W10 5 aRen W i € 5
TR 1 A= A1 ST ] GEAARd S BT o AT A BT e :

o  TRHHM 1 < & fAw e AR H A
o  TRTUR AT HAT & AU Hall VIS SISIR § YA SR ol STafefa 7 |
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it fereauil « swea (SY)

36.

37.
38.
39.

T o ol H& a1 9ad e eI gy g1 =1fe | foredt aREufa a1 <ar o1 3fad g 39 Ar-adrail a1 3TN ahich
T AT 2 S SR G qREaf 27 <o 7 9o iR S qug ST 4, 7% W g o e Teunt av anfee
T fed § & Fd B

Tt A g ST 3Tek faii FreE T SR T H 210 AT i a1 STEN AT 2 | grelife, R o e
Toheiieh 7 3fAffea T 21 € 1 3Hfen, et Foft foefrr Tnert o o, wqd S g SHH SavEs §9 F 39 9
Tt o1 Tehd T 20 € S T Gaferd faferdt o AR ST oA § 0 41 e 6T geRdt off | 39 e, et
frafd fafertt & are faxdia @remt =1 3fAd g v ad/e@fa & oid § foid =t 78 afert ¥ fa @ gk 2
31 9T 2024 ok Tqafed TaT o 37 TR SerTT b1 faawor, S STHT et foran 7 © 1 faiey o qed St forar o 2,

arfie or@r 2023-24 KMRC

ﬁﬂw%:
T ohT A0 qEhTAT T Tfer Tg srafer fraw I et
T Ut (’000 FUT ) | T HEfaaE ferare wifaa @
far sfufam, 1994 Ta 1,854.94 | famad 2009-10 ¥| 3T WLHIUT ST 3T
2012-13 (11), HET T Yeeh
YT YU, 1961 | BT W &Y Haldt 1450 |fadad2022-23 | JUF IR FA A
IR AT, 1961 | BT R HT Hafdr 732 |fad@ad2021-22 | 39 F SHER FA TH
18 T R it 6

HTAT o T T A Tfed g SrefeRToren STEY et o fSrek foaw g wiiferer qarmfae =eT ol
1R 2N SR goit wfaasand (S T aes e T2t forar 1 )

Tarawur

31 HT, 2024 A%
(000 )

31 HT, 2023 A%
(000 )

(@)  f=feafiad o Haer |-

- fasi 9 2009-10 H 2012-13 T 30
F 37 TaT T AHA

1,854.94 INR

1,854.94 T

(@) FT % fEas <@ 59 %01 % =9 ¥ SR Tt o mn

1,27,55,353.23 INR

1,27,55,353.23 T4

() Ter A I e g1 fafy=1 @t o fow e 13,301.36 INR 13,301.36 T99
(3) 3R ST ST F T ST T (A T I1) 2,81,008.03 INR 3,24,706.29 T
@) v g S afer 1,316.60 1,316.60 T

(Th) 38.5 UshS i o AT AT et I[oeh (1T .26 °Q)

3,36,87,942.75 INR

3,36,87,942.75 F19

(Sf) fy=r STTeT TEERR gRT Wi T 3 A I[eeh (397 - 27 °9)

88,96,900.00 49U

88,96,900.00 T

(Te) d2 oM & fou shiererrar oo =g 4 afafed i

88,83,466 .54 ¥0U

88,83,466.54 TT

2009-10 ¥ 2012-13 Teh SUHAT U HET IS Yok AT (3TeT-%) F Gryey JaT 3 37fict wifad & | 3ifam gar

13.10.2017 %1 g2 o 3R 3G ST orfict & 1 i 61 g€ %, 9feru 38 @reft & Hiefell et &7 7 2 |

féig T (1) T o o Faes gore 3R Heeerd] TR 3 Tafud ot o1 G onfia 8, o 31t ae =me 7 foemen

ST 8, SHT 38 e Selfiat o &9 7 <o T |

THSAREET gRT 55T U <& o7 Taefe fepft off Goanfia eedrdst gr el fohar T R |
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KMRC «=ifis gufaaeg 2023-24

foitg faeron w537 (STRY)

o TE UM 31 < faei Al o R @ & ST aTell Istala ot o § Teiferd @ | SHH qRArsT § Hafad i 3R
forefier vy o SR WX e T 2 | S off SR SETE S € 3R ST YA AT S 7, o o foRar S 2 |
T, 3 9T Y STHUIfET Yoft SFgarelt ot SFATd o7 & &7 ¥ fexamn T 2 |

40. fafaer oFeri & 3fae/S e O o1 Ufy 3R A foRan ST v 2 |

41. fomer o & stienet &1, STl off 3Tavae &1, IAUM 99 o TR/ TR 1ol o STET T ed/ g e foham T 2 |
Soig viie & Afa=T o & &9 § AT 1 F 41 1 ffead wfr e mr

el gUR Ufaae o A
i TS HUR hISHI U .
TG AGTEHR

A SR §. 3201663
T a7 .. SISHT

qieR

T H. 055208

TEIMEA 24055208BKGSAS6842
T : IS

feater £ 29.07.2024
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KMRC
Kolkata Metro Rail Corporation Limited

(A Government of India undertaking)
KMRCL Bhavan, HRBC Office Compound, Munshi Premchand Sarani, Kolkata - 700 021





